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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010
Commission file number: 001-16123

NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.

New York 11-350463€

(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer

incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
1440 Broadway, 17" Floor New York, New York 10018
(Address of principal executive offices (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code(212) 356-9500

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) tifie Act: None
Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) tife Act:

Common Shares, par value $0.02 per share
(Title of class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a walbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405c06#turities Act.  Yed No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®ecl5(d) of the Act. Yes[ No

Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@g filed all reports required to be filed by Sexcti3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the past 12 months (or for such telngreriod that the registrant was required todileh reports) and (2) has been subject to
filing requirements for the past 90 days. Y&d No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant liésnitted electronically and posted on its corpovegbsite, if any, every Interactive Data |
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te Rb of Regulation $-(Section 232.405 of this chapter) during the pdiétg 12 months (i
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files). Y&3 No [

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K it oontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge]dfinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part Il of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-Kx]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlexge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company (all as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the ExgjeaAct).

Large accelerated file [ Accelerated file O
Non-accelerated file O Smaller reporting compar

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantseell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxgie Act). YesO No

The aggregate market value of the voting and ndmga@ommon equity held by non-affiliates of thgistrant was approximately $35,542,000
as of the last business day of the registrant’srséiscal quarter of 2010.

As of March 15, 2011 there were 36,754,919 shased and outstanding of the registrant’'s CommameSh par value $0.02 per share.

Documents incorporated by reference:
Portions of the Proxy Statement to be filed for@wnpany’s 2011 Annual Meeting of Shareholdersrarerporated by reference into Part Il
of this Form 1+K.
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PART |
Iltem 1 BUSINESS
Overview

Newtek Business Services, I. (“we,” “the Company” or “Newtek”), “The Small Buséss Authority” ™, provides financial and business
services to the small- and medium-sized busineskehaur new website, www.thesba.com, and ourhteiged branding strategy will lead us
to become an important destination for small busgae to obtain products, services, and currentnivdtion. Our one-stop-shop enables
businesses to grow and prosper by obtaining:

. Electronic Payment ProcessingCredit card, debit card, check conversion and AGHt®Ns

. Ecommerce ServicesCombinations of payment processing, online shoppargtools, web site design, web hosting and veddted
services which enable businesses to establishsamee and commercial capability on the Internetdguick and simple fashic

. Web Hosting: Full service web host including domain registratéomd online shopping cart toc
. Web Design and DevelopmeniCustomized web design and development sen

. Data Backup, Storage and RetrievalFast, secure, ¢site data backup, storage and retrie

. Business Lending:Business loans to start up, acquire or expand indss

. Accounts Receivable FinancingReceivable financing and management sen

. Insurance ServicesNationwide commercial, health and benefits, and@eal lines of insuranc
. Payroll: Payroll management processing and employee tag

As of December 31, 2010, we had over 100,000 basiaecounts from which we derived revenue in 2@ use state of the art web-based
proprietary technology to provide low cost produatsl services to our small- and medium-sized basiokents. We acquire our customers
through the internet, internal and independentsstalams and alliances with Fortune 500 compandespnity banks, credit unions and oth
all of whom have elected to offer one or more aflousiness services and financial products ratiear try to provide them directly for their
customers or members. Our alliance partners haterltally known Newtek through their use of theWNeacker® system and our strategic
alliance partner program. We are also a holdingpaong for 12 certified capital companies, which wker to as Capcos. However, we have
deemphasized our Capco business, which we are iprttess of winding down, in favor of growing ogperating businesses and do not
anticipate creating any new Capcos in the forededature.

History

Newtek is a corporation formed under the laws ofvN®rk that serves as a holding company for sewghallly- and majority-owned
subsidiaries. We were founded in 1998 to providet dad equity financing to small- and medium-sibedinesses. We have since developed
our branded line of business and financial prodantsservices for the small- and medium-sized lessimarket. At December 31, 2010, we
had 23 subsidiaries, in addition to our 12 Capoty of which were a result of investments throtighCapco programsiNe do not
anticipate creating any new Capcos in the forededature, although we continue to make occasionadstments in and loans to small
businesses through our existing Capcos and megbtlls of the Capco programs. We are concentratingfforts on becoming “The Small
Business Authority” by creating a distribution chahfor business and financial services for thelsraad medium-sized business market as
well as providing a monthly small business indegsket sentiment survey, monthly radio show on 77WABnd monthly small business
newsletter.

Business Strategy
Key elements of our strategy to grow our business: i

. Continue to focus our business model to serverttadlsand medium-sized business marlée. are focused on developing and marketing
business and financial products and services aah#te small- and medium-sized business markett®get market represents a very
significant marketplace in the United States basedon-farm private gross domestic product (“GDR®cording to statistics published
by the U.S. Small Business Administration (the “SBApproximately 51% of the GDP in the United $tatomes from small businesses
and approximately 99% of businesses in the UnitateS which have one or more employees fit inte thédrket segment. Our business
model is to get that market to view us“The Small Business Author” and come to depend on us as their source for lassa®
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financial services as well as the business infaonahey need. We are now providing one or morgises to over 100,000 busine
accounts. We intend to continue to leverage thetBlefvbrand as a one-stop-shop provider for the sraall medium sized business
market.

. Continue to implement a strategy of acquiring costes and processing their business at low dd&.seek to acquire customers at a low
cost through a national strategy centered on dianak partners, internet marketing and our Newkeatechnology. Our alliance partn
use our proprietary NewTracker referral systemeferrcustomers to us for sales and customer trgaki processing. NewTracker
distributes the referral to our appropriate bussreegment or segments for fulfillment while keeping alliance partners up to date on
customer’s progress in real time with detailed doentation. We use the same proprietary system ragateway for direct sales through
our websites and our BizExec progre

. Develop a direct marketing approach throt“The Small Business AuthorityDuring 2010 we added to our marketing efforts
commitments to direct media advertising under tener of ouThe Small Business Authorityarketing mark. This was formally rolled
out in January 2011 and seeks to tie togetherfgignt national media exposure through televisiod eadio advertising, design and
production of our “Small Business Index”™ and “SBaMet Sentiment Surveys”™ reflecting our pollinglassessment of business
conditions for sma- and mediur-sized businesses, the active use of social mediketirzg, and website (www.thesba.col

. Further develop national marketing of t“Newtek” brand through our alliance partnersVe have formed key marketing alliances with
national business organizations such as Chartigy Naderal Credit Union, New York Community Banlerghing, and Morgan Stanley
Smith Barney, and trade organizations such as tedildJnion National Association, General Motorsnigliity Dealers Association, and
The Latino Coalition. We seek to build on the esganent by these partners of our technology, higél lef customer service and
competitively priced products and servic

. Continue to develop our sti-of-the-art technology to process business applicationsfarahcial transactionsWe are updating ot
proprietary systems to take advantage of technocdbgidvances that provide state of the art enhaesenin client service and process
controls which lead to lower cos

. Continue to fulfill our obligations under the curmeCapco programsOur emphasis is on continuing our exemplary regmyatomplianc
program in order to complete successfully the itmesit cycles for all Capcos. At December 31, 20d®had reached the final minimum
investment requirements in all Capco programs iickvive participated. We believe this ensures tB8e4 of the tax credits related to
programs are beyond risk of recapture. In additasngf that date, all of the cash payments requodd made to the investors have been
made. As the Capcos reach 100 percent investmentlvgeek to decertify them as Capcos, liquidéieitremaining assets and thereby
reduce our operations costs, particularly the legal accounting costs associated with complianieee€lof our original Capcos have
reached this stag

The Small Business Authority Branding Strategy Rindct Marketing Effort

During 2010 we added to our marketing efforts commants to direct media advertising under our bafiimer Small Business Authority
marketing mark. This was formally rolled out in dary 2011 and seeks to tie together significaribnat media exposure through 77 WABC,
production of our “Small Business Index”™ and “SEBaMet Sentiment Survey”™ reflecting our polling aassessment of business conditions
for small businesses, the active use of social aedirketing, and our new web site www.thesba.com

The Small Business Authority marketing campaigd stiless three themes targeted to small businesses:
* Growing on’s revenue
* Reducing business expen:
* Reducing business rit
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Integral to this effort, we started a year-longpromotion with radio station 77 WABC Radio, in whiits personalities will broadcast “Live
from 77 WABC and The Small Business Authority Sasdi The promotion calls for Newtek to receive 480air naming rights mentions and
252 separate 60-second radio spots on averageveath. Voiced Newtek Business Services, The Smadirgss Authority, commercials will
air featuring Don Imus, Sean Hannity, Marc Leviayty Kudlow, John Batchelor and Doug Mclintyre. Spetll also air on the legendary
“Rush Limbaugh Show.” Additional co-branding poagiting Newtek as The Small Business Authority wiltor through event sponsorships,
live on-air announcements, and a monthly 60-minatio show hosted by Newtek Business ServicesdagiCEO and Chairman Barry
Sloane. The Small Business Authority will also iieee very significant presence on WABCRadio.corthwvai variety of helpful links for small
business owners to financial services to increlasie sales, reduce costs and minimize business@iskagreement with 77WABC Radio also
provides for exposure on its co-branding effortwiibth Fox business news and the Imus in the Mgr8imow nationally.

One key goal for 2011 for the The Small Businestharity branding strategy is to establish thesha.es the online destination spot for small
business. There are approximately 27 million simadlinesses in the United States, which represé&ntdinon-farm GDP and 99.7% of all
employer firms. The goal is to become the destimatin the Internet for small business owners sothiegba.com will be where independent
business owners will come for ideas to grow thales, reduce their business expenses, and redeicédtisiness risk. The new website will
include current state-of-the art small businesssyemonthly measurement of the small business ecpnmonthly measurement of small
business owners’ market sentiment, monthly SB Usitsetips for business owners, cost savings asdadints on small business products and
services, and the latest news out of Washingto@, br. State government affecting independent bssiogners. Features of thesba.com that
have impact on small business owners include:

» Free monthly newsletter for independent small lessrowner

* The SB authority Small Business Inc

* The SB authority Market Sentiment Sun

* Regular news reports and updates about the ecofmrtiye small business own

» Informative and engaging SB authority informationialeos

» Pertinent information on acquiring products andisess for independent business owners to prc

Principal Business Segments
Overview

The Companys principal business segments, which we operatecmordinated manner in order to provide businaddiaancial services to tl
small- and medium-sized business market, are:

Electronic Payment ProcessingMarketing third party credit card processing andathapproval services to the small- and mediumdsize
business market under the name of Newtek MerchalotiSns.

Web Hosting: CrystalTech Web Hosting, Inc., d/b/a/ Newtek Tedbgy Services (“NTS")which offers shared and dedicated web hosting
related services to the small- and medium-sizethbas market.

Small Business FinanceNewtek Small Business Finance, Inc. (“NSBF"), doradlly licensed, SBA lender that originates, saltsl services
loans to qualifying small businesses, which ard¢iglyr guaranteed by the SBA, and CDS BusinessiSesy Inc. d/b/a Newtek Business Credit
(“NBC™), which provides receivable financing and magement services.

All Other: Businesses formed from investments made througlecCamgrams which cannot be aggregated with otperating segments.

Corporate Activities: Corporate implements business strategy, directketiag, provides technology oversight and guidacoeydinates and
integrates activities of the segments, contracts alliance partners, acquirers customer oppoigsiénd owns our proprietary NewTracker
referral system. This segment includes revenuesapdnses not allocated to other segments, includtagest income, Capco management fee
income and corporate operations expenses.
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Capcos:Twelve certified capital companies which invessinall- and medium-sized businesses. They geneoateash income from tax
credits and non-cash interest and insurance expémseldition to cash management fees.

Financial information for each segment can be fanndanagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Resafl@perations and Financial
Condition, Segment Results and Note 23-Segmentegdo the Consolidated Financial Statementuel

Electronic Payment Processir

Newtek Merchant Solution“NMS”) markets credit and debit card processiny®es, check approval services and ancillary preiogs
equipment and software to merchants who accepitaadis, debit cards, checks and other non-cashsfof payment. New merchants are
acquired through several sales channels. Our pyifoaus is on developing new merchant sales leadsrasult of internal sales efforts and our
direct marketing under The Small Business Authorityprand. NMS has targeted the marketing of itsyaofservices under agreements with
alliance partners, which are principally finandrgtitutions, including banks, credit unions andestrelated businesses that are able to refer
potential customers to NMS through Newtek's NewKkeaaeferral system. In addition, we enter intoesgnents with independent sales agents
throughout the country. These referring organizetiand associations are typically paid a percerdégee processing revenue derived from
respective merchants that they successfully refest In 2010, we processed over 35.5 million tatisns with a merchant sales volume
exceeding $3.6 billion including merchant portfslioperated by our other subsidiaries which areicehby NMS. Our customer base and the
related sales volume processed by us has growifisagnly during each year of operations since 268@2ugh a combination of organic grov

in customers as well as selective merchant pootfdiquisitions. Our merchant base has grown frogpncgimately 1,200 merchants at the end
of 2002 to approximately 15,000 merchants at tlea#2010. Similarly, total sales volume in 201@eaded $3.6 billion, up from $38.4

million in 2002.

We maintain two main customer service and salepatipffices in Milwaukee, Wisconsin and BrownswjllTexas with additional specialists
located in Phoenix, Arizona and New York. Our parss at these locations assist merchants withalniistallation of equipment and on-going
service, as well as any other special processiegsithat they may have.

Because we are not a bank, we are unable to be&dosngd directly access the Viga and Master@ard dmdkassociations and we must be
sponsored by a bank in order to process bankcanddctions. We are currently registered with Wisad asterCard® through the sponsorst

of two banks that are members of the card assongtPrior to October 2009 our entire portfolio faeén with NCMIC Financial Corporation
(“NCMIC"). In October 2009 we moved a significardartion of our merchant portfolio from NCMIC to WelFargo Bank, and in January 2011
we moved the remainder of our portfolio to Redwdtelchant Services, a division of Westamerica Bank.

Our electronic payment processing businesses retyuo ability to obtain data processing servicdeer€ are two aspects to the processing: the
initial authorization of a payment (referred totlas “front-end processing”) and the merchant cradi cardholder charge transaction (the
“back end processing”). In 2009, we signed agred¢sneith Wells Fargo Bank to diversify our procegsoperations and with First Data
Corporation to reduce our costs. We contract wétresal large-scale data processing companies taderthe front-end and back-end
processing (Chase Paymentech Solutions, LLC, Basa Merchant Services Corporation, and Total $yst8ervices, Inc); these multiple
platforms allow us to compete more effectively,uee our risk of reliance on any one source, and gs/the option of utilizing different
processors to match the needs of particular metsiwarsituations. As our merchant base has growrhelieve that we have been able to
achieve greater economies of scale in terms oftredng the cost structure for providing such ssttént services.

As a result of our exposure to liability for merohé&aud, charge-backs and other losses inhergheimerchant payment processing business,
we have developed practices and policies whicmgatéo assess and reduce these risks. Activitiggioh we engage in order to mitigate such
risks are:

. underwriting the initial application of a merchaatidentify unusual risks, structuring the relasbip in a manner consistent with
acceptable risks and, where possible, obtainingregmal or parent corporation guarantee from thenaat;

. monitoring the daily and monthly activity of eaclerchant to identify any departures from normatikiarging behavior of each merchi
and monitoring the largest of our merchants andehwith high levels of refunds or charge-backsasto ensure an opportunity to
address any credit or cha-back liability problems at the earliest possibhadj anc

. requiring high-risk merchants to agree to the distaiment of cash reserves to protect us againsthmet failures to pay for charge-backs
and other fees, and making adjustments in theseves as merchant experience indice

Our development and growth is focused on sellingsewvices to internally generated referrals, mentieferrals identified for us by our
alliance partners, and by our independent salesseptatives. We are different than most electrpaignent
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processing companies who acquire their clients gmilgnthrough independent agents. We believe thabosiness model provides us with a
competitive advantage by enabling us to acquire eleatronic payment processing merchants at a loagtrlevel for third-party commissions
than the industry average. Our business model allessto own the customer as well as the streamsiduwal payments, as opposed to models
which rely more heavily on independent sales agéiesalso believe that merchants obtained as # @fsour alliance referrals and internal
sales efforts are more directly loyal to Newteknttiaose of competitors that rely primarily on indegent sales agents to bring merchants to
them.

Web Hosting Services

Through CrystalTech Web Hosting, Inc. d/b/a/ Newlekhnology Services (“CrystalTech” and “NTS”), wevide website hosting, design
and related services to more than 65,000 custoooauats with 100,000 domains in over 115 countiisS provides shared hosting,
dedicated server and virtual instance plans urideNewtek Technology Services™, Newtek Web SerV¥iteand Newtek Webhosting™ and
CrystalTech® brands for which it receives recurmimgnthly fees, as well as other fees such as sé&tag) consulting fees, domain name
registrations and others. In addition, NTS desigabsites. Ninety percent of all fees are paid waeade by credit card. NTS delivers services
not just to customers seeking hosting but alsoftolesalers, resellers and web developers by offexirange of tools for them to build, resell
and deliver their web content.

NTS primarily uses Microsoft Window® technology. Microsoft has described NTS as onéieflargest hosting services in the world providing
Microsoft Windows 200% hosting. NTS also offers Winbased web hosting and web-based data storageagkelip services. NTS currently
operates a 5,000 square foot fortress strengthcgater located in Scottsdale, Arizona, utiliziegundant networking, electrical and back-up
systems, affording customers what management leslitvbe a state of the art level of performancepaiatection. NTS is PCI certified and
SAS 70 audited.

Over 70% of the new NTS customers have come asult if customer referrals without material expéuneis for marketing or advertising.
Many of NTS’s competitors are very price sensitiviering minimal services at cut-rate pricing. I¢hbeing cost competitive with most
Linux- and Windows-based web hosting services, N&aSemphasized higher quality uptime, service apgart.

The Company has diversified its hosting reach ligrivfg services to small- and medium-sized busieessder different brands, all under
Newtek Technology Services, including Newtek WebviBes, Newtek Data Stora® and Newtek Web Design and Development . NTS
focuses specifically on select target markets sisctestaurants, financial institutions, medicatpeas, law firms, accountants, retail and
technology service providers for channel busineskraselling. The Company has previously launchearikey solution to satisfy financial
institution needs for dedicated servers, hostirdj@data storage, enabling these entities to cpmith regulatory requirements with the
highest level of safety and security.

Small Business Financt

We originate SBA loans and offer accounts receéibancing and other lending products essentiasfioall- and mediunsized businesses.
addition, we provide small business loan servi@gng consulting to the FDIC.

Newtek Small Business Finance, In“'NSBF”) specializes in originating, servicing anellsng small business loans guaranteed by the SBA f
the purpose of acquiring commercial real estatehingry, equipment and inventory and to refinanelet @nd fund franchises, working capital
and business acquisitions. NSBF is one of 14 SBénked Small Business Lending Corporations thatigedoans nationwide under the
federal Section 7(a) loan program (“SBA 7(a) lognBISBF has received preferred lender program (Rt#&ys, a designation whereby the
SBA authorizes the most experienced SBA lendepaoe SBA guarantees on loans without seeking @ review and approval. Being a
national lender, PLP status allows NSBF to semwvelients in an expedited manner since it is nguired to present applications to the SBA for
concurrent review and approval. In December 201&ndard & Poor’s (“S&P”) Ratings Services added W38 their Select Servicer List
which should aid the Company in obtaining additiangside servicing contracts.

We originate loans ranging from $50,000 to $5.0iamilto both startup and existing businesses, wd®the funds for a wide range of business
needs including:

. opening, expanding or acquiring a business or fresec $50,000 to $5.0 millior
. financing working capital
. SBA term loans: at least $50,0
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. Purchase equipment: $25,000 to $5.0 mil
. purchasing ownw-occupied commercial real estate and leasehold wepnents: up to $5.0 million; ar
. refinancing existing nc-rea-estate business debt: $25,000 to $5.0 mill

Late in 2009 we were selected by the Federal Depwmsirance Corporation as its contractor to marsgeservice portfolios of SBA 7(a) loe
acquired by FDIC from failed financial institutian&t such time as we are directed to do so, weagilist in the packaging of these loans for
sale by the FDIC. Our existing servicing facilitesd personnel will perform these activities supyated by contract workers as needed. The
eventual size of the portfolio we will service the FDIC will depend on the level of bank failueegl the needs of the FDIC in managing
portfolios acquired from those banks.

We also offer accounts receivable financing andagament services through CDS Business Servicesi/ioka Newtek Business Credit
(“NBC"). Through this service, small- and mediunzesi businesses can obtain $10,000 to $1,000,000qeth through the sale of their trade
receivables as well as back office services sudillirsy and cash collections.

We also offer merchant cash advance services tousiomers, under which a merchant sells futurditccard receivables at a discount, but do
so only through referrals to third party providddgader this program, the merchant receives thelase amount upfront and agrees to have a
set percentage of the credit card sales deduatedifs daily deposits and remitted back until thechase amount is repaid; in some cases we
process the payment streams. We offer these seragcan agent, and are not taking on credit risloimection with these services.

All Other (including Small Business Insurance Prodis and Services

We offer small business insurance products andcgsrthrough Newtek Insurance Agency, LLC (“NIARhich is licensed in 50 states.

We serve as a retail and wholesale agency spenliiz the sale of personal, commercial and hdadtiéfits lines insurance products to
customers of all our affiliated companies as welbar alliance partners. We offer insurance praifrotm multiple insurance carriers providi
a wide range of choice for our customers. Prid2@09, we implemented a program with the Navy Fdderedit Union to market commercial
and homeownershsurance to their 3.4 million members, and formedirategic alliance with Chartis (formerly AIG Sh2usiness) to provid
agent services to small business clients. We argrneong our efforts to implement programs withadlce partners to market commercial and
personal insurance.

Corporate Activities

Corporate implements business strategy, direct&etiag, provides technology oversight and guidacoeydinates and integrates activities of
the segments, contracts with alliance partnergjiees)customer opportunities and owns our propsidteewTracker referral system and all
other intellectual property rights. This segmerludes revenue and expenses not allocated to stigenents, including interest income, Capco
management fee income and corporate operationaisgpe

Certified Capital Companies

We have deemphasized our Capco business in faxgrowefing our operating businesses and do not patieicreating any new Capcos in the
foreseeable future. While observing all requireraaitthe Capco programs and, in particular, finagcjualified businesses meeting applicable
state requirements as to limitations on the prapomf ownership of qualified businesses, we hasenbable to use this funding source as a
means to facilitate the growth of our businesséschvare strategically focused on providing gooad services to small businesses such as
those in which our Capcos invest. We continue testin and lend to small businesses through ostieg Capcos and meet the goals of the
Capco programs.

Marketing
Overview

We position ourselves as a provider of businesdiaadcial services to the Small to Medium Busingsstor in the United States. Through
integrated marketing and sales of each serviceAmeontrol our customer’s experience in orderrtavjale high quality service to both our
marketing partners and potential customers. Wehrpatential customers through our multi-channelrapph featuring direct, indirect, and
indirect outbound solicitation efforts.

Although we continue to utilize and grow our corarketing channel of strategic alliance partnershase initiated a direct marketing strategy
to the small- and medium-sized business custorhessgh our new “go to market” brand, “The Small
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Business Authority”. Through this brand we are lelitaing ourselves as the authority in each ofsivice lines we provide through a
coordinated radio and television advertising cagupaiuilt around our new web presence, www.thesla.dd/e continue to market through
our bilingual 24/7 call center which we believaisaluable feature for most small business owreisrteed help during non-business hours
and on weekends. We use web-based applicationsiast@use tool to help our employees and assaciatbe efficient, smart and productive.
Instead of using expensive, digured salaried employees that a typical banknoinaurance agency would use to market financiadlypcts anc
business services to small- and medium-sized bssiogstomers, we use technology and dedicated hoyaéxecutive-salary-plus-bonus
employees. The addition of the direct to marketdtstyy through promotion of our new web site supgotr goal to maintain costs and retain
greater margin on each transaction as well as girayiour competent in house business service distsithe ability to create a second and
third service opportunity.

We believe that our business service specialis@lgroduct lines understand the needs of theldmainess owner. Each business service
specialists in the enterprise has recently comglstwtek University which provided in depth traigiand techniques in identifying qualified
opportunities across all of Newtek’s service offgd. We conduct telephone interviews and targategegs with our tcustomers across all
product lines to deepen our understanding of thedds. We have tailored our procedures so our samallmedium-sized business customers
do not have to fill out multiple handwritten forrastype multiple data entry screens, which we lelis the most aggravating factor facing our
customers. We have modeled our back-office anchiegsioperations after customer centered operatioo@els. We stress our responsive
customer service and we endeavor to excel in asitdiggand resolving issues and problems that ouomess may face. We are now providing
our 24/7 customer service functions in Spanishetas English to service the growing Hispanic owaed operated small business customer
base in the United States.

We currently market our services through referfim our alliance partners such as Chartis, Ciddibn National Association, Pershing, N
York Community Bank, Morgan Stanley Smith Barnayd &Navy Federal Credit Union, using our proprietdgwTracker referral system as
well as direct referrals from our new web presemagw.thesba.com. Additional referrals are obtaifreth individual professionals in
geographic markets that have signed up to prowfinals and earn commissions through our BizExecTechExec Programs. These
individuals are traditionally IT Professionals, CBAndependent insurance agents and sales ana#teting professionals In addition,
electronic payment processing services are als&etet through independent representatives and w&linly and ecommerce services are
marketed through internet-based marketing and-{hédy resellers. A common thread across all bissitiees relates to acquiring customers at
low cost. We seek to bundle our marketing effditstigh our brand, our portal, our proprietary Neacker technology, our new web presence
as The Small Business Authority and one easy ¢yt of contact.

We have implemented a multi-channel marketing etrathat consists of:

Direct: In 2011, the Company consolidated and increasedirist marketing efforts through the The SmalliBass Authority brand. The new
website, www.thesba.com, launched on January 11, , 2ffeates a mechanism to obtain business opjityrtlirectly from the 27 million small
businesses in the United States. The 77WABC adwugtinvestment provides the ability for the Comp#mposition this new direct channel
well as deliver leads for each of its service lines

Indirect: Our alliance partners market one or more of owises to their customer base or members, and efNiewTracker to submit
referrals to Newtek from either their website aedtly by their staff. Through our BizExec and TEgbc Programs, we are recruiting
individual professionals such as insurance agéavsjers, and accountants who will utilize NewTrac&iher through the establishment of a
new website or through a link to NewTracker froraitrown site.

Direct Outbound: We have implemented a project of combining all desets into a seamless, enterprise-wide accessélster database in
order to facilitate cross marketing, selling and/géng, real-time data mining, and business iigelhice. We have established a dedicated team
to use our master database for cross marketirggeahd servicing.

The Newtek Referral System

Our proprietary NewTracker referral system allowdaprocess new business utilizing a web-basedratzed processing point. In-bound
referrals from alliance partners, our website ati@iosources are transmitted to our businesse®tide the service or services our customers
need. Our trained representatives use these wedatlagplications as a tool to acquire and procetsstdeough telephonic interviews,

eliminating the need for face-to-face contact drelrequirement that a customer complete multipfeepéorms or data entry for multiple

product lines. This approach is customer friendligws us to process applications very efficiemthd allows us to store client information for
further processing and cross-selling efforts whifering what we believe to be the highest levetwdtomer service. It also assures our alliance
partners full transaction transparency. This sygtenmits our alliance partners to have a windowuoback office processing 24 hours a de¢
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days a week, to see every communication and irttereloetween our sales and processing represessgadivd their referred customers while
still preserving the privacy of customer or alliarartner sensitive data on the application. Neakaaenables the processing and tracking of
services in a manner similar to the bar code sysised by overnight delivery services. We beliews tewTracker is a key differentiating
component of our business. It enables us to scalbusiness services rapidly to meet the demandarofustomers. NewTracker enables our
alliance partners to offer our services immediatefighout having to invest in marketing materialales and marketing personnel, training,
licensing or office space. Because their custormersembers are driven by our technology to our @seing centers, which can handle
increased volume of transactions without havingdd specialized staff or infrastructure, theredsiaed for additional investment by our
alliance partners. NewTracker additionally providegct interface to business owners/operatorsssatg our new web site as they provide
basic information regarding their need so thatBusiness Service Specialists can immediately respminquiry for any of our service
offerings.

Alliances

Each of the operating businesses benefit fromehbeipt of significant numbers of customer referfedsn our alliance partners, pursuant to
agreements negotiated and structured by our holdingpany management and staff. We are focuseding sategic business affiliations to
identify likely small- to medium-sized business tomsers and others to be serviced by our operatisinbsses. We seek to ally Newtek with
companies and organizations that wish to offerammaore of our principal business lines to thestomers or members. We provide one-stop
shopping for alliance partners that want to lauoicexpand their business services. For exampley moait unions are serving small business
owners with consumer lending applications, butesa our alliance with Credit Union National Assticia, PSCU Financial Services or Fis
Solutions, Inc. d/b/a IntegraSys to expand theferaig of services. We are also able to privatelamy of our business services for any alli:
partner.

These alliance partners are able to provide greatice to their customers and members and darsteady flow of referral payments from
On the other hand, our operating companies aréviegesignificant numbers of referrals for our sees in the areas of small business loans,
insurance and electronic payment processing anthaseacquiring customers at a low cost. NewTraaker proprietary, internally developed
referral system technology, facilitates this transff information and also permits our customeviserrepresentatives, their supervisors anc
referring alliance partners to observe the reaétimocessing of each referral, from intake to catiph. For example, a alliance partner
financial advisor who refers a brokerage custoraeefectronic payment processing, can track oucgssing of their client and know when
decisions are made, what they are, when the réfega are earned, as well as observe and ovdrsemperational performance of our customer
service representatives. The process is analogahe tar code system used by overnight delivemyices to track the movement of a packe
where critical processing points are input andcih&tomer is able to access the company’s passwotdegbed web site and monitor the
movement of the package from pick-up to delivery.

We have entered into agreements to provide oneoee tvusiness services with, the following entiiesluding but not limited to):

. Chartis, Inc. (formerly AIG Small Busines

. Morgan Stanley Smith Barne

. New York Community Banl

. Credit Union National Association (CUN/

. Microsoft

. Pershing

. Navy Federal Credit Unio

. Members ItFederal Credit Unio

. Ent Federal Credit Unio

. NCMIC Financial, Inc

. Bellco Credit Unior

. The Latino Coalitior

. Wright Patt Credit Uniol

. SpaceCoast Credit Unic

. IBM SECU
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Intellectual Property
Newtek has developed software which is the coliesdfiewTracker referral system and in Septembef20€d a patent application with t
United States Patent and Trademark Office covexiegTracker.

NTS uses specialized software to conduct its bssineder a perpetual, royefree license from its developer, the former owoier
CrystalTech, acquired at the time of our acquisitid the business.

We have several trademarks and service marksf athizh are of material importance to us. The fallog trademarks and service marks are
the subject of trademark registrations issued bylthited States Patent Trademark Office:
AT NEWTEK, WE DO IT BETTER

BIZEXEC

CRYSTALTECH

CRYSTALTECH WEB HOSTINC

CT & Design

NEWTEK

NEWTEK BIZEXEC

NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICE!

NEWTEK BUSINESS SOLUTION

NEWTEK + NEWT LOGO

NEWTEK REFERRAL SYSTEN

NEWTEK TECHNOLOGY SERVICES
NEWTEK WEB SERVICES

NEWTRACKER

WEBCONTROLCENTER

NEWTEK BUSINESS CREDI1

NEWTEK DATA STORAGE

NEWTEK WEB DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT
NEWTEK WEB HOSTING

20. WE DO IT BETTER

© ©® N o g bk D

e e e e L o e =
© ® N o 0k~ DN EF O

The following trademarks and service marks aresthigect of pending trademark applications filedwifie United States Patent and Trader
Office:

NEWT LOGO + NEWTEK

2.  NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. + NEWT LOG
3. NEWTEK BUSINESS SOLUTION¢

4. NEWTPAY

5. NEWTPAY PRO

6. THE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY

7. THESBA.COM THE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY
8. THESBA.COM THE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY POWERED BKEWTEK
9. THE SMALL BUSINESS OBSERVEF

10. THESBA

11. THE SBAUTHORITY INDEX

12. THE SBA MARKET SENTIMENT SURVEY

13. NEWTEK BUSINESS PARTNER:

14. THE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY INDEX

15. THESBA INDEX

-
o

NEWTEK SITECENTER



17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.

NEWTEK PARTNER RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT SYSTEN

T1SBA

THE 1 SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY
THE ONE SMALL BUSINESS AUTHORITY
TSBA

NEWTEK PRMS
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Competition

We compete in a large number of markets for the shbervices to small- and medium-sized busine&ssh of our principal operating
companies competes not only against suppliers ipdtticular state or region of the country bud @gainst suppliers operating on a national or
even a multi-national scale. None of the marketsthith our companies compete are dominated by d somaber of companies that could
materially alter the terms of the competition.

Our Electronic payment processing segment compéthentities including Heartland Payment SysteRisst National Bank of Omaha and
Paymentech, L.P. Our Web hosting segment compéte<sl&1, Hosting.com, Discount ASP, Maxum ASP, Galdge , Yahoo!s , BlueHost
e, iPowerWeh, , and Microsoft Live among others. Sorall Business Finance segment competes with rabgomd national banks and non-
bank lenders. Intuig is bundling electronic payment processing, webihgsand payroll services similar to ours in offey$ that compete in t
same small- to midsize-business market.

In many cases, the competitors of our companies@tras able as we are to take advantage of chémgesiness practices due to technolog
developments and, for those with a larger sizeuneble to offer the personalized service that nangll business owners and operators seem
to want.

While we compete with many different providers ur @arious businesses, we have been unable tdfidant direct and comprehensive
competitors that deliver the same broad suite nfiges focused on the needs of the small- and medized business market with the same
marketing strategy as we do. Some of our competédiWwantages include:

. Our compatible products such as o-commerce offerings that work together to increadess reduce costs, and reduce risks fol
customers and enable us to sell two, three, orgoaniucts at the same tirr

. Our proprietary NewTracker referral system, whiltbves us to process new business utilizing a wetebacentralized processing point
and provides back end scalabili

. Our focus on developing and marketing businesd@Enand financial products and services aimeldeasinall- and medium-sized
business marke

. Our scalability, which allows us to size our busiservices capabilities very quickly to meet comgioand market neec
. Our ability to offer personalized service and cotiijwe rates;

. A strategy of multiple channel distribution, whiglves us maximum exposure in the marketpl.

. High quality customer service 24x7x365 across adlitess lines, with a focus primarily on absolutstomer service

. Our telephonic interview process, as opposed toirag handwritten or data-typing processes, whiltbws us to offer high levels of
customer service and satisfaction, particularlysimall business owners who do not get this seifriza our competitors; an

. Our NewTracker Portal, which allows our alliancetpars to offer a centralized access point forrtegial- to mediun-sized busines
clients as part of their larger strategic appraacmarketing and allows such partners to demorestrett they are focused on providing a
suite of services to the small business marketidit@n to their core servici

Government Regulation
Overview

Newtel's electronic payment processing, lending, insueaaad Capco operations are subject to regulatidederal, state, and professional
governing bodies. In addition, our financial instibn customers, which include commercial banks @edit unions, operate in markets that are
subject to rigorous regulatory oversight and suigéra. The compliance of our products and servigiés these requirements depends on a
variety of factors including the particular functadity, the interactive design and the charteiiaarise of the financial institution. Our financial
services customers must independently assess &minitee what is required of them under these regula and are responsible for ensuring
that our systems and the design of their Websitafoem to their regulatory obligations. New lawsregulations are frequently adopted in
these areas that require constant compliance ard owrease our costs.

Certified Capital Companies

In return for the Capcos making investments inténgeted companies, the states provide tax cregitgerally equal to funds invested in the
Capco by the insurance companies that provideuth@sfto the Capcos. In order to maintain its statua Capco and to avoid recapture or
forfeiture of the tax credits, each Capco must naeaimber of specific investment requirements idiclg a minimum investment schedule all
of which have been met prior to required dateslbgfaour Capcos. As a result, we believe themneddasis for a loss of tax credits.
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Each of the state Capco programs has a requiretimeré Capco, in order to maintain its certifiegtisé, must meet certain investment
requirements, both qualitative and quantitativeesSghinclude minimum investment amounts and timegeffor investment of “certified
capital” (the amount of the original funding of tBapco by the insurance companies) all of whickel@en met by our Capcos. The minimum
requirements are calculated on a cumulative basisalow the Capcos to receive a return of an it.mest and to re-invest the funds for full
additional credit towards the minimum requiremefgalitative requirements include limitations oe thitial size of the recipients of the
Capco funds, including the number of their emplayélee location within the respective state ofrédwpients and the recipients’ commitment
to remain therein for a specified period of tinteg types of business conducted by the recipientsttee terms of the investments in the
recipients.

The states of Louisiana, Colorado and Texas andttie of New York for our two most recent New Yeprograms (out of the five in which \
have participated) have had or recently addeddino @apco programs limitations on the equity iniestt Capcos can make in qualified
businesses. These programs or program changesosgedclude a Capco from owning all or a majorityh® voting equity of the invested
business. While Newtek has made profitable majanityed investments in the past, we have also maderity or passive investments in
qualified businesses. Newtek's Capcos are in falhgliance with all investment limitations, and mgement foresees no significant difficulty
in continuing to remain in compliance.

When each of Newtek’s Capcos has invested in gedlfusinesses an amount equal to 100% of italmiértified capital, it is able to decertify
(terminate its status as a Capco) and no longsubgect to any state Capco regulation. Upon volyrdacertification, the programs in about
half of the states require that a Capco share tyjlaitions to its equity holders with the stap@ssoring the Capco. For those states that
require a share of distributions, the sharing paegges vary, but are generally from 10 to 30%, lisoa distributions above a specified
internal rate of return for the equity owners of tapco. States not requiring distributions area$eand New York (Programs 1, 2 and 3). At
this time, Newtek does not believe that the shargagirements will have a material impact on thepany’s financial condition or operations.

Three of Newtek’s Capcos have reached the 100%iment level and the first, Wilshire New York Adeis, LLC, was notified by the New
York Insurance Department that it is no longer sabjo regulation. The second Capco, Wilshire RastrLLC was no longer subject to
regulation when the Florida Capco law sunset oreBaxer 31, 2010 and will be dissolved shortly. Thiedt Wilshire Alabama Partners, LLC,
completed its goals under the Alabama Capco progmeé2810. Additionally, in October of 2009, our W@nsin based Capco met its statutory
requirements and voluntarily decertified and wasseguently dissolved.

Employees

As of December 31, 2010, we and the companies iohwlie hold a controlling interest had a total 882mployees, of which 280 were full-
time employees. We believe our labor relationsga@d and none of our employees are covered bylectiok bargaining agreement.

Confidentiality Agreements

All our employees have signed confidentiality agneats, and it is our standard practice to requesgly hired employees and, when
appropriate, independent consultants, to executBdemtiality agreements. These agreements prdahigethe employee or consultant may not
use or disclose confidential information excepthi@ performance of his or her duties for the comgpanin other limited circumstances. The
steps taken by us may not, however, be adequatevent the misappropriation of our proprietanhtgor technology.

Revenues and Assets by Geographic Area

During the years ended December 31, 2010, 2002@08, virtually all of our revenue was derived froostomers in the United States,
although we provide pre-paid web site hosting sewio customers in approximately 120 countries.

Available Information

We are subject to the informational requirementthefSecurities Exchange Commission and in accesdatith those requirements file repo
proxy statements and other information with theuiies and Exchange Commission. You may read apg the reports, proxy statements
and other information that we file with the Comnmessunder the informational requirements of theugigies Exchange Act at the
Commission’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifte&tN.W., Washington, DC 20549. Please call 1-88G-8339 for information about the
Commission’s Public Reference Room. The Commisalsa maintains a web site that contains reportsgypand information statements and
other information
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regarding registrants that file electronically witie Commission. The address of the Commissionts site is_http://www.sec.govOur

principal offices are located at 1440 BroadwaythFfoor, New York, NY, 10018 and our telephone nunibdR12) 356-9500. Our websites
are http://www.thesba.coand http://www.newtekbusinessservices.coMie make available through our websites, freehafge, our Annual
Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on FormQl@urrent Reports on Form 8-K and amendmentsasetiheports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secwrifirchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon ameddyg practicable after we electronically
file such material with, or furnish it to, the Conssion. These documents may be directly accessed at
http://investor.newtekbusinessservices.daformation contained on our website is not a péthis report.

Item 1A RISK FACTORS

The following is a summary of the risk factors theg believe are most relevant to our business. & hes factors that, individually or in the
aggregate, we think could cause our actual resultéffer significantly from anticipated or histodl resultslf any of the following risks occur,
our business, financial condition and results oéigtions could be materially and adversely affectadhat case, the value of our common
shares could decline and stockholders may losergilrt of their investmen¥ou should understand that it is not possible tdjmot or identify
all such factors. Consequently, you should not iciemghe following to be a complete discussionlbpatential risks or uncertainties. We
undertake no obligation to publicly update forwéwdking statements, whether as a result of newimétion, future events, or otherwise,
unless required by law.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS GENERALLY
Our success depends on our ability to compete eftaely in the highly competitive and highly regulaed industries in which we operate.

We face intense competition in providing web hagservices, processing electronic payments anéhatigg SBA loans, as well as in the
other industries in which we or our affiliated coempges operate. Low barriers to entry often resuét steady stream of new competitors
entering certain of these businesses. Current atahfial competitors are or may be better estabtiseubstantially larger and have more
capital and other resources than we do. If we exjirsto additional geographical markets, we willdaompetition from others in those mark
as well. In addition, some of the industries in e¥hive operate are highly regulated and we canmsotr@asou that we will continue to be in full
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regatadi Failure to maintain full compliance or if nkaws limit or eliminate some of the bene
of our business lines, our financial conditionutesof operations and cash flows could be matgradversely affected.

Our success depends upon our ability to enforce andaintain our intellectual property rights.

Our success depends, in significant part, on thprpgtary nature of our technology, including bptitentable and non-patentable intellectual
property related to our NewTracker referral systéve. have filed one patent application with the BdiStates Patent office but there can be no
assurance that such patent will be granted. Textent that a competitor is able to reproduce bewtise capitalize on our technology, it may
be difficult, expensive or impossible for us toahtnecessary legal protection. In addition to piapeotection of intellectual property rights,
consider elements of our product designs and psesd® be proprietary and confidential. We relyrupmployee, consultant and vendor non-
disclosure agreements and contractual provisiodsaaystem of internal safeguards to protect oopnpetary information. However, any of ¢
registered or unregistered intellectual propemgts may be challenged or exploited by otherseénitidustry, which might harm our operating
results. We have several trademarks and servicksmarich are of material importance to us. Litigatiwhich could result in substantial cost
to and diversion of our efforts, may be necessanforce trademarks issued to us or to deterrhimenforceability, scope and validity of the
proprietary rights of others. Adverse determinaionany litigation or interference proceeding cbsilibject us to costs related to changing
brand names and a loss of established brand remogni

Our businesses depend on our ability to attract andetain key personnel and any loss of ability to atact these personnel could
adversely affect us.

Our success depends upon the ability of our affilacompanies and other companies in which we frieesttract and retain qualified persor
and our ability to supplement those capabilitiehwiur senior management personnel. Competitioquiatified employees is intense. If our
affiliated companies lose the services of key pamed or are unable to attract additional qualifiedsonnel, the business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of us or onmaare of our affiliated companies could be matbriadversely affected. It can take a
significant period of time to identify and hire pennel with the combination of skills and attritaitequired in carrying out our strategy.
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Our business relies heavily on the expertise ofsemior management. The loss of the services séthalividuals could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows, and it is likely tivatill be difficult to find adequate
replacements.

Our businesses depend upon the ability to utilizene Internet for the conduct of a significant portian of their business; disruption to that
system could make it impossible for them to contineito conduct their current businesses.

Possible disruption to the normal functioning of thternet through, for example, power failureerdrist sabotage, could make it impossible
for aspects of the lending, electronic payment @ssing, web hosting and in fact our referral systeifanction. In the event of a major
disruption, and assuming that such disruptions dbel long-lived, we would be required to make esitechanges in the way these
companies do business. There is no assurance ¢hatlhave the time and resources to make theaagds.

Our success depends on our ability to use effectlyeour electronic referral and information processig systems.

We have developed an electronic referral and psicgsystem for the applications necessary fosétes of each of our business lines other
than web site hosting. This system is critical tio ability to process such business with a low ealstantage and to obtain referrals from our
alliance partners. In particular, the ability tacass the referral system and to track the progresseferred customer is a major feature of the
perceived attractiveness of our system. If thiemal system should develop problems which we caaddress, it would have a material
negative impact on our business strategy. In additur ability to provide business services insiggly depends on our capacity to store,
retrieve, process and manage significant amoundsiaf. Interruption or loss of our information pessing capabilities through loss of stored
data, breakdown or malfunctioning of computer emépt and software systems, telecommunicationsréadu damage caused by acts of nz
or other disruption, could have a material advef§ect on our business, financial condition, resoftoperations and cash flows.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR ELECTRONIC PAYMENT PROCESSING BUSINESS

NMS relies on two bank sponsors, which have substaal discretion with respect to certain elements obur business practices, in order
to process bankcard transactions. If either sponsahip is terminated, and we are not able to secura transfer the respective merchant
portfolios to new bank sponsors, the business, finaial condition, results of operations and cash fles of electronic payment processing
business could be materially adversely affected. Hoth sponsorships are terminated, and we are note to secure or transfer the
merchant portfolios to new bank sponsors, we will ot be able to conduct our electronic payment procefg business. We also rely on
service providers who are critical to our business.

Because we are not a bank, we are unable to b&dosnyd directly access the Viga and Master@ard dmdkassociations. The Visa and
MasterCard® operating regulations require us topoasored by a bank in order to process bankcandartions. We are currently sponsored
by two banks. If either sponsorship is terminated we are unable to secure a bank sponsor foepactive merchant portfolios, we will not
be able to process bankcard transactions for feetatl portfolios. If both sponsorships are terngdaand we are unable to secure a bank
sponsor for the merchant portfolios, we will notdi®e to process bankcard transactions. Conseguérglloss of either or both of our
sponsorchips would have a material adverse effectuo business. Furthermore, our agreement witlsponsoring bank gives the sponsoring
bank substantial discretion in approving certagmednts of our business practices, including oucisation, application and qualification
procedures for merchants, the terms of our agretséth merchants, the processing fees that wegehaur customer service levels and our
use of independent sales organizations and indepésdles agents. We cannot guarantee that ousaiog bank’s actions under these
agreements will not be detrimental to us. Othevisermproviders, some of whom are our competitars,reecessary for the conduct of our
business. The termination by our service providéthese arrangements with us or their failuregfgrm these services efficiently and
effectively may adversely affect our relationshigith the merchants whose accounts we serve, anccawse those merchants to terminate
their processing agreements with us.

If NMS or its processors or bank sponsor fail to atlere to the standards of the Vis® and MasterCar@ hakcard associations, our
registrations with these associations could be terimated and we could be required to stop providing ayment processing services for
Visa® and MasterCard® .

Substantially all of the transactions NMS processeslve Visa® or MasterCarél . If we, our bank spamsr our processors fail to comply
with the applicable requirements of the Visa andtdeCard® bankcard associations, isa or Master€eodld suspend or terminate our
registration. The termination of our registratiaraoy changes in the Visa or MasterCard ruleswiatd impair our registration could
require us to stop providing payment processingises, which would have a material adverse effacbar business.
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On occasion, NMS experiences increases in interchg@mand sponsorship fees. If we cannot pass along#e increases to our merchants,
our profit margins will be reduced.

Our electronic payment processing subsidiary patgséhange fees or assessments to bankcard agstifar each transaction we process
using their credit, debit and gift cards. From titog¢ime, the bankcard associations increase teecimange fees that they charge processor
the sponsoring banks, who generally pass on suchdses to us. From time to time, our sponsorimggdbancrease their fees as well. If we are
not able to pass these fee increases along to argecthrough corresponding increases in our prowg$ses, our profit margins in this line of
business will be reduced.

Unauthorized disclosure of merchant or cardholder dta, whether through breach of our computer systemsr otherwise, could expose
us to liability and business losses.

Through our electronic payment processing subgidiae collect and store sensitive data about metshend cardholders, and we maintain a
database of cardholder data relating to spec#iesactions, including payment, card numbers anthoédter addresses, in order to process the
transactions and for fraud prevention and otheriral processes. If anyone penetrates our netveatkrity or otherwise misappropriates
sensitive merchant or cardholder data, we coulsulpgect to liability or business interruption. Wanoot guarantee that our systems will not be
penetrated in the future. If a breach of our sysbenurs, we may be subject to liability, includiclgims for unauthorized purchases with
misappropriated card information, impersonatioother similar fraud claims. Similar risks exist lvitegard to the storage and transmission of
such data by our processors. In the event of acly aibreach, we may also be subject to a clagsndetivsuit. Small businesses are less
prepared for the complexities of safeguarding caldir data than their larger counterparts. In treneof non compliance by a customer of
card industry rules, we could face fines from pagteard networks. There can be no assurance thatowkl be able to recover any such fines
from such customer.

NMS has potential liability if our merchants refuseor cannot reimburse charge-backs resolved in favoof their customers.

If a billing dispute between a merchant and a oald#r is not ultimately resolved in favor of the neleant, the disputed transaction is “charged
back” to the merchant’s bank and credited to tlemawt of the cardholder. If we or our processingksaare unable to collect the charge-back
from the merchant’s account, or if the merchanise$ or is financially unable due to bankruptcgtber reasons to reimburse the merchant’s
bank for the charge-back, we bear the loss foatheunt of the refund paid to the cardholder’'s bahéist of our merchants deliver products or
services when purchased, so a contingent liabhditgharge-backs is unlikely to arise, and creditsissued on returned items. However, some
of our merchants do not provide services until someafter a purchase, which increases the potdoti@ontingent liability and the reserves
we require of the merchants may not be sufficierdaver the liability or may not even be availataleis in the event of a bankruptcy.

NMS has potential liability for customer or merchart fraud.

Credit card fraud occurs when a merchant’s custarees a stolen card (or a stolen card number andxrot-present transaction) to purchase
merchandise or services. In a traditional cardgmegansaction, if the merchant swipes the catkives authorization for the transaction from
the card issuing bank and verifies the signaturtherback of the card against the paper receipesidpy the customer, the card issuing bank
remains liable for any loss. In a fraudulent caotHoresent transaction, even if the merchant reseauthorization for the transaction, the
merchant is liable for any loss arising from thengaction. Many of our business customers are smdltransact a substantial percentage of
their sales over the Internet or by telephone df anders. Because their sales are card-not-preésmmiactions, these merchants are more
vulnerable to customer fraud than larger merchamd,we could experience charge-backs arising frardholder fraud more frequently with
these merchants.

Merchant fraud occurs when a merchant, rather gheurstomer, knowingly uses a stolen or countecteil or card number to record a false
sales transaction or intentionally fails to delittee merchandise or services sold in an otherwa$id transaction. Anytime a merchant is une

to satisfy a charge-back, we are responsible fatrchargeback. We cannot assure that the systems and presede have established to de
and reduce the impact of merchant fraud are orheiléffective. Failure to effectively manage riskl grevent fraud could increase our charge-
back liability.

Our payment processing systems may fail due to famts beyond our control, which could interrupt our business or cause us to lose
business and likely increase our costs.

We depend on the uninterrupted operations of ompeder network systems, software and our processata centers. Defects in these
systems or damage to them due to factors beyondamtrol could cause severe disruption to our lessirand other material adverse effects on
our payment processing businesses.
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RISKS RELATING TO OUR OPERATION OF A WEBSITE HOSTIN G BUSINESS
NTS operates in a highly competitive industry in wich technological change can be rapid.

The website hosting business and its related téagpanvolve a broad range of rapidly changing tembgies. Our equipment and the
technologies on which it is based may not remamptitive over time, and others may develop supegichnologies that render our products
non-competitive without significant additional ctgpiexpenditures. Some of our competitors are Baanitly larger and have substantially
greater market presence as well as greater finateiqnical, operational, marketing and other veses and experience than we do. In the
event that such a competitor expends significaessand marketing resources in one or several ngnke may not be able to compete
successfully in such markets. We believe that cditipe will continue to increase, placing downwamekssure on prices. Such pressure could
adversely affect our gross margins if we are né# &ibreduce our costs commensurate with such peiections. There can be no assurances
that we will remain competitive.

Our website hosting business depends on the effinteand uninterrupted operation of its computer andcommunications hardware
systems and infrastructure.

Despite precautions taken by NTS against posséileré of its systems, interruptions could restdtrd natural disasters, power loss, the
inability to acquire fuel for our backup generatgedecommunications failure, terrorist attacks aimdilar events. NTS also leases
telecommunications lines from local, regional aational carriers whose service may be interrupBrd. business, financial condition and
results of operations could be harmed by any daroaéglure that interrupts or delays our operagiofhere can be no assurance that our
insurance will cover all of the losses or compeadiES for the possible loss of clients occurringmty any period that NTS is unable to
provide service.

Our inability to maintain the integrity of our infr astructure and the privacy of confidential information would materially affect our
business.

The NTS infrastructure is potentially vulnerableptoysical or electronic break-ins, viruses or samproblems. If our security measures are
circumvented, it could jeopardize the security affidential information stored on NTS’s systemssapipropriate proprietary information or
cause interruptions in NTS’s operations. We mayeiired to make significant additional investmeantd efforts to protect against or remedy
security breaches. Security breaches that resaltéess to confidential information could damagereputation and expose us to a risk of loss
or liability. The security services that NTS offémsconnection with customers’ networks cannot essomplete protection from computer
viruses, break-ins and other disruptive problentiee dccurrence of these problems may result in gl@gainst NTS or us or liability on our
part. These claims, regardless of their ultimate@ue, could result in costly litigation and coblarm our business and reputation and impair
NTS's ability to attract and retain customers.

Our business depends on Microsoft Corporation andtbers for the licenses to use software as well ather intellectual property in the
website hosting business.

NTS's website hosting business is built on a techrickdglatform relying on the Microsoft Windows practs and other intellectual property
that NTS currently licenses. As a result, if we @anable to continue to have the benefit of thosening arrangements or if the products upon
which NTS’s platform is built become obsolete, business could be materially and adversely affected

RISKS RELATING TO OUR SMALL BUSINESS FINANCE BUSINE SSES
We depend on outside financing.

Our SBA lending and receivables financing busingeslemend on outside financing to support their lmaking and acquisition of receivables.
Termination of the credit lines for any reason veblndive a material adverse effect on our busineskiding but not limited to, the liquidation
of the guaranteed loan and receivables portfotiggaty down the lines. If funds from such sale wesafficient to completely pay down the li
of credit, the holding company and certain of itbsidiaries would be responsible for any short falDecember 2010, the Company
securitized a portion of its unguaranteed, retalnad portions of its SBA 7(a) loans; the Companiicpates using securitizations to ultima
fund future loan creation, assuming the markestah securitizations continues to exist and fuseuritizations can be executed on an
economic basis beneficial to the Company. Althoagiecuritization potentially provides a long texmding source for the Company’s SBA
lender, it does not provide liquidity in the shtetm for funding SBA loans. Because its resourcilsbe insufficient to maintain current SBA
loan originations, failure of our SBA lender toarge a line to fund and warehouse the originatfamguaranteed, retained loan portions
would materially impact our business. In additiony receivables financing company depends on afirreedit which matures in February
2014. Loss of this line and our inability to remdtwould materially impact the business.
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We have specific risks associated with small busisg administration loans.

We have generally sold the guaranteed portion & 8Rns in the secondary market. Such sales haudteel in our earning premiums and
creating a stream of servicing income. There candassurance that we will be able to continueimaiing these loans, or that a secondary
market will exist for, or that we will continue tealize premiums upon the sale of the guarantegibps of the SBA 7(a) loans.

Since we sell the guaranteed portion of substdytalr entire SBA 7(a) loan portfolio, we incur ditrisk on the non-guaranteed portion of the
SBA loans. We share pro rata with the SBA in armpveries. In the event of default on an SBA loam, mursuit of remedies against a borro

is subject to SBA approval, and where the SBA distads that its loss is attributable to deficiesdiethe manner in which the loan application
has been prepared and submitted, the SBA may éeddlihonor its guarantee with respect to our SBksoor it may seek the recovery of
damages from us. If we should experience signifipaoblems with our underwriting of SBA loans, sdalure to honor a guarantee or the «

to correct the problems could have a material as#veffect on us. Although the SBA has never dedlinehonor its guarantees with respect to
SBA loans made by us since our acquisition of émglér in 2003, no assurance can be given thatBAew®uld not attempt to do so in the
future.

Curtailment of the government-guaranteed loan progams could cut off an important segment of our busiess.

Although the program has been in existence siné8,liBere can be no assurance that the federatigoeat will maintain the SBA program,

or that it will continue to guarantee loans at eatrevels. If we cannot continue making and sgliovernment-guaranteed loans, we will
generate fewer origination fees and our abilitgéoerate gains on sale of loans will decrease. frosto-time, the government agencies that
guarantee these loans reach their internal buddjetéd and cease to guarantee loans for a statesigeriod. In addition, these agencies may
change their rules for loans. Also, Congress mayptktgislation that would have the effect of distbouing or changing the programs. Non-
governmental programs could replace governmentrarog for some borrowers, but the terms might nadweally acceptable. If these changes
occur, the volume of loans to small business addstrial borrowers of the types that now qualify government-guaranteed loans could
decline, as could the profitability of these loans.

An increase in non-performing assets would reduceun income and increase our expenses.

If our level of non-performing assets in our SBAdang and receivable financing businesses riskarfuture, it could adversely affect our
revenue and earnings. Non-performing assets areaply loans on which borrowers are not makingrthegquired payments or receivables for
which the customer has not made timely payment.-pnforming assets also include loans that have bestructured to permit the borrower
to have smaller payments and real estate thatdes dicquired through foreclosure of unpaid loapgh€ extent that our financial assets are
non-performing, we will have less cash availableléading and other activities.

Our reserve for credit losses may not be sufficiertb cover unexpected losses.

Our business depends on the behavior of our custommeaddition to our credit practices and proceduwe maintain a reserve for credit lo:
on our SBA loans and accounts receivable portfalitich management has judged to be adequate diedioans we originate and receivables
we purchase. We periodically review our reserveaftequacy considering current economic conditionkteends, collateral values, charge-off
experience, levels of past due loans and non-peifigr assets, and we adjust our reserve accordikigiwever, because of the poor current
economic conditions caused by the recession, @erves may prove inadequate, which could have arrabadverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

We could be adversely affected by weakness in thesidential housing and commercial real estate marke

Weakness in residential home and commercial réateesalues could impair our ability to collect @afaulted SBA loans as real estate is
pledged in many of our SBA loans as part of théatelal package.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR INSURANCE AGENCY BUSINESS
We depend on third parties, particularly property and casualty insurance companies, to supply the preatts marketed by our agents.

Our contracts with property and casualty insurazarapanies typically provide that the contracts lsarterminated by the supplier without
cause. Our inability to enter into satisfactoryaagements with these suppliers or the loss of tredagonships for any reason would adversely
affect the results of our new insurance businetso,Aur inability to obtain these products at cetitive prices could make it difficult for us to
compete with larger and better capitalized prowdsrsuch insurance services.
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If we fail to comply with government regulations, air insurance agency business could be adversely efted.

Our insurance agency business is subject to corapsafe regulation in the various states in whichple® to conduct business. Our success
will depend in part upon our ability to satisfy siseregulations and to obtain and maintain all megulicenses and permits. Our failure to
comply with any statutes and regulations could reweaterial adverse effect on us. Furthermoreattoption of additional statutes and
regulations, changes in the interpretation andreefoent of current statutes and regulations oexpansion of our business into jurisdictions
that have adopted more stringent regulatory reqéres than those in which we currently conductiess could have a material adverse e
on us.

We do not have any control over the commissions olmsurance agency expects to earn on the sale ofumance products which are
based on premiums and commission rates set by in®rs and the conditions prevalent in the insurance arket.

Our insurance agency earns commissions on thegaisurance products. Commission rates and presitan change based on the prevailing
economic and competitive factors that affect insaeaunderwriters. In addition, the insurance inguisas been characterized by periods of
intense price competition due to excessive undéngrcapacity and periods of favorable premium Igdeie to shortages of capacity. We
cannot predict the timing or extent of future chesighn commission rates or premiums or the effegtadithese changes will have on the
operations of our insurance agency.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR CAPCO BUSINESS

The Capco programs and the tax credits they providare created by state legislation and implementedhtough regulation, and such
laws and rules are subject to possible action to peal or retroactively revise the programs for politcal, economic or other reasons. Such
an attempted repeal or revision would create substdial difficulty for the Capco programs and could, if ultimately successful, cause us
material financial harm.

The tax credits associated with the Capco progeamdsprovided to our Capcos’ investors are to deetl by the investors over a period of
time, which is typically ten years. Much can chadgeng such a period and it is possible that anmare states may revise or eliminate the
credits. Any such revision or repeal could haveatemal adverse economic impact on our Capcosgreitinectly or as a result of the Capco’s
insurer’s actions. Any such final state action fleapardizes the tax credits could result in thevjgter of our Capco insurance assuming partial
of full control of the particular Capco in orderrtanimize its liability under the Capco insuranadigies issued to our investors.

During 2002, a single legislator in Louisiana imtmeed such a proposed bill, on which no action taksn, and in Colorado in 2003 and 2004
bills to modify (not repeal) its Capco program wareoduced; the 2003 Colorado legislation was diefe in a legislative committee. The 2004
Colorado legislation was adopted but implementegutations made clear the application of the ndesranly to investments made after
passage. There can be no assurance that we wiensibject to further legislative or regulatorfi@t which might adversely impact our Ca|
business, or that we will be able to successfuigilenge any such action.

Because our Capcos are subject to requirements undstate law, a failure of any of them to meet theseequirements could subject the
Capco and our shareholders to the loss of one or m@Capcos.

We have met all applicable requirements of the @ggvograms in which we participate. Nonethelessabse each Capco remains subject to
state regulation until it has invested 100 percdiis funds and otherwise remained in full legainpliance, there can be no assurance that we
will continue to be able to do so. A major regutgteiolation, while not fatal to our Capco businessuld materially increase the cost of
operating the Capcos.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR COMMON SHARES
Our shares may be delisted.

If we do not continue to meet the requirementstortinued listing on the NASDAQ Capital Market @ammon shares could be delisted. One
such requirement is maintaining a minimum bid pfareshares of $1.00. As compliance with the mimmtuading price for common shares is
beyond our control, there can be no assurancéttaatrice will remain above $1.00 indefinitely atlierefore, no assurance that the threat of
delisting can be avoided. In the event that thernomshares are delisted, there can be no assutatan active public market for our shares
can be sustained or that current trading levelsbeasustained or not diminished.
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The application of the “penny stock” rules to our @mmon shares if we are no longer listed on the NASID) Capital Market could limit
the trading and liquidity of the common shares, adersely affect the market price of our Common Shareand increase your transaction
costs to sell those shares.

If we are no longer listed on the NASDAQ Capitalrkit, as long as the trading price of our commaretis below $5.00 per share, open-
market trading will be subject to the “penny stocldes, which impose additional sales practice ireguents on broker-dealers who sell
securities to persons other than established cestoand accredited investors and otherwise haveftéet of limiting the trading activity of tt
common shares, reducing the liquidity of an invesitrin the common shares and increasing the traosasts for their sales and purchases.

Two of our shareholders, one a current and one a fmer executive officer, beneficially own approximaely 24% of our common shares,
and are able to exercise significant influence oveéhe outcome of most shareholder actions.

Although there is no agreement or understandingésen them, because of their ownership of our shstessrs. Sloane and Rubin will be a
to have significant influence over actions requgrghareholder approval, including the electionicéators, the adoption of amendments to the
certificate of incorporation, approval of stockémtive plans and approval of major transactions stsca merger or sale of assets. This could
delay or prevent a change in control of our compaeyrive our shareholders of an opportunity t@ereea premium for their common shares
as part of a change in control and have a negaffeet on the market price of our common shares.

Future issuances of our common shares or other satties, including preferred shares, may dilute theper share book value of our
common shares or have other adverse consequence®tw common shareholders.

Our board of directors has the authority, withdug &ction or vote of our shareholders, to issuergtiart of the approximately 19,000,000
authorized but unissued shares of our common s@gkbusiness strategy relies upon investmentadraaquisitions of businesses using the
resources available to us, including our commomeshaVe have made acquisitions during each of ¢éaesyfrom 2002 to 2005 involving the
issuance of our common shares, and we expect te additional acquisitions in the future using oomenon shares. Additionally, we
anticipate granting additional options or restiicstock awards to our employees and directorsariutture. We may also issue additional
securities, through public or private offeringspiler to raise capital to support our growth, ukahg in connection with possible acquisitions
or in connection with purchases of minority intésda affiliated companies or Capcos. Future issaarof our common shares will dilute the
percentage of ownership interest of current shaddein® and could decrease the per share book valmg @ommon shares. In addition, option
holders may exercise their options at a time whemwuld otherwise be able to obtain additional ggcapital on more favorable terms.

Pursuant to our certificate of incorporation, ooald of directors is authorized to issue, withatitcm or vote of our shareholders, up to
1,000,000 shares of “blank check” preferred shanesning that our board of directors may, in itctition, cause the issuance of one or more
series of preferred shares and fix the designatjmmeserences, powers and relative participatipgipoal and other rights, qualifications,
limitations and restrictions thereof, including tiigidend rate, conversion rights, voting righesdemption rights and liquidation preference,
and to fix the number of shares to be includechinsuch series. The preferred shares so issuedankysuperior to the common shares with
respect to the payment of dividends or amounts Uigaidation, dissolution or winding-up, or botm &ddition, the shares of preferred stock
may have class or series voting rights.

The authorization and issuance of “blank check” préerred shares could have an anti-takeover effect deémental to the interests of our
shareholders.

Our certificate of incorporation allows our boaffdd@ectors to issue preferred shares with righid preferences set by the board without
further shareholder approval. The issuance of thadsek check” preferred shares could have an @kiover effect detrimental to the interests
of our shareholders. For example, in the eventlaisiile takeover attempt, it may be possible fanagement and the board to impede the
attempt by issuing the preferred shares, therdbgir or impairing the voting power of the othertstanding common shares and increasing
the potential costs to acquire control of us. Caarld has the right to issue any new shares, intdugieferred shares, without first offering
them to the holders of common shares, as they hayeeemptive rights.
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We know of no other publicly-held company that sposors and operates Capcos as a material part of ilsisiness. As such, there are, to
our knowledge, no other companies against which imstors may compare our Capco business, operationesults of operations and
financial and accounting structures.

In the absence of any meaningful peer group corepasi for our Capco business, investors may hafieutl time understanding and judging
the strength of our business. This, in turn, mayehadepressing effect on the value of our shares.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation andNew York law place restrictions on our shareholdersability to recover from our
directors for breaches of their duties.

As permitted by New York law, our amended and testaertificate of incorporation limits the lialtyliof our directors for monetary damages
for breach of a director’s fiduciary duty except fi@ability in certain instances. As a result oéfle provisions and New York law, shareholders
have restrictions and limitations upon their rigiwtsecover from directors for breaches of thetieu In addition, our certificate of
incorporation provides that we must indemnify oectors and officers to the fullest extent peredtby law.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
Not applicable

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We conduct our principal business activities inlfaes leased from unrelated parties at marketgaOur headquarters are located in New Y
New York. Our operating subsidiaries have propentiich are material to the conduct of their bussnas noted below. In addition, our Caj
maintain offices in each of the states in whictytbperate.

Below is a list of our leased offices and spacefddecember 31, 2010 which are material to the aohdf our business:

Location Lease expiratior Purpose Approx. sq. ft
Lease of principa

1440 Broadway executive offices

New York, New York 1001 October 201 (Corporate activities and 23,000
SBA lending)
1125 W. Pinnacle Peak , .
Phoenix, AZ 8502 January 201 Web hosting office: 15,000
8521 E. Princess Drive .
Phoenix, AZ 8525! June 2014 Web hosting data center 6,000
744 North 4th St. Electronic paymer
Milwaukee, WI 5320¢ March 2012 processing WI office 14,300
Newtek Insuranc
; S Agency, customer
SOTMexicoiSirect, Suite kA June 2017 service and sales support 17,500

Brownsville, TX 78520 offices

(All Other segment

Newtek Business Credit
May 2013 offices (Lending segment) 5,300
NY Capco offices

60 Hempstead Avent
West Hempstead, NY 11552

We believe that our leased facilities are adegtateeet our current needs and that additionalifeslare available to meet our development
and expansion needs in existing and projected ttangekets.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company firwai time to time be party to lawsuits and claifile Company evaluates such matters on
a case by case basis and its policy is to conigstausly any claims it believes are without
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compelling merit. The Company is currently invohiadvarious litigation matters. Management haseeed all legal claims against the
Company with counsel and has taken into considerdlie views of such counsel, as to the outconteeo€laims. In management’s opinion,
final disposition of all such claims will not hagematerial adverse effect on the results of oparaticash flows or financial position of the
Company.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY A ND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

(a) Market Information: Our common stock is traadedthe NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “NEWHigh and low prices for the
common stock over the previous two years are st felow, based on the highest and lowest tragif@e during that period.

Period High Low

First Quarter: January 1, 2009 Through March 309 $0.41 $0.2C
Second Quarter: April 1, 2009 Through June 30, Z $0.62 $0.2¢
Third Quarter: July 1, 2009 Through September 809 $0.6¢ $0.34
Fourth Quarter: October 1, 2009 Through Decembge23029 $0.9¢ $0.5E
First Quarter: January 1, 2010 Through March 310 $1.34 $0.92
Second Quarter: April 1, 2010 Through June 30, Z $1.54 $1.24
Third Quarter: July 1, 2010 Through September 8Q0. $1.45 $1.07
Fourth Quarter: October 1, 2010 Through Decembge2310 $1.7¢ $1.32

(b) Holders: As of March 15, 2011 there were appnately 207 holders of record of our common stock.

(c) Dividends: In November 2009 the Company deda&0.02 dividend per share. Any future deternmeto pay cash and stock dividends
will be at the discretion of our board of directarsd will be dependent upon our financial conditioperating results, capital requirements and
other factors that our board of directors considgropriate. Except as set forth above, no divddemere declared or paid in 2009 or 2010.

(d) Securities authorized for issuance under equgtypensation plans:

(@
Number of securities
to

(c) B
Number of securities

be issued Upon exercic ) (b) remaini_ng available for
P Weighted-average future issuance under
exercise price of equity compensation plan
of outstanding options outstanding options

(excluding securities
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))

Equity compensation plans approved by security

holders 1,256,403 shar $ 1.24/shar 4,279,412 shar
Equity compensation plans not approved by sec
holders None None None

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.
Not applicable
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.
Introduction and Certain Cautionary Statements

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations is intendedssist in the understanding and
assessment of significant changes and trends rketatéhe results of operations and financial pasitof the Company together with its
subsidiaries. This discussion and analysis shoslddad in conjunction with the consolidated finahatatements and the accompanying notes.

The statements in this Annual Report may contaimdial-looking statements relating to such mattessaaticipated future financial
performance, business prospects, legislative dewedmts and similar matters. The Private Securltiigation Reform Act of 1995 provides
safe harbor for forward-looking statements. In arttecomply with the terms of the safe harbor, wterthat a variety of factors could cause
our actual results to differ materially from thetaipated results expressed in the forward looksteggements such as intensified competition
and/or operating problems in its operating businpsgjects and their impact on revenues and profitgims or additional factors as described
in Newtek Business Services’ previously filed tegfion statements as more fully described undaskRFactors” above.

We also need to point out that our Capcos operatieta different set of rules in each of the sqguerdictions and that these place varying
requirements on the structure of our investmemtsome cases, particularly in Louisiana, we doottrol the equity or management of a
qualified business but that cannot always be preskarally or in written presentations.

Executive Overview

The Company is pleased to report its return toitadaifity in 2010 due to its efforts to increasdesaand the resumption of lending to small
businesses.

For the year ended December 31, 2010 we recordddamene of $1,439,000 on revenues of $112,719,086.net income improved
$1,868,000 over the net loss of $(429,000) in 2@d8tax income was $877,000, a $4,879,000 improunemeer the $(4,002,000) pretax los:
2009. Total revenues increased by $7,008,000,686.6rom $105,711,000 for the year ended Decembge2@09 principally due to increased
revenues in the Electronic payment processing, Wésting, and Small business finance segments dffsdecreases in revenues from the All
other and Capco segments. In addition, the Smalhess finance segment recognized a $3,494,000dkie gain primarily for the guaranteed
portions of SBA 7(a) loans transferred in secondaayket transactions that did not achieve sal¢gssta 2010. Total expenses increased
$4,761,000 to $115,374,000 for the year ended 2@h9 $110,613,000 for 2009: increases in electrpaigment processing costs, salaries and
benefits, provision for loan loss, and other gehand administrative costs were offset by decreasegerest and depreciation and
amortization.

The Company'’s effective tax rate was a benefit8¥fo4or the year. Although the Company had constéidigaxable income, the income from
NSBF was offset by NOLs that it previously had &ation allowance on. The Company used all of ésgive losses in 2010 to offset taxe
income generated primarily by Capco timing diffasest The Company expects to use its remaining NOR811 and is currently estimating
that it will pay taxes in 2011.

Contributing to the pretax income of $877,000 i1@0a $4,879,000 improvement over the $(4,002,p68px loss in 2009, were
improvements in pretax income for the Electronigrpant processing, Web hosting, Small business f@aand Capco segments offset by an
increased loss in the All other and Corporate segsndlthough the Electronic payment processingrs®ag gross margins continued to
decrease on a percentage basis due to competitiskeehconditions and continued reliance on indepahdales agents offset by growth in fee
income, growth of merchant counts and processithgnves resulted in a $1,391,000 gain in dollar mamyier 2009. The improved pretax
income in the Web hosting segment resulted fromesmed sales including fees from web design anateztlexpenses, primarily a reductiot
depreciation and amortization.

One of the primary drivers for Newtek’s return rofgtability was the operation of the Small busiaé®ance segment which generated an
increase in pretax income of $4,340,000 to $2,@%i0 2010 from a pretax loss of $(2,295,000) i020The Small business finance segment
utilized the Company’s business model to capitadizea positive operating environment due to impdopecing in the secondary market for
guaranteed loan sales, the availability of a 90%ranty rate program for SBA 7(a) loans in operatammost of 2010, and demand for loans
from borrowers due to the shortage of loans praVvioke conventional lenders, to increase loan oriipng, loan servicing and receivables
financing. The segment
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originated $65,655,000 of SBA 7(a) loans overalirfquarters of 2010 as opposed to $16,220,00thatied mainly during the fourth quarter
of 2009. In addition, the segment continued to fiefrem a contract with the Federal Deposit Inswra Corporation to provide consulting
services in connection with failures of banks ha¢dSBA guaranteed loans and to provide servicinfpage loans. In 2010, the segment’s
lender, Newtek Small Business Finance, receivesklett servicer” rating from Standard & Poor’s $ervicing small business loans.

The lending operations of the Small business firasegment materially affected all aspects of Nelstelksh flows in 2010. The Company L
$2,208,000 of cash from operations for the yeaedridecember 31, 2010: additional volume of tramsteguaranteed portions at year end
2010 relative to 2009 increased amounts due frarkedrs by $5,591,000 and the segment’s receivalrlanding company increased receivable
purchases which contributed a $4,982,000 increasethe year ended December 31, 2009. Investingitées used $6,336,000 primarily to
fund $8,244,000 of SBA 7(a) unguaranteed portifirgancing activities generated $6,345,000 primaeRecting proceeds from the
Company’s December securitization of the unguasghpmrtions of SBA 7(a) loans, the proceeds of tviwere used to extinguish a term loan
from Capital One bank which in turn had extingustige lender's GE warehouse lending facility in M40, the use of the new Capital One
bank revolving facility to fund guaranteed porti@fsSBA 7(a) loans, and an increase in borrowindeurihe Wells Fargo facility used to
finance purchases of accounts receivable. As dtefsthese activities, cash and cash equivaleatsehsed $2,199,000 from $12,581,000 on
December 31, 2009 to $10,382,000 on December 30.20

In December 2010, the Company issued $16 millio8tahdard & Poor’'s AA rated notes to securitizegipn of its unguaranteed, retained
loan portions of its SBA 7(a) loans and used tlee@eds from that financing to extinguish the renmgimportion of the Capital One term loar
the SBA lender and to generate cash for lendingatioms. Although the success of the securitizatimvides a long term funding source for
the Company’s SBA lender, the securitization me@@marntself does not provide liquidity in the shtetm for funding SBA loans. Therefore,
the SBA lender, because its resources will be fitseht to maintain current SBA loan originatiomsthe latter part of 2011 under anticipated
conditions, is working with lenders to obtain amiidnal credit facility.

On October 1, 2010, the Company elected to utitizefair value option for SBA 7(a) loans fundedasrafter that date. Management believed
that doing so would promote its effort to both slifypand make more transparent its financial staeta by better portraying the true economic
value of this asset on its balance sheet and s¢aeof operations. Although the fair value electi®ifor the entire SBA 7(a) loan, the Company
primarily sells the guaranteed portions at the detign of funding. The need to record the fair wafar the guaranteed portion of the loan will
primarily occur under two circumstances: for guséead portions that were not transferred at periat(6SBA loans held for sale”) and for
loans transferred in the secondary market thahdidichieve sale status under ASC Topic 860 (“S@s$ transferred, subject to recourse”).
The unguaranteed portion retained is recorded UiBtA loans held for investment”.

Effective January 1, 2010, a new accounting stahdadified into ASC Topic 860, “Transfers and Seiwy,” requires for the guaranteed
portions transferred that the Company, due to thenpjum warranty formerly incorporated in SBA For@86 (see the discussion above),
establish a new asset related to the guarante¢édmpof SBA 7(a) loans contractually sold but sabj® premium recourse and a matching
liability until the end of the warranty period. Gemporaneous with the adoption of this new accogndtandard the Company elected the fair
value option for valuing this new liability, whidh captioned in the consolidated financial stateimias “Liability on SBA loans transferred,
subject to premium recourse.” At the time, manageretected to adopt the fair value option electiecause it more accurately reflected the
economics of the transaction. After February 7,12@e new SBA Form 1086 will allow the Companyeaognize premium income
concurrent with the date of transfer, as was doiwe o January 1, 2010. As a result, the balamté3ecember 31, 2010 in “SBA loans
transferred, subject to premium recourse” and “litgton SBA loans transferred, subject to premitenourse” will decrease throughout 2011
with the expectation that they will reach zero p@mber 30, 2011.

Finally, during the course of 2010 Wilshire AlabaRertners, LLC reached the 100% investment thrdsholaddition, the Company expect:
dissolve Wilshire Partners, LLC, which has alsoi@eéd its programmatic goals, subsequent to the Eforida Capco law sunsets on
December 31, 2010.
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Business Segment Results:
The results of the Company’s reportable businegmeats are discussed below.

Electronic Payment Processing

% Change

(In thousands): 2010 2009 2008 201C 200¢
Revenue

Electronic payment processi $80,92( $69,65. $63,27° 16% 10%

Interest incom 16 37 79 (57%) (53%)

Total revenu 80,93¢ 69,68¢ 63,35¢ 16% 10%

Expenses

Electronic payment processing cc 68,17% 58,29¢ 51,10¢ 17% 14%

Salaries and benefi 4,101 4,094 3,96¢ 0% 3%

Professional fee 34¢€ 267 32¢ 3%  (19%)

Depreciation and amortizatic 1,632 1,75¢ 2,72¢ (7%) (36%)

Other general and administrative cc 962 921 88¢ 5% 1%
Total expense 75,21¢ 65,33t 59,01¢ 15% 11%
Income before income tax $571¢ $4355 $433 31% _ 0%
2010

Electronic payment processing revenue increase@®62000 or 16% between periods due to the impagtoavth in organic revenue of 17%
while revenues from acquired portfolios decreaseatal growth in revenues by 1% between periodstduserchant attrition and other factc
The growth in organic revenue was due to a comionatf growth in processing volumes, selectiveifegeases and additional fee-based
services provided to our merchants. Processingweduwere favorably impacted by an increase in teesge number of merchants under
contract between periods of 7%. In addition, orgaavenue between periods increased due to areseE approximately 6% in the average
monthly processing volume per merchant. The ineréashe average monthly processing volume per naetcis due in part to the addition of
several larger volume processing merchants asasgikeriod-oveperiod growth in processing volumes from existingramants. The remainil
increase in organic revenue is due to selectivén@eases, principally reflecting the pass throafjbct to merchants of corresponding fee
increases by both VISA and Master Card , and theahservices provided to our merchants.

Electronic payment processing costs increased 8380 or 17% between years. Electronic paymentgssing costs resulting from acquired
portfolios had the overall effect of decreasinghsoasts by approximately 1% between periods dumeichant attrition and other factors.
Organic electronic payment processing costs hadffieet of increasing electronic payment processiogf by 18% between periods.
Processing revenues less electronic payment piingessst (“margin”) decreased approximately .6%frd6.3% in 2009 to 15.7% in 2010. A
lower contribution to margin from acquired portédicontributed .6% to the decline in margin. Arr@ase in residual payments made to ce
high volume third-party sales referral sources tedgrowth of such third-party sales on a saleshmsbis resulted in a reduction of the margin
by 1.0%. Partially offsetting the aforementionedtéas were margin improvements totaling approxityasted%. Such margin improvements
included negotiated cost reductions with the Comgisaprincipal transaction processor, the introductdf new, higher margin products and
services, as well as rate increases for certaioggsing services. The increase in margin dollass$12391,000 between periods.

Excluding electronic payment processing costs,rathsts increased $5,000 or .1% between periodsddmtion and amortization costs
decreased $122,000 between periods as the requkibusly acquired portfolio intangible assetsdraing fully amortized between periods.
Remaining costs increased $127,000 or 2.4% pritigipesulting from efforts to identify customer s&re improvement opportunities and to
support the growth in the number of merchants sebetween periods.

Income before income taxes increased $1,365,08Q%rto $5,718,000 in 2010 from $4,353,000 in 200¥increase in the dollar margin of
operating revenues less EPP processing costs dine teasons noted above coupled with a lowerofatecrease in other expenses resulted in
the increase in income before income taxes betywesnds.

2009

Electronic payment processing revenue increase&7$@00 or 10% between years principally due tootherall impact of growth in organic
revenue of approximately 11% while revenues frogu@ed portfolios decreased overall revenue grdwthii% between periods due to
merchant attrition and other factors. The growtbriganic revenue was partially due to the impa&roincrease in the average number of
merchants under contract between years of 10%avVéege monthly processing volume per merchanéased less than 1% between years.

Electronic payment processing costs increased $000 or 14% between years. Electronic paymentgsging costs resulting from acquired
portfolios had the overall effect of decreasinghsoasts by approximately 2% between periods dumeeichant attrition and other
factors. Organic electronic payment processingsdaatl the effect of increasing total
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electronic payment processing cost by 16% betweansy Processing revenues less electronic paymacggsing cost (“margin”) declined
approximately 3.0% from 19.3% in 2008 to 16.3% @®2. In 2008, electronic payment processing costgieduced by $250,000 due to a
reduction of a reserve recorded in 2007 for a ahdpark loss relating to one merchant. The $250;,860ction in charge-back cost between
years reduced the margin by .4% between yearswArlgontribution to margin from acquired portfolioantributed an additional .3% to t
decline in margin. The remaining decline in mamfir2.3% is attributable to lower fee levels chargeed number of new and existing
merchants because of competitive pricing pressamdgo increased contractual residual rates pasdiee third-party sales referral sources
coupled with the impact on margin of the mix of nex@rchants sold by such third-parties.

Excluding electronic payment processing costs,rathsts decreased $878,000 between years incl$di®®,000 resulting from an impairment
loss in 2008. Other costs excluding the effechefimpairment provision in 2008 decreased $390¢00 Y between years. Depreciation and
amortization cost (excluding the impairment praosisin 2008) further decreased $487,000 betweersy@&he $487,000 decrease in
depreciation and amortization cost is principalledo a previously acquired portfolio intangibleetsbecoming fully amortized during

2009. Remaining costs increased $97,000 betwees gsahe result of an increase in the use andofastrvices related to information
technology and an increase in advertising costsdsst years. Increases in personnel related costtodyrowth in sales and customer positions
were substantially offset by reduced use of outpidéessional services and reductions in otheraipey costs.

Income before income taxes increased $15,000 853400 in 2009 from $4,338,000 in 2008. The desméa the dollar margin of operating
revenues less EPP processing costs was only gligiatle than offset by cost reductions between yieaother expenses, principally
amortization costs.

Web Hosting
% Change
(In thousands): 2010 2009 2008 201C 2009
Revenue
Web hostinc $19,16¢ $18,84¢ $18,06« 2% 4%
Interest incom 4 12 24 (67)% (50)%
Total revenu 19,16¢ 18,85¢ 18,08¢ 2% 4%
Expenses
Salaries and benefi 4,91( 5,04z 4,69¢ ()% 7%
Interest 107 12: 83 (139% 48%
Professional fee 551 28C 10z 97% 172%
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,82¢ 2,57¢ 3,23C (299% (200%
Other general and administrative cc 7,042 6,91: 6,64: 2% 1%
Total expense 14,43¢ 14,93 14,75 )% 1%
Income before income tax $473C $392F $333 21% _18%
2010

This segment derives revenue primarily from recgrifees from hosting websites, including monthigteacts for shared hosting, dedicated
servers, and virtual instances (the “plangVeb hosting revenue between periods increased @308pr 2%, to $19,164,000 for 2010 over 2
due to improved revenue per plan (see below), acggmowth of hosted virtual instances, and an iaseein the sales of custom website
development services. NTS sales promotions andcgeand plan enhancements failed to prevent Idssglan counts but did help to maintain
revenue. Web design revenue grew approximately $2P0o $356,000 for 2010 from $136,000 for 200@nlslgement’s intent is to grow
revenues through higher service offerings to custsrto drive greater revenue and margin per plémwgh this may result in a lower number
of plans sold overall.

The increase in revenue reflects an increase irageaevenue per plan of 9% to $314.55 from $286ffket by a decrease in the average
monthly number of total plans by 4,258 for 201@aspared to 2009, or 7%, to 60,926 from 65,184.rawpment in revenue per plan
primarily reflects the growth in virtual instancesistomers purchasing higher-cost plans, and intijiadditional options and services. The
average monthly number of dedicated server plangdb0, which generate a higher monthly fee vestiased hosting plans, decreased by 29
between periods, or 1%, to an average of 2,146 #dm5 for 2009. The average monthly number ofesth&aosting plans for 2010 decrease
4,278, or 7%, to an average of 58,587 from 62,882009. The average monthly number of virtualdnst plans increased by 46, or 31%, to
an average of 193 from 147 for 2009. Increased etitigm from other web hosting providers as welb#srnative website services continue to
have a negative effect on plan count growth whictuin limits revenue growth.
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Total segment expenses decreased by 3%, or $49m00® year ended 2010 over the prior year. Thgrity of the decrease between peri
reflects a decrease in salaries and benefits d $08, a decrease in depreciation and amortizafi®747,000 and a decrease in interest
expense of $16,000 partially offset by an incraasgther general and administrative costs of $12®,@nainly due to an increase in utility
costs, and an increase in professional fees of #2091 The $174,000 decrease in salaries and bemedit primarily due to a reduction of
headcount between years offset slightly by an esmen health insurance premiums. The $747,00@&dserin depreciation and amortization
was primarily due approximately $439,000 of amatian expense in the prior year that did not reo@c2010 relating to the intangible assets
(the customer account and non-compete covenanttfrertime of acquisition) being fully amortizedJaine 30, 2009 and the slowing of capital
expenditures as a result of more efficient usénefaxisting equipment within the datacenter. THEI$200 increase in professional fees is
primarily due to the increase in web design castdiiect connection with the additional serviceesofig to customers for custom website
development.

Income before income taxes increased 21% or $805@®®4,730,000 for 2010 from $3,925,000 for 2008 improvement in profitability
primarily resulted from the increase in web hostmgl web related services revenue combined witceedse in total expenses. The increa
the sales of custom website development servicegalith the slowing of capital expenditures angititangible assets having been fully
amortized in the prior year contributed to the ioy@ment in income in 2010.

2009

Web hosting revenue between periods increased @0@2or 4%, to $18,846,000 for 2009 over 2008 duenproved revenue per plan and
organic growth of hosted virtual instances, whidswa new service offering successfully launchetiérthird quarter of 2008. NTS sales
promotions and service and plan enhancements failddve growth in plans but did help to improexenue.

The increase in revenue reflects an increase irageaevenue per plan of 9% to $289.12 from $266ftset by a decrease in the average
number of total plans by 2,844 for 2009 as compéweaD08, or 4%, to 65,184 from 68,028. Improveniemevenue per plan primarily reflects
the greater growth in virtual instances, custongeasitating towards higher-end services combingtl wilditional options, and is also a result
of a price change to our lowest priced plan intttiel quarter of 2008. The average number of deeétaerver plans, which generate a higher
monthly fee versus shared hosting plans, decrdas86 between periods, or 4%, to an average of2p&f month from an average of

2,258 per month for 2008. The average number akshaosting plans decreased 2,890, or 4%, to atagwef 62,865 per month for 2009,
from an average of 65,755 per month for 2008. Téed in decreasing total shared and dedicatedqgolants began in the fourth quarter of
2008. This change in trend reflects the contingognomic conditions, which started impacting thé Wwesting segment in the fourth quarte
2008, along with increased competition, a delilepaice increase by the hosting division to imprprfitability of the lowest priced plans,
and the move of high-end shared users and low-editated users to the virtual instance plan.

Total segment expenses increased by 1%, or $1808Gbmpared to the 4%, or $782,000, growth iemaes for 2009. The majority of the
1% or $180,000 increase in expenses between pegfidsts an increase in other general and admiériigé costs of $270,000, an increase in
salaries and benefits of $348,000, an increasetémast expense of $40,000, and an increase iegmiohal fees of $177,000 offset by a
decrease in depreciation and amortization expeh$655,000. The increase in other general and adtrative costs was primarily due to a
$77,000 increase in SSL certificates and domaitscas$129,000 increase in rent and utilities, @30 increase in marketing, a $25,000
increase in processing costs, a $45,000 increas#ide and other costs and a $116,000 increabadndebt expense, mainly attributable to the
poor economic environment. The increases weretdfigeart by an $81,000 decrease in internet amgheonications, a result of renegotiations
of internet and telephone contracts, and an apprate decrease of $76,000 in licenses and pernaitari€s and benefits increased $348,000, at
a higher rate than revenue growth mainly due tdrtbesase in benefit costs. The $655,000 decreaedegreciation and amortization was
primarily due to the intangible assets (the customeeount and non-compete covenant from the tingeqgbisition) being fully amortized at
June 30, 2009 and the slowing of capital expenetitas a result of consolidation efforts in the sti@egment to allow for more efficient use of
the already existing equipment within the dataceatel the decrease in the number of dedicated Sitesincrease of $177,000 in professional
fees was due to higher legal and audit fees in 2009

Income before income taxes increased 18% or $500M$3,925,000 for 2009 from $3,335,000 for 200 improvement in profitability
primarily resulted from increased web site plarerawe; effectively, imbedded rent, utility and safter licensing fees contributed more reve
The slowing of capital expenditures and the intalggassets becoming fully amortized in the firdf bathe year contributed to the
improvement in income as well in 2009. Due to mamagnt’s focus on cost efficiency, continued groimthevenue should result in improved
future profits and margins.
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Small Business Finance

% Change
(In thousands): 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009
Revenue
Premium on loan sale $ 2,42¢ $ 1,652 $ 474 47% 24%%
Servicing fee 2,56¢ 1,62¢ 1,771 58% (8)%
Interest incomt 1,745 1,50z 2,644 1€% (43)%
Management fee 58t 58t 58E — % — %
Other income 2,045 1,94: 1,87¢ 5% 3%
Total revenue 9,371 7,30¢ 7,35: 28% (D)%
Net change in fair value ¢
SBA loans transferred, subject to premium reco 3,741 — — — % — %
SBA loans held for sal 32 — — — % — %
SBA loans held for investme (28E) — — — % — %
Total net change in fair valt 3,494 — — — % — %
Expenses
Salaries and benefi 3,62( 2,92( 4,29¢ 24% (32)%
Interest 1,91¢ 1,48t 2,107 29% (30)%
Management fee 46C 46( 46C — % — %
Professional fee 45C 364 38C 24% (D%
Depreciation and amortizatic 79C 931 1,12z (15% (17)%
Goodwill impairment — — 774 — % (100%
Provision for loan los 1,84¢ 1,83: 2,53( 1% (28)%
Other general and administrative cc 1,73¢ 1,61( 1,831 8% (12)%
Total expense 10,82( 9,60: 13,50! 13% (29%
Income (loss) before income tax $ 2,04f $(2,295) $(6,14¢) 18% = (63%
2010

Revenue is derived primarily from premium incomeerated by the sale of the guaranteed and ungeapbrtions of SBA loans.
Additionally, the Company derives revenue fromiag income on SBA loans held for investment amd¢hawaiting sale recognition under
ASC Topic 860 “Transfers and Servicing”, servicfieg income on the guaranteed portions of SBA Igaiagiously sold, servicing income for
loans originated by other lenders for which NSBEhis servicer, and financing and billing serviadassified as other income above, provided
by NBC. Most SBA loans originated by NSBF chargerderest rate equal to the Prime rate plus antiaddil percentage amount; the interest
rate resets to the current Prime rate on a mowthfjuarterly basis, which will result in changeghe amount of interest accrued for that month
and going forward and a re-amortization of a loggrdgment amount until maturity.

The implementation of ASC Topic 860 “Transfers &wmvicing”, which became effective January 1, 2013 delayed the recognition of
premium income for sales of the guaranteed portidr&BA loans. In 2010 and prior, SBA Form 1086uieed, as part of the transferor’s
representations and warranties, that the transfepaty any premium received from the transferedlier the SBA 7(a) loan borrower prepays
the loan within 90 days of the transfer settlentie or fails to make one of its first three lo@yments after the settlement date in a timely
fashion and then proceeds to default within 275day
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of the settlement date. Under ASC Topic 860, secburse precludes sale treatment of the transfguarhnteed portions during this warranty
period; rather NSBF is required to account for Hisa financing arrangement with the transferedil the warranty period expires such
transferred loans are classified as “SBA loanssfiemed, subject to premium recourse” with a maighiability “Liability on SBA loans
transferred, subject to premium recourse.” In Jan@@11, the US Small Business Administration issaaotice stating that Form 1086 would
be revised to remove all reference to a warrantipgdor loans sold in the secondary market. Thiange became effective February 7, 2011
and allows the Company to recognize premium incoameurrent with the date of transfer, as was doite o January 1, 2010. As a result of
this, the balances at December 31, 2010 in “SBAddeansferred, subject to premium recourse” andbility on SBA loans transferred,
subject to premium recourse” will decrease througl2®11 with the expectation that they will reaeinaby September 30, 2011.

On January 1, 2010, the Company elected the faiewaption for valuing “Liability on SBA loans traferred, subject to premium recourse.”
On October 1, 2010, the Company elected to utitizefair value option for SBA 7(a) loans fundedarrafter that date. As a result, the
Company recorded changes in the fair value fogtleanteed portions that were not transferredrddghend (“SBA loans held for sale”) and
for loans transferred in the secondary marketdithhot achieve sale status under ASC Topic 8684 '®ans transferred, subject to
recourse”). At the expiration of the warranty pdrithe sale of the guaranteed portions of theseslaa well as the corresponding gain is
recognized into premium income, and the assetiabdity eliminated.

On October 1, 2010, the Company elected to utilizefair value option for SBA 7(a) loans fundedasrafter that date. For loans funded on or
after October 1, 2010, the income statement nowarségs the revenue and expense components mixegrarhium on loan sales: premium on
loan sales equals the cash premium and servicsed paid by purchaser in the secondary marketligo®unt created on the unguaranteed
portion run through a fair value line item, andrmt capitalizing various transaction expenses #grg and benefit and loan processing costs
expense lines portray a value closer to the cashtomperate the lending business.

The Company recognized $2,428,000 in premium incfumthe twelve months ended December 31, 2010rasudt the expiration of the
warranty period for 54 guaranteed loan sales rae#25,966,000. Also during this period, the Conypaansferred 47 guaranteed loans
aggregating $39,689,000; however, as discussedceabioy recognition of the premium revenue from¢hteansfers is delayed into future
periods until the sale can be recognized. The Compapects to recognize the premium income on ttrassfers in 2011, offset by a fair
value loss of approximately the same amount. Gfeh81 loans totaling $21,212,000 transferred sjlesd to September 30, 2010 were
measured at fair value.

Premium income for the year ended December 31, gfiad $1,652,000, resulting from 33 guarantead Isales aggregating $19,941,000.
As a result of the dislocation in the secondaryketduring 2009, the premium on the guaranteedsisald dropped to par and the servicing
component increased to over 4.2% during the yedegdDecember 31, 2009. In order to more approfyiatdue the servicing asset, in 2009
the Company applied a discounted cash flow modeichwuses valuation techniques to convert futurewats to a single present amount ar
based on the value indicated by current marketaagiens about those future amounts. The premiumeeladuring 2009 is reflective of this
valuation method of the newly created servicinggsdn 2010 the Company reverted back to the sttifliple method for loans that achieved
sale status.

Servicing fee income related to SBA loans incredse#i939,000 for the year ended December 31, 20&Qdmarily to the addition $784,000
of servicing income associated with loans servicedthers under a new contract entered into aettteof 2009. Additionally, the average
NSBF servicing portfolio increased from $125,290,66r the twelve months ended December 31, 2009eoed to $142,719,000 for t
current period resulting in an additional $281,@08ervicing income and reflecting NSBF’s reneweal originations starting in the fourth
quarter of 2009. These increases were partiallgeotiy a decrease of $126,000 related to servioingnother financial institution that
terminated their contract with NSBF in November 200

Interest income increased by $244,000 due to ttwgration of $440,000 of interest earned from SBAns transferred, subject to recourse
during the twelve months ended December 31, 2043. ificrease was partially offset by a reductiomierest income associated with a
decrease in the average outstanding performindgtiorof SBA loans held for investment from $22,28@0 for the year ended December 31,
2009 to $21,753,000 for the year ended Decembe2(B0: this reduction primarily reflects that ttddaion of loans under the 90% guaranty
program could not offset the normal principal paads of the loan portfolio. In addition, a $70,0@@uction in interest income was
recognized during 2010 as a result of previousgeized interest income being reversed as a rekldaas being transferred into
nonperforming status. Total interest income on $oagld for investment was $1,307,000 and $1,503{@0the years ended December 31, 2
and 2009, respectively.
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Prior to September 30, 2010, certain related duests to originate loans were deferred and aneattizer the contractual life of the SBA loan
using a method that approximates the effectiverdstemethod. Subsequent to September 30, 201Qdimpany began recording the
origination of loans based on the fair value metiwbith requires the upfront expensing of such dicests. This change is not expected to
have a material impact on interest income on fupeméods.

Other income increased by $104,000 due primarihéoaddition of consulting income associated wh#FDIC contract, which totaled
$128,000 as well as the net addition of ten newofary clients at NBC resulting in an additionaB32000 of related income. The increases
were predominately offset by a nonrecurring recpwdi$175,000 in 2009 related to the reversal pfeviously recorded liability associated
with the expectation of a settlement for less thaticipated, as well as reductions in late payraedtother loan-related income at NSBF and
NBC of $74,000. Additionally, billing services reuge earned by NBC decreased by $55,000; the avatagber of billing service custome
decreased by 6 from an average of 80 to an avefaggeduring the respective twelve months of 2008 2010.

On January 1, 2010, the Company elected the faievaption for valuing “Liability on SBA loans traferred, subject to premium recourse.”
On October 1, 2010, the Company elected to utilizefair value option for SBA 7(a) loans fundedasrafter that date and fair valued the
“SBA loans held for sale” and “SBA loans transfelirsubject to recourse” assets created on or ¢ date. The Company recorded a fair
value gain of $3,747,000 related to “SBA loans ¢farred, subject to recourse” and “Liability on SB¥ans transferred, subject to premium
recourse”. At the expiration of the warranty peritte sale of the guaranteed portions of theseslaarwell as the corresponding gain is
recognized into premium income, the asset andiligleliminated and the fair value gain will become equivalent fair value loss. In addition,
the Company recorded a fair value gain of $32,@00$BA loans held for sale”. Changes in loans Hetdnvestment which have been
measured at fair value are represented as “Faievadjustment on SBA loans held for investmentBsgguent to September 30, 2010, loans
originated and held for investment aggregated &® with a corresponding fair value loss of $288,

Salaries and benefits increased by $724,000 priynduie to the addition of staff in the originatiregrvicing and liquidation departments of
NSBF in connection with the resumption of lendihgttbegan in the third quarter of 2009 as wellremearease in staff to service outs
contracts. This increase was partially offset luearease in payroll expense at NBC by $24,000 duhia year ended December 31, 2010. The
Company believes it has adequate staff to maimp@rations at NBC as well as service its portfalial originate loans at NSBF. The combi
average headcount increased from 32 to 43 fomibl/é months ended December 31, 2009 and 201Csctsply.

Interest expense increased from $1,485,000 foyehe ended December 31, 2009 to $1,916,000 foydheended December 31, 2010 which
included $440,000 of interest expense for Liabildy SBA loans transferred, subject to premium tese. Interest expense includes
amortization of deferred financing costs associatid the lines of credit held by NSBF and NBC &#4&,000 and $471,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2009 and December 31, 201@atesgy. The increase in amortization of deferfiedncing costs for 2010 was due to
acceleration of amortization in connection with tapayment of the term loan with Capital One infthath quarter. These increases were
offset by a decrease in net interest expense viasiply due to reductions in the average debt auding by NSBF, which decreased from
$16,187,000 to $11,863,000 for the years endedreee31, 2009 and 2010, respectively as well esceedse in the average interest rate -
6.4% to 6.1%. Although the average debt outstandingBC increased from $1,787,000 for the year drdecember 31, 2009 to $3,757,000
for the year ended December 31, 2010, the averageest rate decreased from 10.49% to 7.33% dtinmgame period.

Professional fees for the year ended December®1) 8s compared with the prior year increased ByGE® as a result of an increase in
consulting and accounting expenses, which wasgligrtiffset by a decrease in legal expense. Thease in consulting and accounting
expenses was mainly due to obtaining a rating fteenS&P on our loan servicing operations and aoldtti professional fees associated with
the payoff of the line with GE.

Consideration in arriving at the provision for loass includes past and current loss experiencegruportfolio composition, future estimated
cash flows, and the evaluation of real estate dnelr@ollateral as well as current economic coadgi For all loans originated prior to
September 30, 2010, management performed a lodoabyreview for the estimated uncollectible portafmon-performing loans; subsequent
to September 30, 2010, management began recoriliograoriginations on a fair value basis whichuées the immediate write down of the
unguaranteed portion of loans held for investmerat kevel that takes into consideration futuredgssn the post September 30, 2010 portfolio.
While the provision for loan loss increased by $06, for the twelve month period ended Decembef810, the reserve for loan losses as
compared to the gross portfolio balance decreased $3,985,000 or 13.9% at December 31, 2009 6583000 or 11.2% at December 31,
2010 reflecting the overall growth from new lendengd positive performance of the portfolio. Totapaired non-accrual loans at

December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2010, decréase$8,234,000 to $7,990,000,
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respectively, with $3,043,000 or 37.0% and $2,506,0r 31.5% of the allowance for loan losses bailarated against such impaired non-
accrual loans, respectively. The year over yeanatah in non-performing loans reflects an improegrin the overall economic climate and
corresponding impact on the underlying borrowers.

The resumption of loan originations with the 90%ugunty percentage, the additions to servicing ams$wlting income from the NSBF
portfolio and the FDIC contracts, and the adoptibfair value accounting for the liability createdaccordance with ASC Topic 860 on
January 1, 2010 and loans funded subsequent terSbpt 30, 2010, resulted in a return to profitapfior the year ended December 31, 2010
from a loss in the same period of 2009.

2009

Revenue is derived primarily from premium on loates generated by the sale of the guaranteed apdranteed portions of SBA loans,
interest income on SBA loans held for investmeattyising fee income on the guaranteed portionsBA ®ans previously sold, servicing
income for loans originated by other lenders foiaWiNSBF is the servicer, and receivable factoend billing services, classified as other
income above, provided by NBC. Most SBA loans ordgéd by NSBF charge an interest rate equal t@timee rate plus an additional
percentage amount; the interest rate resets toutiient Prime rate on a monthly or quarterly badigch will result in changes to the amount of
interest accrued for that month and going forward a re-amortization of a loan’s payment amounil amturity.

NSBF substantively resumed originating new loanth@fourth quarter of 2009 due to improved madcetditions for sale of guarante
portions and the increase of the guaranty percertta§0% resulting from provisions under the Amami&®kecovery and Reinvestment Act.
Loan originations had primarily ceased in the fhuqtiarter of 2008, although loan fundings and sadeginued through the first quarter of
2009, and the Company proceeded to originate owdagan in the second quarter of 2009 and one awtditiloan in the third quarter of 2009.
During the fourth quarter of 2009, the Company ioaged 14 loans. The Company sold 33 guarantedapstin the year ended December 31,
2009 representing unsold 2008 production and 20@@ations. 2009 sales aggregated $19,941,00(peodliced $1,652,000 of revenue
compared to 57 guaranteed portions sold aggreg&fidgl 63,000 that produced $474,000 of revenuthtoprior year. Premium income for
2009 benefited in part from a change in the metifodaluing servicing assets created at the timsaté for those guaranteed portions sold at
par : to more appropriately value the servicingggsnanagement utilized a discounted cash flow medech uses valuation techniques to
convert future amounts to a single present amouthissbased on the value indicated by current mankgectations about those future amol
The premium earned on those portions sold at paugfh March 31, 2009 in the amount of $446,000ecééd the valuation of the newly
created servicing assets, not cash earned antkeeofithe sales. As indicated above, as a restitteofecondary market returning to somewhat
normalized levels beginning late in the second tgu&009, the Company began to originate and gaiid at a premium again. Loans sold
during this period aggregated $12,658,000 and haaliarage premium of 108.78%. Premiums on guardhbe® sales during 2008 averaged
106.7%.

Servicing fee income related to SBA loans decreaye$il 46,000 due to a decrease in the NSBF loaicsgy portfolio and an increase in non-
performing loans, as well as a reduction in theifieeme associated with a discontinued SBA poufsrvicing contract for a savings bank in
New York which totaled $136,000 for the year enBetember 31, 2009 compared to $165,000 for thegreaded December 31, 2008. 1
average NSBF servicing portfolio for 2009 was $293,000 compared with $127,323,000 for the yeaedrzkecember 31, 2008 while the
average nonperforming servicing portfolio increaBed $19,318,000 for the year ended December 308 20 $31,708,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2009. Within its own portfolio NSBHyoearns servicing income on the performing lodn$ctober 2009 Newtek signed an
agreement with the Federal Deposit Insurance Catjoor (“FDIC”) to provide servicing for the FDICSBA loan portfolio taken from failed
banks. Although the benefits of the contract catogstimated at this time, the amount of servifémgincome associated with the contract
could be material to the performance of the segrme2®10. In addition, Newtek signed a separateement with the FDIC to provide
consulting services regarding SBA loans at ban&d-IC is closing which could also provide matesegjment revenue in 2010.

Interest income decreased by $1,141,000 due pfintara decrease in the average interest rate lidiagged to borrowers from 8.18% to
6.34% due to a reduction in the prime rate, a degrén the average outstanding portfolio from $38,800 for the year ended December 31,
2008 to $29,980,000 for the year ended Decembe2(®19, and an increase in the nonperforming paotfobm an average of 16.8% of the
NSBF portfolio to 26.0% for the years ended Decem®i¢ 2008 and 2009, respectively. The expansiaroc-performing loans as a percent of
the overall portfolio reflects both the effectstioé economy on NSBF’s borrowers as well as the d¢dclew loan origination in 2009 to
maintain the size of the portfolio. As NSBF contisuo originate and fund new loans in increasingme, then its performing portfolio will
continue to expand offsetting loans which normply down principal and default, increasing its apyaity to earn interest and servicing
income; however, the current 90% guaranty effebtileaves less non-guaranteed portions on the bobkSBF after the sale of the
guaranteed portions which will slow NSBF’s abilitygrow its portfolio.
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Other income increased by $64,000 due primarily teduction in a contingent liability booked in ceation with the acquisition of CCC in
2002 and by income earned on the FDIC consultimgraot in the amount of $17,000 in 2009 as comptret revenue earned in 2008 as \
as an increase in revenue earned by NBC. For theereled December 31, 2009, NBC had revenue 08%,0@0 and purchased $20,572,000
of receivables from an average customer base otadfpared to revenue of $1,406,000 on $18,432,08€ceivables purchased with an
average customer base of 122 for the year endeeniligr 31, 2008. This increase was offset by a deeri other revenue earned by NSB
the amount of $103,000 attributable to a decreasieel number of loans prepaying, late paymentd@adorigination fee income. In addition,
Small Business Lending, the holding company for R$8cognized $60,000 in referral fee income in 2898ompared to $9,000 of
corresponding revenue earned in 2009.

Salaries and benefits decreased by $1,376,000es1th of staffing cutbacks in sales and origimastaff in connection with the lending
operation that began in the fourth quarter of 2808 were completed during the quarter ended Matc2@09. Year over year savings totaled
$1,468,000. NSBF believes it currently has adegstaii to service its portfolio and originate loamish the capability to quickly hire staff or
obtain the services of independent contractorseaded for its own operations as well as to meendieels of the FDIC contracts. This savings
was offset by an increase in headcount and salarie8C of $92,000 related to sales efforts forsame period. Combined average annual
headcount decreased by 35% from 49 for 2008 t@B2G09.

After deducting the amortization of deferred fingugccosts associated with the lines of credit gidNSBF and NBC of $631,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2008 and $344,000 for the yetdeDecember 31, 2009, interest expense decréase®1,476,000 to $1,141,000 for
the same periods, respectively. This decrease tirétsutable to a decrease in the prime lending oatevhich the financing costs are based f

a weighted average of 5.02% to a rate of 3.25%ogdeaver period. This decrease in the Prime rateoffast by an increase in the spread over
prime being charged by both GE and Wells. In 2088 average spread over the weighted average Ruimtiee GE facility was 0.39% where

in 2009, the average spread was 2.84%. For thesWaligo line, the average spread over the weightethge Prime for the years ended 2008
and 2009 was 2.57% and 4.25%, respectively. Thesedses in spread were offset by a decrease avdrage amount outstanding under the
GE credit facility. The average amount outstandorghe year ended December 31, 2008 was $21,86 &a8@ompared with $14,798,000
during the same period in 2009. Interest on thelS\Fargo facility was charged on a minimum of $8,000 in both years.

Professional fees decreased by $16,000 due printarieductions in accounting fees and recruitnesippenses of $196,000 at NSBF. This
decrease was partially offset by an increase iallegpenses year over year attributable to redugfio contingent liabilities as a result of
favorable legal settlements in 2008 at NSBF and NBC

Consideration in arriving at the provision for ldass includes past and current loss experiencegruportfolio composition, future estimated
cash flows, and the evaluation of real estate dner@ollateral as well as current economic coadgi The provision for loan loss decreased
year over year by $697,000. The reserve for loasds as compared to gross portfolio balance inedefasm $3,420,000 or 9.08%

December 31, 2008 to $3,985,000 or 13.87% at Deeeiih 2009. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, totphired non-accrual loans
amounted to $8,234,000 and $5,605,000, respectiwetly $3,043,000 or 37.0% and $2,051,000 or 36db%e allowance for loan losses be
allocated against such impaired non-accrual lo@spectively. The year over year increase in therke balance on an absolute and as a
percentage of impaired non-accrual loans refldetsffects the recession has had on NSBF’s borgdwasiness performance and the
reduction in the value of the borrowers’ assetseulythg the impaired, nonaccrual loans as wellkeagthening the time to liquidate such loans.

Other general and administrative costs decreas&2by,000 due primarily to an overall reductioroffice and overhead related expenses due
to a reduction in headcount at NSBF and a redudtiddad debt expense at NBC. The Company also exped a reduction in loan processing
fees due to the suspension of loan originationshfie@majority of 2009

Although segment revenues fell $45,000 or less ®arperiod over period, the Company’s cost cutéffgrts successfully reduced segment
expenses by $3,898,000 or 29%, reducing the Idssebmcome taxes by $3,853,000 or 63% to $(2,23B),@or the year ended December 31,
2009 from a loss of $(6,148,000) for the year erdedember 31, 2008. This improvement came des[8®RS effectively ceasing its prima
operation, loan originations, for the first thraeagers of 2009.
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All Other
% Change
(In thousands): 2010 2009 2008 2010 200¢
Revenue
Insurance commissiot $ 88 $ 811 $1,03¢ 9%  (22%
Other income 40C 1,552 882 (7%  76%
Interest incomt 61 50 15¢ 22% (69%
Total revenue 1,347 2,41% 2,07¢ (44)% 16%
Expenses
Salaries and benefi 1,56: 1,624 2,571 @»% (371N%
Other than temporary decline in value of investra 51C 12t 14C  30&%  (11)%
Professional fee 174 154 328 13% (52)%
Depreciation and amortizatic 13t 13C 95 1% 37%
Other general and administrative cc 567 74¢ 941 249% (21)%
Total expense 2,94¢ 2,781 4,07( 6% (3%
Loss before income tax: $(1,602) $ (368) $(1,995) 335%  (82)%

The All other segment includes revenues and exggmsmarily from Newtek Insurance Agency, LLC andalified businesses that received
investments made through the Company’s Capcos vdainhot be aggregated with other operating segments

2010

The revenue decrease of $1,066,000 is primarilytdulke decrease in other income of $1,152,00th®year ended December 31, 2010 from
the year ended December 31, 2009: other incom808 Benefited from a ort@ne $1,000,000 recovery of an investment previpusitten off
which did not recurred in 2010. Interest incoma@ased as a result of an increase in cash ancegasralents. Insurance commissions
increased $75,000 for 2010, or 9%, as compared@8.2

Salaries and benefits decreased by $61,000, opn4b5,563,000 for 2010, as compared to $1,624,002009, as a result of managemsrds
cutting initiatives in the insurance agency anceotmtities mainly during the first quarter 201@h€¥ than temporary decline in value of
investments increased by $385,000, or 308%, to $900for 2010 as compared to $125,000 for 2008ngmily due to a $500,000 write-down
of a qualified investment that management deterchiveed zero value based on its impairment tester@taneral and administrative costs
decreased by $181,000, or 24% to $567,000 for 284 8pmpared to $748,000 for 2009, primarily dua tme-time expense adjustment and a
reduction in software maintenance costs in therarsze agency as a result of a software conversion.

Loss before income taxes increased by $1,234,000¢i2010, as compared to 2009, due to the $1,006j@crease in revenue as a result of a
onetime $1,000,000 recovery that occurred in 2009noin@estment previously written off and an increestotal expenses of $168,000, wh
was primarily driven by a $510,000 other than terappdecline in value of investments in 2010.

2009

Revenue increased $338,000, or 16%, for 2009 apad to 2008. The revenue increase consists 67@,$00 increase in other income
primarily due to a $1,000,000 recovery in the selcguarter of 2009 related to a qualified investnpeviously written off, offset by a
$223,000 decrease in insurance commissions an@®®I0 decrease in interest income. The decredmsuirance commissions for the year
ended 2009 as compared to 2008 was due primariitafbreduction and reorganization negatively iotpey new insurance sales as well as
current economic conditions reducing both the dehfannew policies as well as coverage levels fasteng customers. Interest income
decreased as a result of a decrease in cash d@néguaisalents during 2009 as compared to 2008.

Salaries and benefits decreased by $947,000, ont8®%,624,000 for 2009, as compared to $2,571{@0R008, as a result of staff reductions
in the insurance agency and other entities. Theedse in professional fees of $169,000, or 5294 &1H00 for 2009 as compared to $323,000
for 2008 was mainly due to a non-reoccurrence obatiing expenses incurred in 2008 relating tostaaer data information and
communication system offset by a one-time reveyroker commissions in the second quarter of 28GRIdition to a reduction in
commission expense on two insurance portfoliosndu2009.
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Loss before income taxes decreased by $1,627,0@@gd2009 as compared to 2008, primarily due toiticeesase in revenues of $338,000 and
the decrease in total expenses of $1,289,000.

Corporate activities

% Change
(In thousands): 2010 2009 2008 201C 200¢
Revenue
Management fee $2217 $3,16¢ $5777 (30% (45%
Interest incom 24 32 4  (25% (27)%
Other income 16 14 10 14% 40%
Total revenue 2,25 3,21( 5831 (30)% (45%
Expenses
Salaries and benefi 5,17¢ 4,68: 6,36% 11% (26)%
Professional fee 1,16¢ 1,49t 1,63t  (22% (8)%
Depreciation and amortizatic 31z 437 371 (299% 18%
Other general and administrative cc 2,41¢ 2,53¢ 2,78 (5)% (9%
Total expense 9,07: 9,15( 11,14¢ D% (18%
Loss before income tax: $(6,816) $(5,940 $(5,319 15% _12%

The Corporate activities segment implements busiagategy, directs marketing, provides technolmggrsight and guidance, coordinates and
integrates activities of the other segments, cotgraith alliance partners, acquires customer dppdies, and owns our proprietary
NewTracker™ referral system and all other intelleciproperty rights. This segment includes reveancekexpenses not allocated to ol
segments, including interest income, Capco managef@e income, and corporate operations expenseseloperating expenses consist
primarily of internal and external public accoungtiexpenses, internal and external corporate legedreses, corporate officer salaries, and rent
for the principal executive office.

2010

Revenue from management fees earned from the Capctined 30%, or $947,000, to $2,217,000 for 20ath $3,164,000 for 2009.
Management fees, which are eliminated upon coresidid, are expected to continue to decline in theré as the Capcos mature and utilize
their cash. If a Capco does not have current gepted cash sufficient to pay management fees,gheh fees are not paid or accrued.

Total expenses decreased by $77,000 or 1%, for @ T@mpared to 2009. Salaries and benefits inete®495,000 or 11% to $5,178,000 for
2010 as compared to $4,683,000 for 2009 mainlytdam increase in headcount. Professional feegdsed $330,000, or 22%, for 2010 from
2009 due to the Company exploring various finaneing restructuring alternatives that resulted gmigicantly higher professional fees for
2009. Other general and administrative costs deerk$117,000 or 5% to $2,418,000 for 2010 as comapar$2,535,000 for 2009 mainly due
to decreases in insurance, maintenance and teleplosts.

2009

Revenue is derived primarily from management fegeexl from the Capcos, which amount to 2.5% offastcapital and are eliminated in
consolidation. Management fee revenue decreased @5%2,613,000, to $3,164,000 for the year end@®Zrom $5,777,000 during 2008.
The decrease was primarily due to the recoveryarfagement fees from one Capco totaling approxim&eP82,000 during 2008 which did
not reoccur in 2009. Management fees are expectdddine in the future as the Capcos mature atideutheir cash. If a Capco does not have
current or projected cash sufficient to pay managsrfees then such fees are not accrued.

Expenses declined $1,999,000, or 18%, for 200®Dapared to 2008. As a result of the Company’s cotting initiatives, salaries and benefits
decreased $1,679,000 or 26% to $4,683,000 for 2009 $6,362,000 for 2008 and other general and aginative costs decreased $248,000
or 9% to $2,535,000 for 2009 from $2,783,000 fod@0Professional fees decreased $138,000, or 82008 as compared to 2008 due to
decreased audit fees.
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Capcos
% Change
(In thousands): 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009
Revenue
Income from tax credit $ 2,38( $ 7,837 $ 7,98¢ (70)% (2%
Interest incom 51 10C 404 (49% (75)%
Other income 11 46 151 (76)% (70)%
Total revenue 2,44 7,98: 8,54: (69)% (N%
Net change in fair value ¢
Credits in lieu of cash and Notes payable in cseiditieu of casl 38 90C (8) (96)% 11,35(%
Expenses
Interest expens 2,45; 8,731 8,64¢ (72)% 1%
Management fee 2,34z 3,28¢ 5,90z (29)% (49)%
Professional fee 49¢ 511 642 3)% (200%
Other general and administrative cc 38€ 23 62€ 1,57¢% (96)%
Total expense 5,67¢ 12,56( 15,81¢ (55)% (21)%
Loss before income tax: $(3,19¢) $(3,677) $(7,28) (13)% (49)%

As described in Note 3 to the consolidated findrat@ements, effective January 1, 2008, the Compadopted fair value accounting for its
financial assets and financial liabilities concuatrevith its election of the fair value option fartsstantially all credits in lieu of cash, notes
payable in credits in lieu of cash and prepaidrasce. These are the financial assets and ligsildssociated with the Company’s Capco notes
that are reported within the Company’s Capco segiédre table above reflects the effects of the &domf fair value measurement on the
income and expense items (income from tax creiditsrest expense and insurance expense) relatbd tevalued financial assets and liability
for the years ended 2009 and 2008. In additionngiehange to the revalued financial assets abdity for the years ended 2010, 2009 and
2008 is reported in the line “Net change in failuesof Credits in lieu of cash and Notes payableredits in lieu of cash” on the consolidated
statements of operations.

The Company does not anticipate creating any nepe@ain the foreseeable future and the Capco segmiénontinue to incur losses going
forward. The Capcos will continue to earn cash stveent income on their cash balances and incurroastagement fees and operating
expenses. The amount of cash available for invedtared to pay management fees will be primarilyeshefent upon future returns generated
from investments in qualified businesses. Incornenftax credits will consist solely of accretiontbé discounted value of the declining dollar
amount of tax credits the Capcos will receive im filiture; the Capcos will continue to incur nonkcaderest expense.

2010

Revenue is derived primarily from non-cash inconoanftax credits. The decrease in income from taxits revenue for 2010 versus 2009
reflects the effect of the lower interest rate useder fair value accounting. The amount of fuinmme from tax credits revenue will fluctu
with future interest rates. However, over futureiqus through 2016, the amount of tax credits, #nedefore the income the Company will
recognize, will decrease to zero.

Expenses consist primarily of management fees anecash interest expense. Management fees decr2@®gdr $947,000, to $2,342,000 for
2010 from $3,289,000 during 2009. Management febgh are eliminated upon consolidation, are exgetd decline in the future as the
Capcos mature and utilize their cash. Interest esg@eecreased 72%, or $6,285,000, to $2,452,00D¥ from $8,737,000 during 2009 as a
result of the lower interest rate used under tivevidue accounting for the period. The $363,000@ase in other general and administrative
costs is due to a returned premium on three Captoance policies totaling $471,000 during 2009cWiid not recur in 2010 and to the
recognition of a $70,000 loss in 2010 on the sddeax existing leasehold, offset partially by $3®),@f other reductions in other general and
administrative expenses.

2009

Revenue is derived primarily from non-cash inconoenftax credits. The decrease in income from taxlits revenue for 2009 versus 2008
reflects the effect of the lower interest rate ugeder fair value accounting. The amount of fuinmme from tax credits revenue will fluctui
with future interest rates. However, over futureiqs, the amount of tax credits, and thereforaheme the Company will recognize, will
decrease to zero.
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Other general and administrative costs decreas&®®§,000 or 96% primarily due to the returned puemon three Capco insurance policies,
which expired in 2009, in the amount of $471,000chiwas credited to other general and administeatnsts.

Expenses consist primarily of management fees anecash interest expense. Management fees decré4&edr $2,613,000, to $3,289,000
for 2009 from $5,902,000 during 2008. The decreease primarily due to a decline in management fegmd 2009 from five Capcos totaling
$634,000 and the recovery of management fees fr@mCapco totaling approximately $1,982,000 duriag&which did not reoccur in 2009.
Management fees, which are eliminated on consatidaére expected to continue to decline in tharkitis the Capcos mature and utilize their
cash. If a Capco does not have current or projezdstl sufficient to pay management fees then seshdre not accrued.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

Cash requirements and liquidity needs over the tweaiive months are anticipated to be funded prilpéinrough operating results, available
cash and cash equivalents, existing credit linexgsed new credit lines, and additional secutitrs of the Company’s SBA lender’s
unguaranteed loan portions. As more fully describeldw, the Company’s SBA lender will require agigl funding sources to maintain
current SBA loan originations in the latter par26fL1 under anticipated conditions; although tlilera to find these sources may require the
reduction in the Company’s SBA lending and relaipdrations, it will not impair the Company’s ovémdbility to operate.

In order to operate, the Company’s SBA lender ddp@m the continuation of the SBA 7(a) guarantead program of the United States
Government. For 2010 and most likely into the fistirter of 2011 the Company has benefitted anccamiitinue to benefit from the increase
the guarantee on SBA 7(a) loans to 90% from 75%whffectively reduces the amount of the loan tbenfany needs to retain and increases
the amount of premium the Company earns on a [Ba@return to the 75% guarantee level for loansamul after December 31, 2010 will
require the Company to commit greater cash reseuccind SBA 7(a) loans. The Company’s SBA lergkpends on the availability of
purchasers for SBA loans held for sale transfetwatie secondary markets and the premium earneeitht® support its lending operations. At
this time the secondary market for the SBA loarid fa@ sale is robust but during the 2008 — 200@ficial crisis the Company had difficulty
selling its loans for a premium or at all.

The Companys SBA lender has historically financed the operetiof its lending business through loans or criaditities from various lende
and will need to continue to do so in the futunectslenders invariably require a security interegshe SBA loans as collateral which, under
applicable law, requires the prior approval of tH& Small Business Administration. If the Compangudtl ever be unable to obtain the
approval for its financing arrangements from theASBwould likely be unable to continue to makaihs.

In April 2010, the Company closed two five yeamdoans aggregating $14,583,000 with Capital Oné, Which refinanced Newtek's SBA
lender’s $12,500,000 debt to GE as well as thetiegi$2,083,000 term loan between Capital One ahf.NPreviously the SBA lender utilized
the GE debt to originate and warehouse the guagdraied unguaranteed portions of SBA loans. UndeCtipital One term loan, which was
collateralized by the unguaranteed, retained laatigns, all unguaranteed loan repayment proceexus wsed to reduce the outstanding
indebtedness and the SBA lender funds its cashresgents through available cash and cash equivsatemplemented as needed by the cash
resources of Newtek.

In December 2010, the Company issued $16 millioGtahdard & Poor’'s AA rated notes to securitizedipn of its unguaranteed, retained
loan portions and used the proceeds from that ¢iimgrto extinguish the remaining portion of the €apOne term loan to the SBA lender and
to generate cash for lending operations. In additimte issuance from the securitization funde@ enfflion account to be used for future
unguaranteed, retained portions created by thesfeprijinated subsequent to the securitizationstration. The notes from the securitization
are collateralized by the unguaranteed, retainad pmrtions transferred and all unguaranteed lepayment proceeds, less a servicing fee paic
to the SBA lender, from those loans are used tagedhe outstanding indebtedness of the notes.Ca@mtly, the SBA lender entered into a
revolving loan agreement with Capital One, N.A. vdie the bank provides financing of up to $6 milliagainst the origination of the
guaranteed portions of SBA loans. The SBA lendiizes this line to help fund its loan originationss a result, the SBA lender increased the
amount of loans it can fund at a particular timd eeduced its dependence on the Company for cash.
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The success of the securitization provides a leng funding source for the Company’s SBA lendesuasing the market for such
securitization continues to exist and future seiaations can be executed on an economic basidibethéo the Company. However, the
securitization mechanism itself does not provideitlity in the short term for funding SBA loans.eTBBA lender, because its resources wi
insufficient to maintain current SBA loan origirais in the latter part of 2011 under anticipateaditions, will need to arrange a line to fund
and warehouse the origination of unguaranteednexidoan portions in anticipation of the next s#@ation. Therefore, the Company is
working with various lenders on obtaining an aduitil credit facility to increase its ability to k&n

Through February 28, 2011, the receivables finanaimit (‘“NBC”) utilized a $10 million line of cretlprovided by Wells Fargo Bank to
purchase and warehouse receivables. On FebruaB028, NBC entered into a three year line of creflitp to $10 million with Sterling
National Bank which replaced the Wells Fargo lifikeere is no cross collateralization between thdiStelending facility and the Capital O1
term loan and credit facility; however, a defauider the Capital One term loan or line of credit erieate a possibility of default under the
Sterling line of credit. The availability of theeBling line of credit and the performance of theitd One term loans are subject to compliance
with certain covenants and collateral requiremestset forth in their respective agreements, akagdimited restrictions on distributions or
loans to the Company by the respective debtor, nbméhich are material to the liquidity of the Coamy. The Company guarantees these |
for the subsidiaries up to the amount borroweaddition, the Company deposited $750,000 with Bigitb collateralize the guarantee. As of
December 31, 2010, the Company’s unused sourdeguafity consisted of $7,301,000 in unrestricteslc and cash equivalents and $569,000
available through the Wells Fargo line of credawreplaced by Sterling.

Restricted cash of $10,747,000 as of December@®I) & primarily held in the Capcos and NSBF. fer €Capcos, restricted cash can be used
in managing and operating the Capcos, making gedlihvestments, to repay debt obligations, andiferpayment of taxes on Capco income.
For NSBF, the majority of the restricted cash, ®mndillion, has been allocated to a pre-funding actto purchase unguaranteed portions of
SBA 7(a) loans.

In summary, Newtek generated and used cash asviollo

For the Years Ended
December 31

2010 2009 2008
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi $(2,20¢) $ 3,12¢ $(9,540
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi (6,33€) 3,40( (1,530
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 6,34¢ (10,799 2,55(
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (2,199 (4,277) (8,520
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of ' 12,58 16,85: 25,37
Cash and cash equivalents, end of » $10,38: $ 12,58 $16,85:

Net cash flows from operating activities decreg®®336,000 to $(2,208,000) for the year ended Déeerd1, 2010 compared to $3,128,(
provided for the year ended December 31, 2009. ditamge primarily reflects the use of funds fodiegy and purchasing receivables by our
Small business finance segment in the currentwbareas the 2009 period benefited from the sa&B# loans held for sale originated in
2008 and a reduction in SBA lending in 2009. Ferybar ended December 31, 2009, the Company otégir#i 4,390,000 SBA loans held for
sale and received proceeds from the sale of SBslbald for sale net of premium income of $20,323,6ffset by a broker receivable incre
of $6,103,000 for net proceeds of $5,933,000. Reryear ended December 31, 2010 the Company owgit$¥ 82,000 of SBA loans held for
sale, $30,752,000 of SBA loans transferred sulbgeptemium recourse, and $25,983,000 of SBA loackieving sale status for a total use of
$(57,517,000). Reflecting the effects of ASC Tap® “Transfers and Servicing” which became effextim January 1, 2010 (discussed
above), the Company received proceeds from tra;sfe8BA loans held for sale accounted for as fiivags (“Liability for SBA loans
transferred, subject to premium recourse”) of $34,000 and proceeds from transfers that achievedsttus of $25,983,000, offset by an
increase in the broker receivable of $5,591,000afoet total source of $54,486,000. Broker red#agsarise from loans traded but not settled
before period end and represent the amount ofdastirom the purchasing broker; the amount varggsedding on loan origination volume
and timing of sales at year end. For the year efida@mber 31, 2010, net SBA loan activities resiuliea use of $(3,031,000). In addition to
SBA loan activities, the Company provided receiealdinancing which used cash of $4,697,000 in 25.6ompared to cash use of $1,163,000
in 2009.
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Net cash provided by (used in) operating activiidds back a ni-cash expense “Provision for loan losspsiarily related to the operation
the Company’s Small business finance segment. AghdNewtek does not pay out this expense in cashexpense does represent impairment
to income generating assets and a potential remuitifuture cash flows. For the year ended Decer@be2010, Provision for loan losses
increased $76,000 to $1,909,000 from $1,833,00@000 primarily due to an increase in the genarsérve taken against SBA loans
originated for investment in 2010; losses on ldagls for investment at the start of the year, altiorelatively less than those in 2009,
continued to reflect borrower defaults and reduddim the value of our collateral in liquidationhieh lag the effects of the weak economy in
2008 and 2009. Newtek believes its loan loss resewhich are evaluated monthly on a loan-by-lcasidy along with its collateral monitoring
practices, are adequate. Newtek recognizes thatettiaing prices occurring nationally in the resitial real estate and commercial property
markets may diminish the collateral backing itseaGenerally, loans within the portfolio are tygllg repaid by the business’ cash flow and
secured by business collateral and personal asistiis business owner and/or guarantors as welbasnercial real estate and may also inc
residential real estate as supplemental collatEcal SBA loans, Newtek follows the SBA standardrafieg procedure with respect to obtair
collateral on our loans. This typically includeklalsiness assets and frequently includes persmsats of the owners and/or guarantors.

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activipeisnarily includes the purchase of fixed asset$ @rstomer accounts, originations &
repayments of the unguaranteed portions of SBAdpamanges in restricted cash and investmentsdlifigd businesses. Net cash (used in)
provided by investing activities decreased by $8,030 to cash used of $(6,336,000) for the yeaeérkecember 31, 2010 compared to cash
provided of $3,400,000 for the year ended DecerBheR009. The decrease was due primarily to agreaount of SBA loans originated for
investment for the year ended $(8,244,000) in 20&65us $(2,111,000) in 2009, a lesser return fjoalified investments in 2010, $238,000,
as compared to the return of $2,514,000 in 2008;aaslight decrease in payments received on SBasl@m $3,489,000 in 2009 to
$3,212,000 in 2010 primarily due to a decline iagayments. The change in restricted cash provi88d,800 of cash flow in 2010, versus
$1,183,000 of cash flow in 2009.

Net cash flows provided by (used in) financingétés primarily include the net borrowings (repagmts) on bank notes payable to Caf

One, Wells Fargo and GE as well as securitizataivity. Net cash flows provided by (used in) fimaémg activities increased by $17,144,00
cash provided of $6,345,000 for the year ended Dbee 31, 2010 from a cash use of $(10,799,000hyear ended December 31, 2009.
primary reason for the increase was the secuiitizgiroceeds of $14,510,000, net of issuance @o&810, which were used to extinguish the
remaining portion of the Capital One term note mad&SBF. Restricted cash related to the secutitizancreased by $4,161,000, of which
$3,000,000 has been designated as a pre-fundingi@icerhich will be used to purchase future unguieh potions of SBA 7(a) loans. The
2009 period reflected the repayment of bank noégslple of $(9,700,000) primarily from the applicatiof proceeds from sale of SBA loans
held for sale to the GE line. The current yearafs®3,107,000) reflects borrowings on the Compariiyies of credit with Wells Fargo of
$3,692,000 to fund the increase in accounts reb&gsgurchased, proceeds of $6,000,000 from thep@owis new line provided by Capital
One for the origination of the guaranteed portiohSBA loans, offset by the amount repaid to Cédjitae by NSBF and NTS. During the year
ended December 31, 2010, the Company received 31,930 of proceeds from the Capital One term natdarto NSBF and used the funds to
repay the outstanding amount on the GE line ofitredaddition, the Company made principal paynseatt the Capital One term note made to
NTS of $243,000 for the perio

The overall $(2,199,000) decrease in cash andegsivalents in 2010 primarily reflects the increasthe origination of SBA loans and
receivables purchased offset by borrowings fromI8Wehrgo, Capital One, and proceeds from the dsbieid under the securitization
transaction, establishment of restricted resereewtts for such debt, reduction in debt associaidtdNSBF and NTS, and transfer of cash
from Company operating to restricted capco accodusto the deconsolidation of a qualified investtnghich effectively moved cash from
the business’s unrestricted cash account baclet€#pco’s escrow, or restricted, cash account.

Financing Activities

Newtek historically obtained lorterm financing to fund its investments and operatiprimarily through the issuance of notes toriasce
companies through the Capco programs. Through Dieee81, 2010, Newtek has received in the aggrekZz86,718,000 in proceeds from the
issuance of long-term debt, Capco warrants, andtéleaommon shares through the Capco programs. k&M@apcos last issued notes in
2005 and the Company does not anticipate partioipat future Capco programs. In 2004, Newtek @i$20,762,000 (net of related offering
costs) in a secondary public offering. Newtek's\pipal funding requirements have been costs relatéite Capco programs ($152,125,000),
the acquisitions of NTS and Vistar (both of whiokated $9,836,000), investments in Capco qualifiesinesses, SBA 7(a) loans, receivable
purchases, and working capital needs resulting fsperating and business development activitiessafansolidated operating entities. In 2010
NTS entered into a new term loan with Capital OQwé., the proceeds of which were used to refinaheepre-existing term loan between NTS
and Capital One, N.A. NSBF also entered into twanltransactions with
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Capital One, N.A. in 2010: (i) a term loan the meds of which were used to refinance the outstgriaisiance on the General Electric Capital
Company credit line; and (ii) a revolving creditdi used to finance the guaranteed portions of B# Ba) loans it makes. Proceeds from
NSBF s $16 million securitization transaction were ugetepay the Capital One term loan. Through 20IBCNhad a $10 million line of crec
with Wells Fargo Bank, now replaced with a simfiaeility from Sterling National Bank.

Credit Lines and Term Loans

In September 2005, NSBF closed a three year, $8%00 senior revolving loan transaction with GehEtactric Capital Corp. (“GE”). This
facility was primarily utilized to originate and wehouse the guaranteed and unguaranteed portidoansf under the SBA 7(a) loan program
and for other working capital purposes. This fagivas prepaid in full in 2010. In April 2010, t®mpany closed two five-year term loans
aggregating $14,583,000 with Capital One, N.Awbfch $12,500,000 refinanced NSBF’s aforementidiaedity with GE (the “NSBF
Portion”) and $2,083,000 refinanced the présting term loan between Capital One and NT®dnember 2010, the outstanding balance ¢
NSBF portion and all accrued interest thereon weasaid in full from the proceeds of a securitizatitansaction, discussed below. The inte
rate on the NTS term loan and on the former NSBf tean is variable based on the monthly LIBOR gates 4.25% or Prime plus 2.25%, but
no lower than 5.75%, with interest paid in arresosg with each monthly principal payment due. NS term loan is collateralized by all of
NTS's assets and Newtek guarantees the repaymentitibhig. The NSBF term loan was collateralized bpaNSBF’'s assets and Newtek
guaranteed the repayment obligations. The agreeimanties such financial covenants at the NBS lewt its consolidated subsidiaries of a
minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, minimum EBITBe®uirements and minimum cash requirements hathpital One. As of

December 31, 2010, the Company was in compliantietiwé financial covenants set in this line.

Also in December 2010, NSBF closed a credit facilitth Capital One for up to a maximum amount of08®,000 initially, expandable to
$12,000,000. The credit facility, often referrechta “wet funding” credit line, is used to fundgle portions of SBA 7(a) loans made by NSBF
that are guaranteed by the SBA, with funds recedrethe sale of those guaranteed portions of the BB) loans by NSBF reducing the
facility. The outstanding balance of the creditilfacbears a variable per annum rate of interegtad to the rate of interest publicly announced
from time to time by Capital One as its prime naligs 1%. The credit facility will be available taSBF until December 15, 2012 unless earlier
terminated pursuant to the terms of the Agreenidrg.balance of the facility included in notes pdgain the consolidated balance sheet at
December 31, 2010 was $6,000,000 and the inteatessat December 31, 2010 was 4.25%. The term ®eallateralized by all of NSBF's
assets and Newtek guarantees NSBF’s repaymenttiblig under the facility. The agreement includeshdinancial covenants at the NBS
level with its consolidated subsidiaries of a minimfixed charge coverage ratio, minimum EBITDA riegments and minimum cash
requirements held at Capital One. As of DecembeR@10, the Company was in compliance with therfai@ covenants set in this line.

In February 2007, NBC closed a two year $10,000|D@0of credit with Wells Fargo Bank. In OctobédB, NBC entered into a Second
Amendment to its Credit and Security Agreement Witells Fargo that extends the $10,000,000 fadilitthree years to February 2012. This
facility was used to purchase receivables and ttoerowvorking capital purposes. As of December 31,02 NBC had $5,108,000 outstanding
under the line of credit. The interest rate wasas&t50% or Prime plus 2.50%, whichever was higivéh interest on the line paid monthly in
arrears and on a minimum outstanding line balaf§2 ®00,000. Under the Second Amendment, once BR@eded $2,000,000 outstanding
under the line of credit, Wells Fargo allowed fe@ptalternatives for interest rates, the Prime ggerate plus 2.50%, with a minimum of 7.5(

or Base LIBOR plus 3.50%. The line was collateediby the receivables purchased, as well as @t atbsets of the Company. The agreement
included such financial covenants as minimum tadegilet worth, minimum quarterly net income, andimumm quarterly net cash flow. As of
December 31, 2010, the Company was in compliantietiwé financial covenants set in this line.

In February 2011, NBC entered into a three year dificredit with Sterling National Bank in an ambup to $10,000,000. This facility is and
will be used to purchase receivables and for atleking capital purposes. The interest rate wilskéat 5.00% or Prime plus 2.00%,
whichever is higher, with interest on the line sogaid monthly in arrears. The line is and willdodlateralized by the receivables purchased, as
well as all other assets of NBC. The line is gutgad by the Company; in addition, the Company diggb$750,000 with Sterling to
collateralize the guarantee. The agreement incladels financial covenants as minimum tangible rathvand maximum leverage ratio. The
Company is subject to meeting a maximum leveratie test and a future net loss test.
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Securitization Transaction

In December 2010, NSBF created a financing chafian¢he sale of the unguaranteed portions of SB# ans held on its books and finan

by a term loan in the maximum amount of $12,500,800 Capital One, N.A. NSBF transferred the ungnéeed portions of SBA loans of
$19,615,000 million, and agreed to transfer $3,000.0f future SBA loans when originated, to a splegiirpose entity created for this purpose,
Newtek Small Business Loan Trust 2-1 (the “Trust”), which in turn issued notes (theeturitization notes”) for the par amount of
$16,000,000 against the assets in a private platefiee Trust is only permitted to purchase theuamgnteed portion of SBA 7(a) loans, issue
asset-backed securities, and make payments oedhetges. The Trust issued a single series ofrg&ation notes to pay for the unguaranteed
portions it acquired from NSBF and will be dissalwehen those securities have been paid in full. dfiraary source for repayment of the
securitization notes is the cash flows generatewh fthe unguaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) loans newved by the Trust; principal on the
securitization notes will be paid by cash flow ktess of that needed to pay various fees relatdtetoperation of the Trust and interest on the
debt. The securitization notes have an expectedriyabf about five years based on the expectetbpaance of the underlying collateral and
structure of the debt and a legal maturity of 3@rgdrom the date of issuance. The assets of tigt @re legally isolated and are not availab
pay NSBF's creditors. NSBF continues to retaintsgb cash reserves and all residual interestseiltust and will receive servicing income.
Proceeds from this transaction were used to rdpagapital One, N.A. loan and for general corpoaai lending purposes. Because the
Company determined that as the primary benefi@éthe Trust it needed to consolidate the Trust it#t financial statements, it continues to
recognize the securitization notes in Notes payadfile investors and the Trust have no recoursay@BNSBF’s other assets for failure of
debtors to pay when due; however, NSBF's parenytble has provided a limited guaranty to the ineestn the Trust in an amount not to
exceed 10% of the original issuance amount (orGRL(0), to be used after all of the assets offtiast have been exhausted. The notes were
issued with a AA rating from Standard & Poor’s lthea the underlying collateral.

Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations

The following chart represents Newtek’s obligatiamsl commitments as of December 31, 2010, other@agco debt repayment discussed
above, for future cash payments under debt, leademployment agreements (in thousands):

Payments due by perioc

Contractual Obligations Total Less than 1 yea 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years
Debt (a) $3354: $ 417(b)  $6,834c)  $10,59(d) $ 15,70 (e)
Operating Lease 12,64 3,84 5,971 2,66¢ 151
Employment Agreemen 21¢€ 21€ — — —
Totals $46,40:  $ 4,48( $12,81 $13,26( $ 15,85:

(a) Interest rates range from 4.00% to 7.

(b) Includes:
$2.1 million Capital One note payable over a fiearperiod commencing 2010. As of December 31, 20E0amount outstanding
was approximately $1,840,000.

(¢) Includes:
$6 million under the Capital One revolving creditifity.

(d) Includes:
$10 million Sterling line assuming the entire amiosroutstanding.

() Includes:
$15.7 million of securitization notes with a legaturity of 30 years; actual principal paymentd il paid by cash flow in excess
of that needed to pay various fees related to pleeation of the Trust and interest on the debt.

Financing Activities: Capcos

We have deemphasized our Capco business in faxgrowfing our operating businesses and do not patieicreating any new Capcos in the
foreseeable future.
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Overview

A Capco is either a corporation or a limited litgicompany established in and chartered by orthehine jurisdictions that currently have
authorizing legislation: Alabama, District of Colbim, Florida, Louisiana, Colorado, New York, Texas Wisconsin (Missouri has an older
program which pre-dates the start of our businedsrmawhich we do not participate). Aside from seegital provided by an organizer such as
Newtek, a Capco will issue debt and equity instmimexclusively to insurance companies and the @afien are authorized under
respective state statutes to make targeted equigld investments in companies. In some statedath permits Capco investments in
majority-owned or primarily controlled companies.dthers, such as Louisiana, Colorado, Texas achtist recent programs in New York,
there are some limitations on the percentage ofeesitip a Capco may acquire in a qualified businessonjunction with the Capcos’
investment in these companies, the Capcos mayadside loans to the companies. In most casedatheredits provided by the states are
equal to the par amount of investment by the instea&ompanies in the securities of the Capcos,iwdaa be utilized by them generally ove
period of four to ten years. These credits arefentdd by the returns or lack of returns on invesita made by the Capcos.

Our Capcos had arranged for the repayment of éopaof the Capco notes by The National Union Firgeurance Company of Pittsburgh and
The American International Specialty Lines Insue@ompany, both affiliates of Chartis, Inc. As add@mber 31, 2010, all of the required
cash payments have been made by these insureat éddthe Capcos. The balance of the repaymengatibns for all of our Capcos will result
from the availability to the investors of the sttdr credits.

Income from Capco Tax Cred

In general, the Capcos issue debt and equity im&tntis to insurance company investors. For a desxeripf the debt and equity instruments
and warrants issued by Newtek’s Capcos, see Nimt¢hi2 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemdrhe Capcos then make targeted
investments, as defined under the respective gtaseliction statutes, with the funds raised. E@etpco has a contractual arrangement with the
particular state/jurisdiction that entitles the €aypo receive (earn) tax credits from the statisfliction upon satisfying quantified, defined
investment percentage thresholds and time requitesmin order for the Capcos to maintain theirestatjurisdiction-issued certifications, the
Capcos must make targeted investments in accordeitit¢ghese requirements, which requirements ansistent with Newtek’s overall
business strategy. Each Capco statute provide#fisgetes and regulations under which the Capcostoperate. For example, the State of
Louisiana program precludes the Capco from makargrolling and majority-owned investments. Accoglin investments made by the
Louisiana Capco are considered portfolio compaaigsare majority-owned operated and controllechieyr thoards of directors and
management. These portfolio companies operate amdimtly of Newtek although Newtek participategtmmboard of directors of these
companies (but in all cases we do not control antgjof the board of director positions unlessréhis a default under the terms of the
investment) and makes available to them technolsgiyuices and products to sell.

Each Capco also has separate, contractual arrangemi¢h the insurance company investors obligatirgcapco to pay interest on the
aforementioned debt instruments. The Capco magfgdtiis interest obligation by delivering the &redits or paying cash. The insurance
company investors have the legal right to recene ise the tax credits and would, in turn, useethas credits to reduce their respective state
tax liabilities in an amount usually equal to 10QP20% in some cases in Louisiana) of their investsié the Capcos. The tax credits
generally can be utilized over a four to ten-yeaniqa and in some instances are transferable anbeaarried forward. Newtekrevenue fror
tax credits may be used solely for the purposeati$fying the Capcos’ obligations to the insuracompany investors.

A description is set forth above of the manner hialv Newtek and its Capcos account for the taxitiedome. See “Critical Accounting
Policies—Revenue Recognition.”

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethie United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondféatttae reported amounts of assets, liabilitied disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeamsl reported amounts of revenues and expensegydhs reporting period. The most signific
estimates include:

. allowance for loan losse

. sales and servicing of SBA loar

. valuation of intangible assets and goodwill inchglthe values assigned to acquired intangible s
. stock-based compensation; a

. income tax valuation allowanc
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Management continually evaluates its accountingcigs and the estimates it uses to prepare theotidated financial statements. In general,
the estimates are based on historical experiemc@formation from third party professionals andvamious other sources and assumptions
are believed to be reasonable under the factsiesuhtstances at the time such estimates are médeCdmpany’s critical accounting policies
are reviewed periodically with the audit committéehe board of directors. Management conside@caounting estimate to be critical if:

. it requires assumptions to be made that were waioeat the time the estimate was made;

. changes in the estimate, or the use of differeithating methods, could have a material impacttenG@ompan’s consolidated results
operations or financial conditio

Actual results could differ from those estimateign8icant accounting policies are described in@&btto the consolidated financial statements,
which are included in Item 15 in this Form 10-Krfg. In many cases, the accounting treatment @friqoular transaction is specifically
indicated by Accounting Principles Generally Acapin the United States of America.

Certain of our accounting policies are deemeditaif’ as they require management’s highest degf@edgment, estimates and assumptions.
The following critical accounting policies are riotended to be a comprehensive list of all of czaoainting policies or estimates.

Fair Value Measurements

As discussed in Item 8. “Financial Statements amgpfmentary Data, Note 3, Fair Value Measurememésadopted fair value accounting
effective January 1, 2008. Fair value is definethasprice that would be received to sell an agsptid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the amrea®ent date (an exit price) and establishes a&ire hierarchy that prioritizes the input:
valuation techniques used to measure fair valuetimee levels for disclosure purposes. The Companyes its credits in lieu of cash, prepaid
insurance and notes payable in credits in lieuashat fair value. The Company also carries imgdoans, servicing asset and other real estate
owned at fair value. The fair value hierarchy githes highest priority (Level 1) to quoted pricesattive markets for identical assets or
liabilities and gives the lowest priority to unobsgable inputs (Level 3). An asset or liability’saskification within the fair value hierarchy is
based on the lowest level of significant inputttovaluation. The levels of the fair value hierarelne as follows:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities. Level 1 assets and liabilitieslide debt and equity securiti
and derivative contracts that are traded in avaekchange market, as well as certain U.S. Trgasthrer U.S. Government
and agency mortga-backed debt securities that are highly liquid armedatively traded in ov-the-counter markets

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssouated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggpted prices in markets that
are not active; or other inputs that are observablzan be corroborated by observable market datsubstantially the full
term of the assets or liabilities. Level 2 assats la@bilities include debt securities with quotarites that are traded less
frequently than exchange-traded instruments angatere contracts whose value is determined usipge@ng model with
inputs that are observable in the market or cadeoeed principally from or corroborated by obsdateamarket data. This
category generally includes certain U.S. Governnaadtagency mortgage-backed debt securities, cgpdebt securities,
derivative contracts and residential mortgage |deie-for-sale.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by litttammarket activity and that are significant to thie value of the assets or
liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities inclufileancial instruments whose value is determingdgipricing models,
discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar téghes, as well as instruments for which the deitgation of fair value
requires significant management judgment or estomaf his category generally includes certain pevequity investments,
retained residual interests in securitizationsdeygial mortgage servicing rights, and highly stared or long-term derivative
contracts

Revenue Recognition.

Electronic payment processing reventElectronic payment processing and fee income ivggfrom the electronic processing of credit and
debit card transactions that are authorized antlisaghthrough third-party networks. Typically, mieaats are charged for these processing
services on a percentage of the dollar amountaf #ansaction plus a flat fee per transactionta®merchant customers are charged
miscellaneous fees, including fees for handlinggldacks or returns, monthly minimum fees, staterfeees and fees for other miscellaneous
services. Revenues derived from the electronicqesiog of MasterCar®l and Visa sourced credit abit dard transactions are reported
gross of amounts paid to sponsor banks.
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Web Hosting revenue The Company’s revenues in this segment are priyndeitived from monthly recurring services feestfar use of its
web hosting and software support services. Custaetenp fees are billed upon service initiation arelrecognized as revenue over the
estimated customer relationship period of 2.5 ydaeferred revenues represent customer prepayrf@nipcoming web hosting and related
services, and are generally received one monthréztyears in advance. Such revenues are recogrszegtvices are rendered, provided that
evidence of an arrangement exists, the price taulstomer is fixed or determinable, no signific&oempany obligations remain and collection
of the related receivable is reasonably assured.

Income from tax creditsFollowing an application process, a state will fyodi company that it has been certified as a Caple.state or
jurisdiction then allocates an aggregate dollar amhof tax credits to the Capco. However, such amh@uneither recognized as income
otherwise recorded in the financial statementsesihbas yet to be earned by the Capco. The Capentitled to earn tax credits upon satisfy
defined investment percentage thresholds withicifipd time requirements. Newtek has Capcos insetates and the District of Columbia.
Each statute requires that the Capco invest ahblg percentage of “certified capital” (the fundsyided by the insurance company investors)
in businesses defined as qualified within the tiraenes specified. As the Capco meets these reqgeir=mit avoids grounds under the statute
for its disqualification for continued participation the Capco program. Such a disqualificatiorfdecertification” as a Capco results in a
permanent recapture of all or a portion of thecalted tax credits. The proportion of the possibt@apture is reduced over time as the Capco
remains in general compliance with the programsraled meets the progressively increasing investimamthmarks. As the Capco progresses
in its investments in Qualified Businesses andpedingly, places an increasing proportion of thedeedits beyond recapture, it earns an
amount equal to the non-recapturable tax credidlsracords such amount as income, with a correspgrafiset called “credits in lieu of cash”
in the balance sheet.

The amount earned and recorded as income is detedrbly multiplying the total amount of tax creditkdcated to the Capco by the percent

of tax credits immune from recapture (the earnednme percentage) at that point. To the extenttli®investment requirements are met ahead
of schedule, and the percentage of non-recaptutakleredits is accelerated, the present valubefdx credit earned is recognized currently
and the asset, credits in lieu of cash, is accnepetth the amount of tax credits deliverable todésified investors. The obligation to deliver tax
credits to the certified investors is recorded etes payable in credits in lieu of cash. On the da¢ tax credits are utilizable by the certified
investors, the Capco decreases credits in lieasl gvith a corresponding decrease to notes payabtedits in lieu of cash.

Interest and Small Business Administratior'SBA”) Loan Fees—SBA Loans Interest income on loans is recognized as earnaahd are
placed on non-accrual status if they are 90 dagschee with respect to principal or interest andhe opinion of management, interest or
principal on individual loans is not collectible, @ such earlier time as management determinéshtda@ollectability of such principal or
interest is unlikely. Such loans are designateidhasired non-accrual loans. All other loans arerdef as performing loans. When a loan is
designated as non-accrual, the accrual of intésescontinued, and any accrued but uncollecteztést income is reversed and charged
against current operations. While a loan is class$ifs non-accrual and the future collectabilityhaf recorded loan balance is doubtful,
collections of interest and principal are generalhplied as a reduction to principal outstanding.

The Company passes certain expenditures it inoufgetborrower, such as forced placed insuraneeffisient funds fees, or fees it assesses,
such as late fees, with respect to managing thre [Biaese expenditures are recorded when incurred.t®the uncertainty with respect to
collection of these passed through expendituressessed fees, any funds received to reimburgectmpany are recorded on a cash basis as
other income.

Insurance commissionsRevenues are comprised of commissions earned amyres paid for insurance policies and are recoghéethe tim
the commission is earned. At that date, the easnimgcess has been completed and the Company ttaateshe impact of policy
cancellations for refunds and establish reservies.réserve for policy cancellations is based otohical cancellation experience adjusted by
known circumstances.

Other income:Other income represents revenues derived from tipgranits that cannot be aggregated with otheinass segments. In
addition, other income represents one time recese gains on investments. Revenue is recorded Wieee is strong evidence of an
agreement, the related fees are fixed, the seavideor product has been delivered, and the caledf the related receivable is assured.

Capco Debt IssuanceThe Capco notes require, as a condition precedehetfunding of the notes, that insurance be @ageti to cover the
risks associated with the operation of its Cap&bss insurance has been purchased from Chartis@elmsurance Company and National
Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, botbsgliaries of Chartis, Inc. (“Chartis”), an intetioaal insurer. In order to comply with this
condition precedent to the funding, the notes olpss structured as follows: (1) the certified istars wire their funds directly into an escrow
account; (2) the escrow agent,
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pursuant to the requirements under the note andwsgreement, automatically and simultaneouslg$uihe purchase of the insurance
contract from the proceeds received. NewgeBapco is not entitled to the use and benefth@ftet proceeds received until the escrow ager
completed the purchase of the insurance. The Ghasiirance subsidiaries noted above are “A+” tratitd by Standard & Poor’s.

Under the terms of this insurance, which is forlikeefit of the certified investors, the Capco mesuncurs the primary obligation to repay the
certified investors a substantial portion of thétdgncluding all cash payments) as well as to mak@pensatory payments in the event of a
of the availability of the related tax credits. TBapco remains secondarily liable for such paymantsmust periodically assess the likelihood
that it will become primarily liable and, if necesg, record a liability at that time. The parentnmgany, Chartis, has not guaranteed the
obligations of its subsidiary insurers, althoughas committed to move the payment obligationsitaféiliated company in the event the Ca|
insurer is materially downgraded in its creditmgti

Investment Accounting and Valuation: The various interests that the Capcos and Newtglirecas a result of their investments are accal
for under three methods: consolidation, equity métand cost method. The applicable accounting ndehgenerally determined based on our
voting interest in a company and whether the comma variable interest entity where we are thmary beneficiary, and quarterly valuatic
are performed so as to keep our records curreefliecting the operations of all of its investments

Companies in which we directly or indirectly ownsma than 50% of the outstanding voting securitiesse Newtek has effective control over,
or are deemed as a variable interest entity theds& be consolidated , are generally accountedhnider the consolidation method of
accounting. Under this method, an investment'sults of operations are reflected within thesotidated statement of operations. All signific
inter-company accounts and transactions are eltetind he results of operations and cash flowsaufresolidated entity are included through
the latest interim period in which Newtek ownedraager than 50% direct or indirect voting interesercised control over the entity for the
entire interim period or was otherwise designatetha primary beneficiary. Upon dilution of votiimgerest at or below 50%, or upon
occurrence of a triggering event requiring recoasition as to the primary beneficiary of a varidhterest entity, the accounting method is
adjusted to the equity or cost method of accountsgappropriate, for subsequent periods.

Companies that are not consolidated, but over wiviglexercise significant influence, are accountedufider the equity method of accounting.
Whether or not Newtek exercises significant infleemvith respect to a company depends on an evaifuatiseveral factors including, among
others, representation on the board of directodscamership level, which is generally a 20% to S50%rest in the voting securities, including
voting rights associated with Newtek’s holdingsammon, preferred and other convertible instrumeditgler the equity method of
accounting, a company’s accounts are not reflestddn our consolidated statements of operationsydver, Newtek’s share of the investee’s
earnings or losses are reflected in other inconteérCompany’s consolidated statements of opemtion

Companies not accounted for under the consolidatidhe equity method of accounting are accountedifider the cost method of accounting,
for which quarterly valuations are performed. Unttés method, our share of the earnings or losésaah companies is not included in the
consolidated statements of operations, but thesinvent is carried at historical cost. In additionst method impairment charges are recog!
as necessary, in the consolidated statements odtopes if circumstances suggest that this is dhéiothan temporary decline” in the value of
the investment, particularly due to losses. Subsepincreases in value, if any, of the underlyioghpanies are not reflected in our financial
statements until realized in cash. We record asnecamounts previously written off only when andié receive cash in excess of its
remaining investment balance.

On a quarterly basis, the investment committeeaoheCapco meets to evaluate each of our investimdatstek considers several factors in
determining whether an impairment exists on thestment, such as the companies’ net book valub,ftag, revenue growth and net income.
In addition, the investment committee looks atéargariables, such as the economy and the panticalapany’s industry, to determine if an
other than temporary decline in value exists irhe@apco’s and Newtek’s investment.

Impairment of Goodwill: Management of the Company considers the followinget some examples of important indicators that trigger
an impairment review outside its annual goodwilpairment review: (i) significant under-performarardoss of key contracts acquired in an
acquisition relative to expected historical or pated future operating results; (ii) significantiolges in the manner or use of the acquired a
or in the Company'’s overall strategy with respedtie manner or use of the acquired assets or esanghe Company’s overall business
strategy; (iii) significant negative industry oromomic trends; (iv) increased competitive pressurgsa significant decline in our stock price
for a sustained period of time; and (vi) regulatomanges. In assessing the recoverability of oodgidl and intangibles, we must make
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flowlsogher factors to determine the fair value ofrémpective assets. The fair value of an ¢
could vary, depending upon the estimating methogleyed, as well as assumptions made. This may
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result in a possible impairment of the intangitdeets and/or goodwill, or alternatively an acceienain amortization expense. During the year
ended December 31, 2008, management determineinpaitrment of goodwill was triggered as a resfithe annual impairment test and
appropriately recorded a charge in the accompargongolidated statements of operations of $980,B60the years ended December 31, :
and 2009, the remaining goodwill was determineddbbe impaired.

SBA Loan Held for Investment: For loans that completed funding before Octob&010, Loans receivable held for investment are ntepcat
their outstanding unpaid principal balances adifufte charge-offs, net deferred loan originatiostsand the allowance for loan losses. For
loans that completed funding on or after Octob&0ILO, management elected to fair value Loan reté#e held for investment within the fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes observable andbseovable inputs utilizing Level 3 unobservableuispwhich reflect the Company’s own
expectations about the assumptions that markedtipamnts would use in pricing the asset (includasgumptions about risk). Because there
currently is no secondary market for the unguarthfgortions, the Company uses a combination ofrtgaidformation from the guaranteed
sales, as was previously used to determine thewlis®n the unguaranteed portions, and the histigoierformance of NSBF’s loans applied to
their outstanding unpaid principal balances. lbanl measured at fair value is subsequently impaihed the fair value of the loan is measured
based on the present value of expected futureftash discounted at the loan’s effective intereder or the fair value of the collateral if the
loan is collateral dependent. Because the loansilsegest at a variable rate, NSBF does not hayadtor in interest rate risk.

Allowance for SBA Loan LossesFor loans funded before October 1, 2010, the alfmedor loan losses for performing loans is esshield by
management through provisions for loan losses eubagainst income. The amount of the allowancéofor losses is inherently subjective, as
it requires making material estimates which mayJ¥esm actual results. Management'’s ongoing estimaf the allowance for loan losses are
particularly affected by the changing compositiéthe loan portfolio over the last few years aslhaslother portfolio characteristics, such as
industry concentrations and loan collateral. Theqagicy of the allowance for loan losses is revielyethanagement on a monthly basis at a
minimum, and as adjustments become necessaryféeeted in operations during the periods in whtady become known. Considerations in
this evaluation include past and anticipated loggegence, risks inherent in the current portfaia evaluation of real estate collateral as well
as current economic conditions. In the opinion ahagement, the allowance, when taken as a whaegiguate to absorb estimated loan
losses inherent in the Company’s entire loan phbotfd he allowance consists of specific and geneoahponents. The specific component
relates to loans that are classified as either timsbtful, substandard or special mention. Fohdaans that are also classified as impaired, an
allowance is established when the discounted desls for collateral value or observable marketgriaf the impaired loan is lower than the
carrying value of that loan. The general comporentrs non-classified loans and is based on histiddss experience adjusted for qualitative
factors.

For loans funded on or after October 1, 2010, da lis reported at its fair value. Changes in tlaey of the loan, whether performing or
impaired, are reported as a net change in thedhire of SBA loans held for investment.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on cuindormation and events, it is probable that tteempany will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or interest whem altcording to the contractual terms of the loaee@gent. Other factors considered by
management in determining impairment include paytretaius and collateral value. Loans that exped@ansignificant payment delays and
payment shortfalls generally are not classifiethgsaired. Management determines the significangeagment delays and payment shortfalls
on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideratlaf the circumstances surrounding the loan &eddorrower, including the length of the
delay, the reasons for the delay, the borroweits prayment record, and the amount of the shoiitfialélation to the principal and interest
owed.

Impairment of a loan is measured based on the preaéue of expected future cash flows discountati@loan’s effective interest rate, or the
fair value of the collateral if the loan is colleitbdependent. Impaired loans for which the cagymount is based on fair value of the
underlying collateral are included in assets apdnted at estimated fair value on a mecurring basis, both at initial recognition of iaigment
and on an on-going basis until recovery or chaffefdhe loan amount. The determination of impamhinvolves management’s judgment in
the use of market data and third party estimatgarding collateral values. For loans funded bectober 1, 2010, the impairment of a loan
resulted in management establishing an allowanckeém losses through provisions for loan losses@dd against income; for subsequent
loans at fair value, impairment results in a netrade in the fair value of SBA loans held for invesht. Amounts deemed to be uncollectible
are charged against the allowance for loan lossesdoices the fair value and subsequent recovéfri@sy, are credited to the allowance or
increases the fair value.
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The Company'’s charge-off policy is based on a Ibg#ean review for which the estimated uncollecipbrtion of nonperforming loans is
charged off against the corresponding loan recévaid the allowance for possible loan losses aimagthe reduction in fair value.

SBA Loans Held for Sale:Prior to October 1, 2010, loans originated andridésl for sale in the secondary market, that igtleganteed
portions of SBA 7(a) loans, were carried at thedowf aggregate cost or fair value, as determineadgregate outstanding commitments from
investors. For guaranteed portions funded on er &ctober 1, 2010, management elected to fairev@BA loans held for sale within the fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes observable andbseovable inputs utilizing Level 2 assets. Thepats include debt securities with quoted
prices that are traded less frequently than exdahdiragled instruments or have values determinedy@spricing model with inputs that are
observable in the market. The secondary markehfguaranteed portions is extremely robust witikkér dealers acting as primary dealers.
NSBF sells regularly into the market and can qyigkice its loans for sales. The Company valuegtisanteed portion based on mal

prices equal to the guaranteed loan amount plusraipm that includes both an upfront cash paymetiliZing quoted prices) and the value of
a stream of payments representing servicing ina@oeived in excess of NSBF’s servicing cost (valusidg a pricing model with inputs that
are observable in the market).

Loans receivable held for sale are sold with theisig rights retained by the Company. For loamsded prior to October 1, 2010, gains on
sales of loans are recognized based on the differbatween the selling price and the carrying vafuee related loans sold. Unamortized net
deferred loan origination costs are recognized @s@onent of gain on sale of loans. For loansddnah or after October 1, 2010, Premiun
loan sales is equal to the cash premium plus thedlue of the servicing income while extinguishithe fair value gain previously recorded.

Securitization Activities: NSBF engaged in a securitization of the unguaranpeetions of its SBA 7(a) loans. Because the feansf these
assets did not meet the criteria of a sale, ittnested as a secured borrowing. NSBF continuesdognize the assets of the secured borrowing
in loans held for investment and recognize the@ated financing in Bank notes payable.

SBA Loans Transferred, Subject to Premium RecourseEffective January 1, 2010, a new accounting stahdadified into ASC Topic 860,
“Transfers and Servicing,” requires for the guagadtportions transferred that the Company, dueg@temium warranty formerly
incorporated in SBA Form 1086 (see the discussimva), establish a new asset “entitled SBA loaaissfierred, subject to premium recourse”
related to the guaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) laargractually sold but subject to premium recouansé a matching liability until the end of
the warranty period. Prior to October 1, 2010, baansferred in the secondary market, that igtiaanteed portions of SBA 7(a) loans, are
carried at cost. For guaranteed portions fundedradter October 1, 2010, management elected tavédile SBA loans transferred, subject to
premium recourse within the fair value hierarchgttprioritizes observable and unobservable inptitiging Level 2 assets. These inputs
include debt securities with quoted prices thatteaded less frequently than exchange-traded im&niis or have values determined using a
pricing model with inputs that are observable ia tharket. The secondary market for the guarantedibps is extremely robust with broker
dealers acting as primary dealers. NSBF sells aglyuinto the market and can quickly price its Iedor sales. The Company values the
guaranteed portion based on market prices equhétguaranteed loan amount plus a premium thaidies! both an upfront cash payment
(utilizing quoted prices) and the value of a strexrpayments representing servicing income receinexkcess of NSBF’s servicing cost
(valued using a pricing model with inputs that abservable in the market).

Contemporaneous with the adoption of this new actiog standard the Company elected the fair vapt®o for valuing this new liability,
which is captioned in the consolidated financiatetnents as “Liability on SBA loans transferredyjsat to premium recourse.” At the time,
management elected to adopt the fair value optiectien because it more accurately reflected tlomemics of the transaction. For liabilities
created prior to October 1, 2010 and prior to tthepsion of fair value for the loans themselveshiwitthe fair value hierarchy that prioritizes
observable and unobservable inputs used to metsuxalue, the Company utilizes Level 3 unobseteahputs which reflect the Company’s
own assumptions about the assumptions that masgkgtipants would use in pricing the liability (lnding assumptions about risk). The
Company values the liability based on the probighdf payment given the Company’s history of retagnpremium: the transferee will receive
100% of the guaranteed portion from either thedaer or the SBA and approximately 3% of the premamount from the Company. The
aforementioned return of premiums is triggered ibdyee the borrower’s prepayment of the loan withthdays of the transfer settlement date or
the borrower’s default within 275 days of the ssttent date on loans where any of the borrowess fiiree payments were delinquent.

For liabilities created on or after October 1, 20th@ fair valuing of the loans themselves provittesseconomic gain to be recognized from the
transfer. Continuing to value the liability basedtbe likelihood of repaying the premium warrantyuld effectively double count the gain
from creating the loan. As such, the Company chanige valuation of the liability for loans issuedrhatch the amount received from the
transfer.
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Sales and Servicing of SBA LoandNSBF originates loans to customers under the SBnam that generally provides for SBA guarantees of
50% to 90% of each loan, subject to a maximum guaesamount. Generally, NSBF sells the guaranteetibp of each loan to a third party

via an SBA regulated secondary market transactitining SBA Form 1086 for a price equal to the rargteed loan amount plus a premium
that includes both an upfront cash payment andaihealue of future net servicing income and nesaihe unguaranteed principal portion in its
own portfolio. Prior to October 1, 2010, NSBF reszgd the revenue item “Premium on loan sales’bhetpitalized loan expenses and the
discount on the retained unguaranteed portion;espent to the adoption of fair value of SBA 7(arie on October 1, 2010, NSBF recognizes
premium on loan sales as equal to the cash prempiusithe fair value of the servicing income. Reveiwurecognized on the trade date of the
guaranteed portion, except as described below.

Prior to February 7, 2011, SBA Form 1086 requiregart of the transferor’s representations andamsies that the transferor repay any
premium received from the transferee if either$iBA 7(a) loan borrower prepays the loan within 89glof the transfer settlement date or 1

to make one of its first three loan payments aftersettlement date in a timely fashion and thecgeds to default within 275 days of the
settlement date. Based on management’s best estamdtconsidering historical prepayment performanrfi¢tke loan portfolio, the Company
took the position that the premium was fully recagd at trade date, and a provision against theaijpira was not required at the time of the
sale. However, effective January 1, 2010, ASC T8pig, “Transfers and Servicing,” precludes salattrent of the transferred guaranteed
portions during this warranty period; rather NSBFaquired to account for this as a financing ayeament with the transferee. Until the
warranty period expires, such transferred loanskassified as “SBA Loans Transferred, subjectrenpum recoursetvith a matching liability
“Liability on SBA Loans Transferred, subject to pri@m recourse.” At the expiration of the warrangripd, the sale of the guaranteed portions
of these loans as well as the corresponding gaicizgnized, and the asset and liability eliminated

Upon recognition of each loan sale, the Comparginstservicing responsibilities and receives sargiéees of a minimum of 1% of the
guaranteed loan portion sold. The Company is redquin estimate its adequate servicing compensatitite calculation of its servicing asset.
The purchasers of the loans sold have no recoortbetCompany for failure of customers to pay ant®eontractually due. NSBF separately
recognizes at fair value any servicing assets idaeg liabilities first, and then allocates theepious carrying amount between the assets sold
and theinterests that continue to be held by it (the unmgngeed portion of the loan) based on their retafiir values at the date of transfer.
difference between the proceeds received and ibheaétd carrying value of the financial assets #l&écognized as a gain on sale of loans.

Subsequent measurements of each class of serassggs and liabilities may use either the amotizahethod or the fair value measurement
method. NSBF has chosen to apply the amortizatiethad to its servicing asset, amortizing the aissptoportion to, and over the period of,
the estimated future net servicing income on traedging sold guaranteed portion of the loans askssing the servicing asset for impairn
based on fair value at each reporting date. Iretlemt future prepayments are significant or impairta are incurred and future expected cash
flows are inadequate to cover the unamortized siwyiassets, additional amortization or impairnwrerges would be recognized. In
evaluating and measuring impairment of servicirgptss NSBF stratifies its servicing assets basegeanof loan and loan term which are the
key risk characteristics of the underlying loanlsodhe Company uses an independent valuationajsdo estimate the fair value of the
servicing asset by calculating the present valuestimated future net servicing cash flows, usisguanptions of prepayments, defaults,
servicing costs and discount rates that NSBF bedienarket participants would use for similar asseidSBF determines that the impairment
for a stratum is temporary, a valuation allowarsceecognized through a charge to current earnimghé amount the amortized balance
exceeds the current fair value. If the fair valfi¢he stratum were to later increase, the valuaitowance may be reduced as a recovery.
However, if NSBF determines that impairment fotratsim is other than temporary, the value of theising asset and any related valuation
allowance is written-down.

Management’s impairment analysis indicated no wadnaadjustment for 2010 and 2009.

Stock-Based CompensationThe Company records all share-based payments ttogegs based on their fair values using an optideiny
model at the date of grant.

Income TaxesDeferred tax assets and liabilities are computegdapon the differences between the financiadistant and income tax basis
of assets and liabilities using the enacted teesrat effect for the year in which those tempoudifierences are expected to be realized or
settled. If available evidence suggests thatrtdse likely than not that some portion or all of theferred tax assets will not be realized, a
valuation allowance is required to reduce the detetax assets to the amount that is more likedy thot to be realized.
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New Accounting Standards

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@¢‘FASB”) issued an accounting standard whiajunees entities to provide more
information regarding sales of securitized finahaigsets and similar transactions, particularthéf entity has continuing exposure to the risks
related to transferred financial assets and reminesoncept of a qualifying special-purpose ergitg limits the circumstances in which a
financial asset, or portion of a financial assktwdd be derecognized when the transferor hagasgferred the entire financial asset to an
entity that is not consolidated with the transfarothe financial statements being presented anvdfien the transferor has continuing
involvement with the transferred financial asséte hew standard became effective for the Companjannary 1, 2010 and its effect on asset,
liability and revenue recognition is describedhistnote, under Revenue Recognition, Sales andc8eyof SBA Loans. This accounting
standard was subsequently codified into the Acdagrtandards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 860, “Tisfers and Servicing.”

In June 2009, the FASB issued an accounting stdngiaich modifies how a company determines whenraityethat is insufficiently

capitalized or is not controlled through voting éimilar rights) should be consolidated. It claithat the determination of whether a company
is required to consolidate an entity is based orgray other things, an entity’s purpose and desighaacompany ability to direct the activitie

of the entity that most significantly impact theigris economic performance. It requires an ongaiegssessment of whether a company is the
primary beneficiary of a variable interest entitylE”) and additional disclosures about a comparigglvement in VIEs and any significant
changes in risk exposure due to that involvemelmé. few standard became effective for the Comparjaonary 1, 2010 and did not have a
material impact on its financial position or reswf operations. This accounting standard was suiesely codified into ASC Topic 805,
“Business Combinations.”

On July 21, 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010“Rclosures about the Credit Quality of FinancReceivables and the Allowance for
Credit Losses”, which requires significant new tisares about the allowance for credit losses hadtedit quality of financing receivables.
The requirements are intended to enhance transparegarding credit losses and the credit qualitpan and lease receivables. Under this
statement, allowance for credit losses and fauealre to be disclosed by portfolio segment, wdrigglit quality information, impaired
financing receivables and nonaccrual status abe foresented by class of financing receivable.|Bssce of the nature and extent, the finar
impact and segment information of troubled debtruesurings will also be required. The disclosuaies to be presented at the level of
disaggregation that management uses when assesglngonitoring the portfolio’s risk and performantais standard is effective for interim
and annual reporting periods after December 150 20fie adoption did not have a material impacthen@ompany because the Company
already includes the necessary disclosures i €ial statements.

In February 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010*A&endments for Certain Investment Funds” and ic@&wgber 2009, the FASB issued
ASU No. 2009-17, “Improvements to Financial Repagtby Enterprises Involved with Variable Interestifies”. These ASUs amend the VIE
guidance of ASC Topic 810. The Company adoptechéve VIE guidance of ASC Topic 810. This guidancesads FIN 46(R), as codified in
ASC Topic 810, to require the Company to perfornanalysis of existing investments to determine Weevariable interest or interests give
the Company a controlling financial interest in EVThis analysis identifies the primary benefigiaf a VIE as the enterprise that has both the
power to direct the activities of significant impan a VIE and the obligation to absorb lossesoeive benefits from the VIE that could
potentially be significant to the VIE. It also antlsnASC Topic 810 to require ongoing reassessméntb@her an enterprise is the primary
beneficiary of a VIE. As a result of adoption, thempany is no longer considered the primary befefiof OnLAN, LLC (“OnLAN"), a VIE
for which the Company was considered the primanekieiary and which required the financial performoa of OnLAN to be consolidated in
the Company’s financial statements. Because thep@agnis no longer considered the primary benefijcidre Company is no longer required
to consolidate OnLAN in its financial statementieefive July 1, 2010. As a result of the adoptiéthe new VIE guidance in ASC 810, the
Company recorded a cumulative-effect adjustmeirideease retained earnings by $99,000. This adpratnepresents the difference between
the cumulative net losses previously recorded tindhe consolidation of OnLAN and its actual invesht. The Compang’equity value of tr
OnLAN investment recorded on the Company’s bookbsamof December 31, 2010 is $105,000 and is ieclud prepaid expenses and other
assets on the consolidated balance sheet.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-BRlvamend ASC Topic 350, “Intangibles - GoodwildeOther”. The ASU modifies
Step 1 of the goodwill impairment test for repogtumits with zero or negative carrying amounts. those reporting entities, they are required
to perform Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test is more likely than not that a goodwill impaient exists. An entity should consider
whether there are any adverse qualitative factatieating that impairment may exist. The qualitatigctors are consistent with the existing
guidance in Topic 350, which requires that gooduwfila reporting unit be tested for impairment betwannual tests if an event occurs or
circumstances changes that would more likely tr@nreduce the fair value of a reporting unit beitswcarrying amount. ASU No. 2010-28 is
effective
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for fiscal years, and interim periods within thgsars beginning after December 15, 2010. Early éoiofs not permitted. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of this ASU, howevtbe Company does not expect the adoption ofABY will have a material impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-BRkvaddress diversity in practice about the imetigtion of the pro forma revenue and
earnings disclosure requirements for business awettibns (Topic 805). This ASU specifies that ifudblic entity presents comparative finan
statements, the entity should disclose revenuesamings of the combined entity as though the lssitombination(s) that occurred during
the current year had occurred as of the beginnfitigegocomparable prior annual reporting period oiilyis ASU also expands the supplemental
pro forma disclosures under Topic 805 to includkescription of the nature and amount of materiahracurring pro forma adjustments
directly attributable to the business combinatimeiuded in the reported pro forma revenue and egsniASU 2010-29 is effective
prospectively for business combinations for whiwé &cquisition date is on or after the beginnintheffirst annual reporting period beginning
on or after December 15, 2010. Early adoption rsnitéed. The Company is currently evaluating th@awt of this ASU and expects the
adoption of this ASU will have an impact on itsuté business combinations.

Subsequent Event

In May 2009, the FASB issued an accounting standduidh provides guidance to establish general statsdof accounting for and disclosures
of events that occur after the balance sheet datbdjore financial statements are issued or aaéadble to be issued. It requires entities to
disclose the date through which subsequent evesits @valuated as well as the rationale for why dlagét was selected. This accounting
standard is effective for interim and annual pesiedding after June 15, 2009 and, accordingly,adapted by the Company during the second
quarter of 2009. It requires public entities evédusubsequent events through the date that thecielestatements are issued. This accounting
standard was subsequently codified into ASC Topig, 8Subsequent Events.” The Company has evalisatiesequent events through the time
of filing these consolidated financial statementithwhe SEC.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
None.

Impact of Inflation
The impact of inflation and changing prices on @sults of operations is not material.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK.

We consider the principal types of risk in our Imesis activities to be fluctuations in interestsated loan portfolio valuations and the
availability of the secondary market for our SBAhs held for sale. Risk management systems anéguoes are designed to identify and
analyze our risks, to set appropriate policieslanils and to continually monitor these risks aimdits by means of reliable administrative and
information systems and other policies and programs

Our SBA lender primarily lends at an interest @t@rime, which resets on a quarterly basis, pltisead margin. Our receivable financing
business purchases receivables priced to equatsitilar prime plus a fixed margin structure. Tepital One term loan and revolver loan,
securitization notes and the new Sterling linerefli are, and the former Wells Fargo line of cregis, on a prime plus a fixed factor basis
(although the Company had elected under the Wallgd-line to borrow under a lower cost LIBOR basis a result the Company believes it
has matched its cost of funds to its interest inedmits financing activities. However, becausé¢haf differential between the amount lent and
the smaller amount financed a significant changaanket interest rates will have a material effecbur operating income. In periods of
sharply rising interest rates, our cost of fundé wcrease at a slower rate than the interestrimeearned on the loans we have made; this
should improve our net operating income, holdingtder factors constant. However, a reductiomieriest rates, as has occurred since 2008,
has and will result in the Company experiencingduction in operating income; that is interest meowill decline more quickly than interest
expense resulting in a net reduction of benefigerating income.

Our lender depends on the availability of secondaayket purchasers for the guaranteed portion8#f IBans and the premium received on

such sales to support its lending operations. itttme the secondary market for the guaranteetignsrof SBA loans is robust but during the
2008 and 2009 financial crisis the Company hadatiffy selling it loans for a premium; although retpected at this time, if such conditions
did recur our SBA lender would most likely ceasekimg new loans and could experience a substamialation in profitability.

We do not have significant exposure to changingrest rates on invested cash which was approxiyn@gdl, 129,000 at December 31,
2010. We do not purchase or hold derivative finahicistruments for trading purposes. All of oumsactions are conducted in U.S. dollars and
we do not have any foreign currency or foreign exaje risk. We do not trade commodities or havecamymodity price risk.
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We believe that we have placed our demand deposith, investments and their equivalents with higldit-quality financial

institutions. Invested cash is held almost exclelgiat financial institutions with ratings from &tiard and Poor’s of Aer better. The Compal
invests cash not held in interest free checkingacts or bank money market accounts mainly in Wr8asury only money market instruments
or funds and other investment-grade securitiesofA3ecember 31, 2010, cash deposits in excess B @bd SIPC insurance totaled
approximately $1,853,000 and funds held in U.Sa3uoey only money market funds or equivalents ireeg®f SIPC insurance totaled
approximately $5,517,000.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Our consolidated financial statements and relatéedsnbegin on Page F-1, which are included inAhisual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

For the two years ended 2009 and 2010, there heem o changes in or disagreements with accourtgarascounting and financial
disclosure.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedwwe

Our management, with the participation of our Cligécutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, &xated the effectiveness of our disclos
controls and procedures as of the end of the penedred by this report. Based on that evaluatioa Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that our disclosuretecols and procedures were effective as of the énldeoperiod covered by this report and
provide reasonable assurance that the informagiquired to be disclosed by us in reports filed utide Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipe in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosuretools and procedures include, without
limitation, controls and procedures designed taienthat information required to be disclosed bysaner in the reports that it files or submits
under the Exchange Act is accumulated and commigtida the issuer's management including its ppakéxecutive and principal financial
officers, or persons performing similar functioas,appropriate to allow timely decisions regardigguired disclosure. A controls system, no
matter how well designed and operated, cannot geoabsolute assurance that the objectives of thieats systems are met, and no evaluation
of controls can provide absolute assurance thaballrol issues and instances of fraud, if anyhinia company have been detected.

(b) Change in Internal Control over Financial Repting.

No change in our internal control over financiglogting occurred during the quarter ended Decer@be010 that has materially affected
is reasonably likely to materially affect, our imal control over financial reporting.

(c) Limitations.

A control system, no matter how well designed apelrated, can provide only reasonable, not absastrances that the control system’s
objectives will be met. Furthermore, the desigia ebntrol system must reflect the fact that theeeresource constraints, and the benefits of
controls must be considered relative to their c@¢sause of the inherent limitations in all cohtigstems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that all control isandsinstances of fraud, if any, within the Comphaye been detected. These inherent
limitations include the realities that judgmentslgcision-making can be faulty, and that breakdogarmsoccur because of simple errors or
mistakes. Controls can also be circumvented bynttieidual acts of some persons, by collusion af tw more people, or by management
override of the controls. The design of any systéiwontrols is based in part upon certain assumptabout the likelihood of future events, |
there can be no assurance that any design wilkgalcin achieving its stated goals under all paaefuture conditions. Over time, controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditialeterioration in the degree of compliance wishpiolicies or procedures. Because of the
inherent limitations in a cost-effective controbssm, misstatements due to error or fraud may cmedmot be detected. We periodically
evaluate our internal controls and make changéspoove them.
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MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT TO THE STOCKHOLDERS OF NEWTEK B USINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

As management, we are responsible for establisdmidgmaintaining adequate internal control overrfaial reporting for Newtek Business
Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries. In order @lgate the effectiveness of internal control owearicial reporting, as required by Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we have conduateasaessment, including testing, using the critariaternal Control-Integral Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizasfahe Treadway Commission (COSO). Newtek BusiBmwices, Incs system of intern
control over financial reporting is designed to\pde reasonable assurance regarding the reliabififinancial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atanoce with accounting principles generally acceptatie United States of America. Because
of its inherent limitation, internal control ovénéncial reporting may not prevent or detect missteents.

Based on our assessment, we have concluded thaekBusiness Services, Inc. maintained effectiveriral control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2010, based on criteriaternal Control-Integrated Framewotiksued by the COSO. As a non-accelerated filer, the
effectiveness of Newtek Business Services, Inotarial control over financial reporting is notu@gd to be audited by our independent
registered public accounting firm.

This Annual Report does not include an attestatmort of the Company’s independent registeredip@gicounting firm regarding internal
control over financial reporting. Management'’s népeas not subject to attestation by the Compamgspendent registered public accounting
firm pursuant to rules of the Securities and Exglga@ommission that permit the Company to providg oranagement’s report in this Annual
Report.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
None

PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE.

The information required by this Item is incorp@herein by reference to the Company’s definipinexy statement for our 2011 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held later this year.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by this Item is incorp@herein by reference to the Company’s definitikeexy statement for our 2011 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held later this year.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by this Item is incorp@herein by reference to the Company’s definitikexy statement for our 2011 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held later this year.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by this Item is incorp@herein by reference to the Company’s definipinexy statement for our 2011 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held later this year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

The information required by this Item is incorp@herein by reference to the Company’s definipinexy statement for our 2011 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held later this year.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(8)(1) Financial Statement
(@)(2) Exhibits.

The following exhibits are filed herewith or arearporated by reference to exhibits previouslydfikdth the Securities ar
Exchange Commissiol

Number Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioNewtek Business Services, Inc., as amended (pacated by referenc
herein to Exhibit 3.1 to Newt’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@s2010)
3.2 Bylaws of Newtek Business Services, Inc. (Incorpeay reference to Exhibit 3.2 to New's Registration Statement on Fo
S-4, No. 33-115615, filed August 11, 200(
10.1.1 Employment Agreement with Barry Sloane, dated Ddpam31, 2009 (Incorporated by reference to ExHibitl.4 to Newtek’s
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed Mdrgh2010)
10.1.2 Employment Agreement with Barry Sloane, dated Mdrsh2011, filed herewitt
10.2.1 Employment Agreement with Craig J. Brunet, datedddeber 31, 2009 (Incorporated by reference to Eixhih3.4 to Newtek’s
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed Mdsh2010)
10.2.2 Employment Agreement with Craig J. Brunet, dateddd5, 2011, filed herewitl
10.3.1 Employment Agreement with Seth A. Cohen, dated B 31, 2009 (Incorporated by reference to ExHiBiil5.1 to Newtels
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed Mdrgh2010)
10.3.2 Employment Agreement with Seth A. Cohen, dated Mas, 2011, filed herewitt
10.4 Lease and Master Services Agreement dated March0lw, between CrystalTech Web Hosting, Inc. an@®#ta Centers

(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Névg&uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarteded March 31, 2007,
filed May 15, 2007)

10.5 Credit and Security Agreement, dated February Q@72by and between CDS Business Services, IncWalts Fargo Bank
National Association (Incorporated by referenc&xaibit 10.9 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form 1Q-for the quarter ende
June 30, 2007, filed August 14, 200

10.5.1 Waiver under Credit and Security Agreement datdatdrgey 27, 2007 by and between CDS Business Sepice. and Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, dated AugustQD72(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 ewhek’s Quarterly Report
on Form 1+-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007, filed Au@ds2007)

10.5.2 Second Amendment, dated October 20, 2008, to CaeditSecurity Agreement, dated February 27, 208fyden CDS Business
Services, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Aggam (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 9% INewtek’s Current Report
on Form &K, filed October 22, 2008

10.6.1 Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of April281,0, between CrystalTech Web Hosting, Inc., Nev@@saiall Busines
Finance, Inc. and Capital One, N.A. (Incorporatgadierence herein to Exhibit 10.16.1 to Newtekigt@nt Report on Form 8-
K, filed May 4, 2010)

10.6.2 Guaranty of Payment and Performance, dated as mf 3 2010, between Newtek Business Services,dnd Capital One
Bank, N.A. (Incorporated by reference herein toiBxH0.16.2 to Newte's Current Report on Forn-K, filed May 4, 2010)

10.7.1 Newtek Business Services, Inc. 2010 Stock IncerRiaa (Incorporated by reference herein to ExHibitL7 to Newte's Current
Report on Form -K, filed June 14, 2010

10.7.2 Form of ISO Stock Option Agreement for New's 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refeeeherein to Exhib
10.17.2 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@s2010)

10.7.3 Form of NoI-ISO Stock Option Agreement for New’s 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refeeeherein to Exhib

10.17.3 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@s2010)
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10.7.4

10.7.5

10.8.1

10.8.2

10.9.1

10.10.:

10.10.:

211
23.1
311

31.2

32.1

32.2

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement for Nek's 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refeseeherein tc
Exhibit 10.17.4 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@s2010

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement for Nevgt@k10 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refiee herein to Exhibit
10.17.5 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@s2010.’

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of Decemie2d10, between Newtek Small Business Finance gimt Capital One
Bank, N.A. (Incorporated by reference herein toigiH.0.18.1 to Newtek’s Current Report on Form gfiked December 20,
2010, as amended on March 2, 20:

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2@t@een Newtek Business Services, Inc. and CdpitalBank, N.A
(Incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 10L18. Newtek’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed Beter 20, 2010, as
amended on March 2, 201.

Newtek Small Business Loan Trust Class A Notesdi&tecember 22, 2010 (Incorporated by referencaimés Exhibit 10.19.:
to Newtel's Current Report on Forn-K, filed December 23, 2010

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of Februgrg@11, by and between CDS Business ServicesahttSterling Natione
Bank (Incorporated by reference herein to ExhibitlD.1 to Newte's Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 3, 2011)

Guaranty, dated as of February 28, 2011, by anddset Newtek Business Services, Inc. and SterlingpNal Bank (Incorporate
by reference herein to Exhibit 10.10.2 to Nev's Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 3, 2011)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant filed herew
Consent of J.H. Cohn LLP filed herewi

Certification by Principal Executive Officer reged by Rule 13-14(a) and 15-14(a) under the Exchange Act, as amended
herewith.

Certification by Principal Financial Officer reqed by Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Exgshawt, as amended filed
herewith.

Certification by Principal Executive Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursoaBéttion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 filed herewitt

Certification by Principal Financial Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursoadection 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 filed herewitt
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of 18{the Exchange Act, the registrant has duly cdtisis report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.

Date: March 17, 201 By: /'s/ BARRY SLOANE
Barry Sloane

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 17, 201 By: /'s/ SETHA. C OHEN
Seth A. Cohen

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this repostlieen signed below by the following persons oralfeti the registrant and in the capacit
and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ BARRY SLOANE Chairman of the Board, President, Chief March 17, 201:
Barry Sloane Executive Officer and Secretary
(Principal Executive Officer
/s/  SETHA. C OHEN Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer March 17, 201:
Seth A. Cohen (Principal Financial Officer
/'s/ Davip C. BECK Director March 17, 201:
David C. Beck
/'s/ SALVATORE M ULIA Director March 17, 201:
Salvatore Mulia
/s/  SAMUEL K IRSCHNER Director March 17, 201:

Samuel Kirschner
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EXHIBITS INDEX

Number

3.1

3.2

10.1.1

10.1.2
10.2.1

10.2.2
10.3.1

10.3.2

10.4

10.5

10.5.1

10.5.2

10.6.1

10.6.2

10.7.1

10.7.2

10.7.3

10.7.4

10.7.5

10.8.1

Description

Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioNewtek Business Services, Inc., as amended (puecated by reference
herein to Exhibit 3.1 to Newt’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@s2010)

Bylaws of Newtek Business Services, Inc. (Incorpetteby reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Newtek’s Registm Statement on Form
S-4, No. 33:-115615, filed August 11, 200(

Employment Agreement with Barry Sloane, dated Dde=m31, 2009 (Incorporated by reference to ExHibit.4 to Newte's
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed Mdrsh2010)

Employment Agreement with Barry Sloane, dated Mdrsh2011, filed herewitt

Employment Agreement with Craig J. Brunet, datedddeber 31, 2009 (Incorporated by reference to Eixbhih3.4 to Newte's
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed Mdrgh2010)

Employment Agreement with Craig J. Brunet, dateddd5, 2011, filed herewitl

Employment Agreement with Seth A. Cohen, dated B 31, 2009 (Incorporated by reference to ExHiBit5.1 to Newte's
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2009, filed Mdrsh2010)

Employment Agreement with Seth A. Cohen, dated Mas, 2011, filed herewitt

Lease and Master Services Agreement dated March00g, between CrystalTech Web Hosting, Inc. an®éta Center
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Nég&uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartedexd March 31, 2007,
filed May 15, 2007)

Credit and Security Agreement, dated February Q@72by and between CDS Business Services, IncWaild Fargo Bank,
National Association (Incorporated by referenc&xaibit 10.9 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form 1Q-for the quarter ende
June 30, 2007, filed August 14, 200

Waiver under Credit and Security Agreement datdatlrgey 27, 2007 by and between CDS Business Sepice. and Well:
Fargo Bank, National Association, dated AugustQQ72(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 ewhek’s Quarterly Report
on Form 1+-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2007, filed Au@ds2007)

Second Amendment, dated October 20, 2008, to CaeditSecurity Agreement, dated February 27, 208iyden CDS Busine:
Services, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Aggam (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 9% INewtek’s Current Report
on Form &K, filed October 22, 2008

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of AprilZ1L0, between CrystalTech Web Hosting, Inc., Nev@siall Business
Finance, Inc. and Capital One, N.A. (Incorporatgadierence herein to Exhibit 10.16.1 to Newtekigt@nt Report on Form 8-
K, filed May 4, 2010)

Guaranty of Payment and Performance, dated as f 3} 2010, between Newtek Business Services,dnd Capital On
Bank, N.A. (Incorporated by reference herein toiBxt.0.16.2 to Newte's Current Report on Forn-K, filed May 4, 2010)

Newtek Business Services, Inc. 2010 Stock IncerRiaa (Incorporated by reference herein to ExHiBitL7 to Newte’s Current
Report on Form -K, filed June 14, 2010

Form of ISO Stock Option Agreement for Newtek’s @Q@&tock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by referereeinm to Exhibit
10.17.2 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@s2010)

Form of Non-ISO Stock Option Agreement for NewteR®10 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refeeemerein to Exhibit
10.17.3 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@s2010)

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement for Nek’s 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refeeeherein t
Exhibit 10.17.4 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Aug@s010

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement for Ne's 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by refeeeherein to Exhib
10.17.5 to Newte's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010, filed Au@@2s2010.

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of Decemie2d10, between Newtek Small Business Finance gimtt Capital On
Bank, N.A. (Incorporated by reference herein toiBiH0.18.1 to Newtek’s Current Report on Form gfiked December 20,
2010, as amended on March 2, 20:
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10.8.2

10.9.1

10.10.:

10.10.:

211
23.1
311

31.2

32.1

32.2

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2@t@een Newtek Business Services, Inc. and CdpitalBank, N.A
(Incorporated by reference herein to Exhibit 10L18. Newtek’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed Beter 20, 2010, as
amended on March 2, 201.

Newtek Small Business Loan Trust Class A Notesdi&tecember 22, 2010 (Incorporated by referencaimées Exhibit 10.19.:
to Newtel's Current Report on Forn-K, filed December 23, 2010

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of Februgrg@11, by and between CDS Business ServicesahtcSterling Natione
Bank (Incorporated by reference herein to ExhibitlD.1 to Newte's Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 3, 2011)

Guaranty, dated as of February 28, 2011, by anddsat Newtek Business Services, Inc. and SterlingpNal Bank (Incorporate
by reference herein to Exhibit 10.10.2 to Nev's Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 3, 2011)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant filed herew
Consent of J.H. Cohn LLP filed herewi

Certification by Principal Executive Officer reged by Rule 13-14(a) and 15-14(a) under the Exchange Act, as amended
herewith.

Certification by Principal Financial Officer reqed by Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Exgshawt, as amended filed
herewith.

Certification by Principal Executive Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursoaBéttion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 filed herewitt

Certification by Principal Financial Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursoadection 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 filed herewitt
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Newtek Business Services, Ir

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Newtek Business Services, Inc. andidialies as of December 31, 2010
and 2009, and the related consolidated stateménofseoations, changes in equity and cash flowsé&mh of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2010. These consolidated fialesteitements are the responsibility of the Commmanagement. Our responsibility is
express an opinion on these consolidated finastadéments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBlgUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaepferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of Newtek
Business Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Deer31, 2010 and 2009, and their results of ofersand cash flows for each of the years
in the three-year period ended December 31, 2@1dynformity with accounting principles generaltycapted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 3, in 2008, the Company chéiitganethod of accounting for valuing its Caporredits in lieu of cash, notes payable in
credits in lieu of cash and prepaid insurance wheradoption of a new accounting standard. Furth&010, the Company used the fair value
option to change its method of accounting for vaduits liability on SBA loans transferred, subjezipremium recourse; SBA loans held for
investment; SBA loans held for sale; and SBA loaassferred, subject to premium recourse.

/s/ J.H. Cohn LLP

Jericho, New York
March 17, 2011
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 20®
(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

2010

2009

2008

Operating revenue $112,71¢  $105,71: $ 98,88t
Net change in fair value ¢
SBA loans 3,49¢ — —
Credits in lieu of cash and notes payable in csaditieu of casl 38 90C (8)
Total net change in fair valt 3,532 90C (8)
Operating expense
Electronic payment processing ca 68,18 58,31: 51,10¢
Salaries and benefi 19,39! 18,37t 21,89(
Interest 4,47¢ 10,35( 10,88’
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,70¢ 5,84 7,592
Provision for loan losse 1,90¢ 1,83: 2,53(
Other general and administrative cc 16,69¢ 15,89¢ 17,93¢
Total operating expens 115,37 110,61< 111,94¢
Income (loss) before income tax 877 (4,0072) (13,069
Benefit for income taxe 41€ 2,59: 2,05(
Net income (loss 1,29¢ (1,409 (11,019
Net loss attributable to n-controlling interest: 144 98C 55€
Net income (loss) attributable to Newtek Business/i8es, Inc $ 143¢ $ (429 $(10,46)
Weighted average common shares outstan
Basic 35,65¢ 35,64 35,73¢
Diluted 35,80! 35,64+ 35,73¢
Basic and diluted income (loss) per st $ 004 $ (00) $ (0.29

See accompanying notes to these consolidated fadatatements.
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
(In Thousands, except for Per Share Data)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Broker receivablt
SBA loans held for investment (net of reserve éanl losses of $3,559 and $3,985, respectiy
SBA loans held for investment, at fair va
Accounts receivable (net of allowance of $193 a2tll$ respectively
SBA loans held for sale ($1,014 and $0 at fair gatespectively
Prepaid expenses and other assets (net of acceahalatortization of deferred financing costs of $8,and $2,491
respectively’
Servicing assets (net of accumulated amortizatimhadlowances of $5,189 and $4,539, respectiy
Fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation arattization of $14,719 and $12,276, respectiv
Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortizaidfdbl 1,881 and $10,299, respective
SBA loans transferred, subject to premium reco($8é,212 at fair value
Credits in lieu of cas
Goodwill

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Notes payabl
Deferred revenu
Liability on SBA loans transferred, subject to prem recourse, at fair valt
Notes payable in credits lieu of cast
Deferred tax liability, ne
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenci
Equity:
Newtek Business Services, Inc stockhol’ equity:
Preferred stock (par value $0.02 per share; authdrl 000 shares, no shares issued and outstal
Common stock (par value $0.02 per share; authoB24e@00 shares, 36,701 and 36,674 issued,
respectively; 35,666 and 35,648 outstanding, resmdy, not including 83 shares held in escrc
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated defici
Treasury stock, at cost (1,035 and 1,026 sharsgectively)
Total Newtek Business Services, Inc. stockhol’ equity
Non-controlling interest:
Total equity
Total liabilities and equit

See accompanying notes to these consolidated fadastatements.
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2010 2009
$10,38. $ 12,58
10,74 6,73¢
12,05¢ 6,46
23,74: 23,25
2,31( —
9,99( 5,01
1,014 20C
7,80¢ 7,50z
2,22t 2,43
3,21( 3,631
2,75¢ 4,21¢
31,18¢ —
35,49: 51,94;
12,09: 12,09:
$165,01!  $136,08:
$10,32: $ 831/
28,05: 16,29¢
1,76¢ 1,86:
30,78: —
35,49¢ 51,94
3,002 3,63
109,42 82,05t
734 73¢
57,65( 57,30:
(3,436) (4,979
(669) (649)
54,28¢ 52,41
1,30¢ 1,61¢
55,59+ 54,02
$165,01!  $136,08:
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 20®

Balance at December 31, 2C

Issuance of common sto

Deferred compensation relating to restricted s

Stoclk-based compensatic

Purchase of treasury sha

Issuance of warran

Paid in capital in excess of par, upon acquisitibn
subsidiary preferred sto¢

Acquisition of nor-controlling interes

Issuance of treasury shares to 401k |

Acquisition of treasury shares from affilie

Capco fair value adoption adjustment, net of

Distributions

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2C

Issuance of common sto

Stock-based compensatic

Purchase of treasury sha

Cancellation of treasury shar

Distributions

Paid in capital in excess of par, upon acquisitib
subsidiary minority intere

Dividends paic- $0.02 per shar

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2C

Stoclk-based compensatic

Grant of restricted stock awa

Option exercist

Expiration of subsidiary non-controlling interest
warrants

Cumulative-effect adjustment, deconsolidation of

Onlan, LLC
Non-controlling interest contributio
Net income

Balance at December 31, 20

(In Thousands)

Number of Number of
Additional
Shares of Common Shares of Treasury
Common Paid-in Retained Treasury Non-controlling
Stock Stock Capital Earnings Stock Stock Interest Total
36,08. $ 72z $56,16. $ 20,24* 217 $ (309 $ 4,97( $ 81,79t
80 1 80 — — — — 81
33 1 19 — — — — 20
— — 192 — — — — 192
= - - - 41€ (458 = (45€)
— — 13 — — — — 13
— — 1,80( — — — — 1,80(
— — — — — — (2,000 (2,000
— — (24) — (80) 11z — 88
47z 9 (9) — 472 — — —
— — — (14,32) — — — (14,32)
— — — — — — (10€) (10€)
— o — (10,469 o o (55€) (11,019
36,667 $ 73% $58,23. $ (4,545 1,02¢ $ (649 $ 2,30¢ $56,07¢
7 — — — — — — —
— — 12¢€ — — — — 12¢
— — — — 3 (1) — 1)
— — (1) — ©) 1 — —
- = — — — — (44) (44)
— — (331) — — — 331 —
— — (726) — — — — (726)
— — — (429 — — (980) (1,409
36,67 $ 732 $57,30: $ (4,979 1,02¢ $ (649 $ 1,61t $ 54,02
— — 77 — — — — 77
— — 4 — — — — 4
27 1 25 — 9 (14) — 12
— — 242 — — — (262) (20)
— — — 99 — — — 99
— — — — — — 10C 10C
— — — 1,43¢ — — (144) 1,29t
36,70 $ 734 $57,65( $ (3,436 1,03t $ (669 $ 1,30¢ $ 55,59+

See accompanying notes to these consolidated falatatements.
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 20®

(In Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rRehc(used in) provided by operating activit
Income from tax credit
Accretion of interest expen:
Fair value adjustments on SBA loe
Fair value adjustment of credits in lieu of casH antes payable in credits in lieu of ci
Gain on sale/recovery of investme
Deferred income taxe
Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision for loan losse
Other, ne
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Originations of SBA loans held for se
Originations of SBA loans transferred, subject tenpium recours
Originations of SBA loans, achieving sale st¢
Proceeds from sale of SBA loans, achieving sateis
Liability on SBA loans transferred, subject to prem recours¢
Broker receivablt
Accounts receivabl
Prepaid expenses, accrued interest receivabletard @sset
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and deferredue
Other, ne
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi
Cash flows from investing activitie
Investments in qualified business
Returns of investments in qualified busines
Purchase of fixed assets and customer merchantiats
SBA loans originated for investment, 1
Payments received on SBA loz
Proceeds from sale of SBA loans held for investr
Change in restricted ca
Other, ne
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi

2010 2009 2008
$ 1,295  $ (1,409  $(11,019
(2,380) (7,837) (7,989)
2,41¢ 8,73¢ 8,64¢
(3,49¢) — —
(38) (900) 8
— (1,117 (15€)
(639) (1,710 (2,98¢)
4,70¢ 5,847 7,571
1,90¢ 1,83: 2,53(
1,037 66C 1,62¢
(782 (14,390 (19,939
(30,75:) — —
(25,987) — —
25,98: 20,32: 14,16:
34,00 — —
(5,59]) (6,109 (364)
(4,987) 13€ (1,35¢)
(45) 70€ 23€
1,84¢ (1,15¢) (514)
(817) (495) (8)
(2,209) 3,12¢ (9,540)
— (428) (3,50¢)
23¢ 2,51¢ 2,93:
(2,075) (1,762) (3,497)
(8,244) (2,11)) (7,145)
3,21% 3,48¢ 4,79¢
— 517 644
53z 1,18¢ 4,441
— — (200)
(6,336) 3,40( (1,530)

See accompanying notes to these consolidated fadastatements.
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 20®

(In Thousands)

Cash flows from financing activitie
Net (repayments) proceeds on bank lines of ¢
Proceeds from bank term note paye
Payments on bank term note paye
Issuance of senior notes, net of issuance «
Change in restricted cash related to securitize
Payments on senior not
Dividends paic
Purchase of treasury sha
Other, ne

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Net decrease in cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash equivale—beginning of yea

Cash and cash equivale—end of yea
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow activities
Cash paid for intere:

Cash paid for taxe

Non-cash investing and financing activities
Reduction of credits in lieu of cash and notes plyan credits in lieu of cash balances due toveeyi of
tax credits to Certified Investo

Refinance of line of credit to term lo:

Additional paid in capital, upon acquisition of sitiaries no-controlling interest:
Paid in capital in excess of par, upon acquisitibeubsidiary preferred stot
Shares held in escrow released to former sharehofdibsidiary

Issuance of treasury shares for 401k mi

Reduction of structured insurance product and nodgable- Certified Investor:

See accompanying notes to these consolidated fadastatements.
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2010 2009 2008
$ (3,107 $ (9,700 $ 3,201
12,50( — —
(12,749 — —
14,51( — —
(4,16)) — —

(299) — —

— (726) —
— — (45¢)
(355) (379 (199)
6,34 (10,799 _ 2,55
(2,199  (4,27) (8,520
12,58: 16,85: 25,37
$10,38. $12,58° $16,85:
$ 1,28¢ $ 128 $ 163
$ 38 $ 752 $ 28¢
$21,18° $28,90:  $18,95¢

$ 208 $ — $ —

$ 23€ $ 331 $ —
$ — 0§ —  $180C
$ — $ — $ 76
$ — $ — $ 11z
$ — $ — $ 3,81(
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NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1—DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENRATION:

Newtek Business Services, I. (“Newtek”) is a holding company for several wholgnd majority-owned subsidiaries, including twelve
certified capital companies which are referredg&apcos, and several portfolio companies in wtiehCapcos own non-controlling or
minority interests. The Company provides a “ongystbop” for business services to the small- andinmegized business market and uses
state of the art web-based proprietary technolodyeta low cost acquirer and provider of produnts services. The Company partners with
companies, credit unions, and associations to @ffeservices.

The Company’s principal business segments are:

Electronic Payment ProcessingMarketing third party credit card processing andathapproval services to the small- and mediumdsize
business market.

Web Hosting: CrystalTech Web Hosting, Inc., d/b/a/ Newtek Tedbgy Services, offers shared and dedicated webrgpahd related servic
to the small- and medium-sized business market.

Small Business FinancePrimarily consists of Newtek Small Business Finaree. (‘“NSBF”), a nationally licensed, U.S. SmBlisiness
Administration (“SBA”) lender that originates, selnd services loans to qualifying small businessbich are partially guaranteed by the
SBA; and CDS Business Services, Inc. d/b/a Newtgsiress Credit (“NBC”) which provides receivabledincing.

All Other: Includes results from businesses formed from Imaests in Qualified Businesses made through Capagrams which cannot be
aggregated with other operating segments.

Corporate Activities: Corporate implements business strategy, direct&etiag, provides technology oversight and guidacoerdinates and
integrates activities of the segments, contracts alliance partners, acquires customer oppores)iind owns our proprietary NewTracker™
referral system. This segment includes revenuesapdnses not allocated to other segments, includtagest income, Capco management fee
income and corporate operations expenses.

Capcos:Twelve certified capital companies which invessinall- and medium-sized businesses. They geneoateash income from tax
credits and non-cash interest expense.

The consolidated financial statements of NewtekifBss Services, Inc., its Subsidiaries and conatgitientities (the “Company” or

“Newtek”) included herein have been prepared by the Compeagdordance with accounting principles generaltyepted in the United Sta

of America and include all wholly- and majority-oach subsidiaries, and several portfolio companieghiith the Capcos own non-controlling
interest in, or those variable interest entitiesclwiNewtek is considered to be the primary benaficof. All inter-company balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidatitim-controlling interests (previously shown as onity interest) are reported below net
income (loss) under the heading “Net loss attribleté#o non-controlling interests” in the consoliglhstatements of operations and shown as a
component of equity in the consolidated balancetsh&ee New Accounting Standards for further disicun.

Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest in results of operations ohsolidated variable interest entities and majevityned subsidiaries represents the non-
controlling members’ share of the earnings or lfthe consolidated variable interest entities avagjority-owned subsidiaries. The non-
controlling interest in the consolidated balanceethreflects the original investment by these nomtrolling members in the consolidated
variable interest entities and majority-owned sdiasies, along with their proportional shares ahésgs or losses of the respective entity. In
the case in which losses, incurred through Dece®bgP008, applicable to the non-controlling ingtrexceed the non-controlling interest in
the equity capital of the variable interest engitie the majority-owned subsidiaries, such excpptiaable to the non-controlling interest are
charged against the controlling interest as thermiobligation of the non-controlling interesfiimd such losses. However, subsequent to
December 31, 2008, both earnings and losses aiteuggt to the non-controlling interest even iflieates a deficit non-controlling

interest. Losses previously recognized by the otlintg interest are no longer recovered from futprefits.

All financial information included in the tables the following footnotes is stated in thousandsegt per share data.
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NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial stateméntonformity with accounting principles geneyaltcepted in the United States of Ame
requires management to make estimates and assasiiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the constddifinancial statements, and the reported amafrresvenue and expense during the reporting
period. The level of uncertainty in estimates assbanptions increases with the length of time dhé&lunderlying transactions are complete.
The most significant estimates are with respewttaation of investments in qualified businessesetimpairment valuation, allowance for
loan losses, valuation of servicing assets, chhegk-reserves, tax valuation allowances and the/édile measurements used to value certain
financial assets and financial liabilities. Actuasults could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognitio
The Company operates in a number of different seggn®evenues are recognized as services are eshded are summarized as follows:

Electronic payment processing revenueElectronic payment processing income is derivethftbe electronic processing of credit and debit
card transactions that are authorized and capttredgh third-party networks. Typically, merchaate charged for these processing services
on a percentage of the dollar amount of each tddiaseplus a flat fee per transaction. Certain rhant customers are charged miscellaneous
fees, including fees for handling charge-backsturns, monthly minimum fees, statement fees aes fier other miscellaneous services.
Revenues derived from the electronic processingadterCarc® and Vis& sourced credit and debit ¢ardsactions are reported gross of
amounts paid to sponsor banks.

The Company also derives revenues from actingagepiendent sales offices (“ISO”) for third-party geesors (“residual revenue”) and from
the sale of credit and debit card devices. Residwanue is recognized monthly, based on contrhaggraements with such processors to share
in the residual income derived from the underlyingrchant agreements. Revenues derived from sabsguigment are recognized at the time
of shipment to the merchant.

Web hosting revenueWeb hosting revenues are primarily derived from thiyrrecurring service fees for the use of its vaelsting, web
design and software support services. Customersétes are billed upon service initiation andramgnized as revenue over the estimated
customer relationship period of 2.5 years. Payrfaaniveb hosting and related services is generaltgived one month to three years in
advance. Deferred revenues represent customerypnepds for upcoming web hosting and related sesvice

Income from tax credits: Following an application process, a state will fyoéi company that it has been certified as a Caple.state then
allocates an aggregate dollar amount of tax créalitse Capco. However, such amount is neithergeized as income nor otherwise recorded
in the financial statements since it has yet tedmmed by the Capco. The Capco is legally entitteshrn tax credits upon satisfying defined
investment percentage thresholds within specifiee@ tequirements and corresponding non-recaptueeptages. At December 31, 2010, the
Company had Capcos in six states and the DistriCbtumbia. Each statute requires that the Capeesina threshold percentage of Certified
Capital in Qualified Businesses within the timenfies specified. As the Capco meets these requiregrieatvoids grounds under the statute for
its disqualification for continued participationtime Capco program. Such a disqualification, occtdtfication” as a Capco results in a
recapture of all or a portion of the allocated ¢eedits; the proportion of the recapture is redunegt time as the Capco remains in general
compliance with the program rules and meets thgrpssively increasing investment benchmarks.

As the Capco continues to make its investmentsualied Businesses and, accordingly, places areasing proportion of the tax credits
beyond recapture, it earns an amount equal todheecapturable tax credits and records such amesutincome from tax credits”, with a
corresponding asset called “credits in lieu of Eashthe accompanying consolidated balance sh@&és.amount earned and recorded as
income is determined by multiplying the total amboftax credits allocated to the Capco by the @etage of tax credits immune from
recapture (the earned income percentage) undstatestatute. To the extent that the investmentirements are met ahead of schedule, and
the percentage of non-recapturable tax creditsdslarated, the present value of the tax creditezhis recognized currently and the asset,
credits in lieu of cash, is accreted up to the amofitax credits available to the Certified Invast If the tax credits are earned before the state
is required to make delivery (i.e., investment iegments are met ahead of schedule, but creditelgrbe used by the certified investor in a
future year), then the present value of the tagitsearned are recorded upon completion of theireaents. The receivable (called “credits in
lieu of cash”) is accreted to the annual delivezabhount which can then be delivered to the insgraompany investors in lieu of cash
interest. Delivery of the tax credits to the CegtifInvestors results in a decrease of the recksivaatd the notes payable in credits in lieu of
cash.
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The allocation and utilization of Capco tax credstsontrolled by the state law. In general, the&aapplies for tax credits from the state ar
allocated a specific dollar amount of credits which available to be earned. The Capco providest#te with a list of the Certified Investors,
who have contractually agreed to accept the taditsrén lieu of cash interest payments on theiesof he tax credits are claimed by the
Certified Investors on their state premium tax metas provided under each state Capco and tax3tate regulations specify the amount of tax
credits a Certified Investor can claim and thequin which they can claim them. Each state pecaltyi reviews the Capco’s operations to
verify the amount of tax credits earned. In additithe state maintains a list of Certified Investand therefore has the ability to determine
whether the Certified Investor is allowed to cldahis deduction.

Sales and Servicing of SBA LoandNSBF originates loans to customers under the SBnam that generally provides for SBA guarantees of
50% to 90% of each loan, subject to a maximum guaesamount. Generally, NSBF sells the guaranteeibp of each loan to a third party

via an SBA regulated secondary market transactitining SBA form 1086 for a price equal to the gaateed loan amount plus a premium
includes both an upfront cash payment and thevédire of future net servicing income and retairesuhguaranteed principal portion in its own
portfolio. Prior to October 1, 2010, NSBF recoguizbe revenue item “Premium on loan sales” netagitalized loan expenses and the
discount on the retained unguaranteed portion;espent to the adoption of fair value of SBA 7(arie on October 1, 2010, NSBF recognizes
premium on loan sales as equal to the cash prempiusithe fair value of the servicing income. Reveiwrecognized on the trade date of the
guaranteed portion, except as described below.

Prior to February 7, 2011, SBA Form 1086 requiregart of the transferor’s representations andamsies that the transferor repay any
premium received from the transferee if either$iBA 7(a) loan borrower prepays the loan within 89gof the transfer settlement date or 1
to make one of its first three loan payments aftersettlement date in a timely fashion and thecgeds to default within 275 days of the
settlement date. Based on management’s best estamdtconsidering historical prepayment performanrficke loan portfolio, the Company
took the position that the premium was fully recagd at trade date, and a provision against theaijpira was not required at the time of the
sale. However, effective January 1, 2010, AccognBtandards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 860, “Traass and Servicing,” precludes sale
treatment of the transferred guaranteed portionsigthis warranty period; rather NSBF is requitecccount for this as a financing
arrangement with the transferee. Until the warrgnasiod expires, such transferred loans are cladsifs “SBA Loans Transferred, subject to
premium recourse” with a matching liability “Lialtyf on SBA Loans Transferred, subject to premiucorgse.” At the expiration of the
warranty period, the sale of the guaranteed pastafrthese loans as well as the correspondingigaétognized, and the asset and liability
eliminated. After February 7, 2011, the new SBARrd086 form will allow the Company to recognize miem income concurrent with the
date of transfer, as was done prior to Januar@102As a result, the balances at December 31, ROEBA loans transferred, subject to
premium recourse” and “Liability on SBA loans tréarsed, subject to premium recourse” will decredseughout 2011 with the expectation
that they will reach zero by September 30, 2011.

Upon recognition of each loan sale, the Comparginstservicing responsibilities and receives sargiéees of a minimum of 1% of the
guaranteed loan portion sold. The Company is reduin estimate its adequate servicing compensatithre calculation of its servicing asset.
The purchasers of the loans sold have no recoartetCompany for failure of customers to pay an®gnntractually due. NSBF separately
recognizes at fair value any servicing assets iceg liabilities first, and then allocates theepious carrying amount between the assets sold
and the interests that continue to be held byé (thguaranteed portion of the loan) based on thkitive fair values at the date of transfer.
difference between the proceeds received and kbeased carrying value of the financial assets sol@cognized as a gain on sale of loans.

Subsequent measurements of each class of sereisgmgs and liabilities may use either the amoitimahethod or the fair value measurement
method. NSBF has chosen to apply the amortizatiethod to its servicing asset, amortizing the assptoportion to, and over the period of,
the estimated future net servicing income on traedging sold guaranteed portion of the loans asgkssing the servicing asset for impairn
based on fair value at each reporting date. Iretleat future prepayments are significant or impairta are incurred and future expected cash
flows are inadequate to cover the unamortized siexyiassets, additional amortization or impairnararges would be recognized. In
evaluating and measuring impairment of servicirgetss NSBF stratifies its servicing assets basegeanof loan and loan term which are the
key risk characteristics of the underlying loan Iso®he Company uses an independent valuationajgdb estimate the fair value of the
servicing asset by calculating the present valuestimated future net servicing cash flows, usisguaptions of prepayments, defaults,
servicing costs and discount rates that NSBF betienarket participants would use for similar as$ENdSBF determines that the impairment
for a stratum is temporary, a valuation allowarsceecognized

F-9



Table of Contents

through a charge to current earnings for the amthenamortized balance exceeds the current fairevdd the fair value of the stratum were to
later increase, the valuation allowance may beaedas a recovery. However, if NSBF determinesithpairment for a stratum is other than
temporary, the value of the servicing asset andrelayed valuation allowance is written-down.

Interest and Small Business Administration (“SBA”) Loan Fees—SBA Loansinterest income on loans is recognized as earnaghd are
placed on non-accrual status if they are 90 dagsduee with respect to principal or interest andhie opinion of management, interest or
principal on individual loans is not collectible, @ such earlier time as management determinéshiaollectability of such principal or
interest is unlikely. Such loans are designateichasired non-accrual loans. All other loans aréraef as performing loans. When a loan is
designated as non-accrual, the accrual of inte&seiscontinued, and any accrued but uncollectetest income is reversed and charged
against current operations. While a loan is clas$ifs non-accrual and the future collectabilityhaf recorded loan balance is doubtful,
collections of interest and principal are generalplied as a reduction to principal outstanding.

The Company passes certain expenditures it inoutsetborrower, such as forced placed insuransefficient funds fees, or fees it assesses,
such as late fees, with respect to managing thre Ibaese expenditures are recorded when incurred.t®the uncertainty with respect to
collection of these passed through expendituressessed fees, any funds received to reimbursedtimpany are recorded on a cash basis as
other income.

Insurance commissionsRevenues are comprised of commissions earned amyres paid for insurance policies and are recogh&dhe
time the commission is earned. At that date, thiriegs process has been completed and the Compangstimate the impact of policy
cancellations for refunds and establish reservies.r&€serve for policy cancellations is based ototical cancellation experience adjusted by
known circumstances.

Other income: Other income represents revenues generated by &8®ell as revenues derived from operating unédst¢hnnot be aggregat
with other business segments, and one-time reasserigains on qualified investments. Revenuecisroed when there is pervasive evidence
of an agreement, the related fees are fixed, thécse and or product has been delivered, and ¢dleation of the related receivable is assured.
Other income particular to NBC include the folloggioomponents:

. Receivable fee:Receivable fees are derived from the funding (paseh of receivables from finance clients. The Campacognizes the
revenue on the date the receivables are purchasepesicentage of face value as agreed to by idet @t which time the Company takes
ownership of the receivables. The Company alsahasgements with certain of its clients wherelpuitchases the client’s receivables
and charges interest at a specified rate baseldecamount of funds advanced against such receabie funds provided are
collateralized and the interest income is recogh&® earnec

. Late feesl ate fees are derived from receivables the Compasyalready purchased that have gone over a cesdod (usually over 3
days) without payment. The client or the cI’s customer is charged a late fee according togheeaent with the clien

. Billing fees:Billing fees are derived from billir-only (nor-finance) clients. These fees are recorded wheredawhich occurs when tt
service is rendere:

. Other feesThese fees include annual fees, due diligence feesjnation fees, under minimum fees, and othes facluding finance
charges, supplies sold to clients, NSF fees, wdies ind administration fees. These fees are chapgedfunding, takeovers or liquidati
of finance clients. The Company also receives casioin revenue from various sourc

The detail of total operating revenues includethinconsolidated statements of operations is &sAfslfor the years ended:

(In thousands): 2010 2009 2008

Electronic payment processi $ 80,92( $ 69,65¢ $63,28!
Web hostincg 19,16¢ 18,84¢ 18,06¢
Interest incomt 1,90: 1,73¢ 3,35¢
Income from tax credit 2,38( 7,831 7,98¢
Premium on loan sale 2,42¢ 1,65z 474
Servicing fee 2,56¢ 1,62¢ 1,771
Insurance commissior 88¢ 811 1,03¢
Other income 2,47( 3,551 2,917
Totals $112,71¢ $105,71: $98,88¢
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Electronic Payment Processing Cos

Electronic payment processing costs consist pratlgipf costs directly related to the processingnefrchant sales volume, including
interchange fees, VISA and MasterCard dues andgsissats, bank processing fees and costs paid-depaity processing networks. Such
costs are recognized at the time the merchantactings are processed or when the services arerpexfl. Two of the most significant
components of electronic processing expenses iadghtdrchange and assessment costs, which arg e bredit card associations.
Interchange costs are passed on to the entitynig$he credit card used in the transaction andsassnt costs are retained by the credit card
associations. Interchange and assessment feesledepbimarily as a percent of dollar volume presed and, to a lesser extent, as a per
transaction fee. In addition to costs directly tedbto the processing of merchant sales volumetreldc payment processing costs also include
residual expenses. Residual expenses represemidieet® third-party sales referral sources. Redid¥penses are paid under various formulae
as contracted with such third-party referral sosrteit are generally linked to revenues derivethfrserchants successfully referred to the
Company and that begin using the Company for matgh@cessing services. Such residual expensdgcally ongoing as long as the
referred merchant remains a customer of the Compadyare recognized as expenses as related revereuessognized in the Company’s
consolidated statements of operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmenith maturities of three months or less when paseltl to be cash equivalents. Invested
cash is held almost exclusively at financial ingi@ns with ratings from Standard and Poor’s ofoAbetter. The Company invests cash not
in interest free checking accounts or bank monesketaccounts mainly in U.S. Treasury only moneykatinstruments or funds and other
investment-grade securities. As of December 310264sh deposits in excess of FDIC and SIPC insertotaled approximately $1,853,000
and funds held in U.S. Treasury only money marlgatlé or equivalents in excess of SIPC insuranedeapproximately $5,517,000.

Restricted Casl

Restricted cash includes cash collateral relatng letter of credit; monies due on SBA loan-relatmittances and insurance premiums
received by the Company and due to third partieshdeld by the Capcos restricted for use in magaaid operating the Capco, making
qualified investments and for the payment of incdenees; cash held in a pre-funding account whidhbei used to purchase future
unguaranteed portions of SBA 7(a) loans, cashvesernd prepaid interest associated with the semtibn, and a cash account maintained as
a reserve against chargeback losses.

Purchased Receivable

Purchased receivables are recorded at the poiiméwhen cash is released to the seller. A mgjofithe receivables purchased have recourse
and are charged back to the seller if aged ove®®@r 120 days, depending on contractual agreemBntchased receivables are included in
accounts receivable on the accompanying consotidstance sheet.

Allowance for Doubtful Account— Purchased Receivables

The allowance for doubtful accounts, related tachased receivables, is established by managenrength provisions for bad debts charged
against income. Amounts deemed to be uncollectitdecharged against the allowance for doubtful @etsoand subsequent recoveries, if any,
are credited to income.

The amount of the allowance for doubtful accoustsherently subjective, as it requires making matestimates which may vary from actual
results. Managememstongoing estimates of the allowance for doubtfagbants are particularly affected by the perforneaoicthe client in the
ability to provide the Company with future receilebhcoupled with the collections of their curreeteivables.

The allowance consists of specific and general acorapts. The specific component relates to clieaggregate net balance that is owed to the
Company that is classified as doubtful. The genssaiponent covers non-classified balances andsiscban historical loss experience.

A clients’ aggregate net balance is considered iradavhen, based on current information and evénits probable that the Company will be
unable to collect the receivable payments or the@my has greatly reduced the amount of receivablbe purchased.
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The Company'’s charge-off policy is based on a tlBnclient review for which the estimated uncotlbte portion is charged off against the
corresponding client’s net balance and the allowdoc doubtful accounts.

Investments in Qualified Businesst

The various interests that the Company acquirds ifualified investments are accounted for underd methods: consolidation, equity met
and cost method. The applicable accounting methgémnerally determined based on the Company’s gy atiterest or the economics of the
transaction if the investee is determined to baréable interest entity.

Consolidation Methodnvestments in which the Company directly or indilg owns more than 50% of the outstanding votiegusities, those
the Company has effective control over, or thossnt to be a variable interest entity in which@oenpany is the primary beneficiary are
generally accounted for under the consolidatiorhagbf accounting. Under this method, an investradmancial position and results of
operations are reflected within the Company’s cdated financial statements. All significant irl@mpany accounts and transactions are
eliminated, including returns of principal, divid#s) interest received and investment redemptiolns.r&sults of operations and cash flows of a
consolidated operating entity are included throtighlatest interim period in which the Company odvagyreater than 50% direct or indirect
voting interest, exercised control over the erftitythe entire interim period or was otherwise daated as the primary beneficiary. Upon
dilution of control below 50%, or upon occurrendedriggering event requiring reconsiderationathe primary beneficiary of a variable
interest entity, the accounting method is adjustettie equity or cost method of accounting, as @mate, for subsequent periods.

Equity MethodInvestees that are not consolidated, but over wiielCompany exercises significant influence, amanted for under the
equity method of accounting. Whether or not the Gany exercises significant influence with respecir investee depends on an evaluation
of several factors including, among others, reprg®n on the investee’s Board of Directors andhership level, which is generally a 20% to
50% interest in the voting securities of the ineesincluding voting rights associated with the @any’s holdings in common, preferred and
other convertible instruments in the investee. Wnkle equity method of accounting, an investeet®ants are not reflected within the
Company’s consolidated financial statements; howalie Company’s share of the earnings or losséiseoinvestee is reflected in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Cost Methodlnvestees not accounted for under the consolidatidhe equity method of accounting are accourdedifider the cost method of
accounting. Under this method, the Company’s shhtiee net earnings or losses of such companiestigicluded in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. However, coghaottimpairment charges are recognized, as negessdne Company’s consolidated
financial statements. If circumstances suggestttigavalue of the investee has subsequently reedysuch recovery is not recorded until
ultimately liquidated or realized.

The Company’s debt and equity investments havetaotially been made with funds available to Newttglough the Capco programs. These
programs generally require that each Capco meéhiannm investment benchmark within five years dfia funding. In addition, any funds
received by a Capco as a result of a debt repayareaquity return may, under the terms of the Cgpograms, be reinvested and counted
towards the Capcos’ minimum investment benchmarks.

SBA Loans Held for Investmer

For loans that completed funding before Octob&010, Loans receivable held for investment arentepaat their outstanding unpaid principal
balances adjusted for charge-offs, net deferrenl ¢dwiyination costs and the allowance for loandgs$or loans that completed funding on or
after October 1, 2010, management elected to &irevLoan receivables held for investment withia f&ir value hierarchy that prioritizes
observable and unobservable inputs utilizing L&sehobservable inputs which reflect the Companyia expectations about the assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing theed including assumptions about risk (see NotB&jause there currently is no secondary
market for the unguaranteed portions, the Comparg a combination of trading information from theignteed sales, as was previously usec
to determine the discount on the unguaranteedgmsitiand the historical performance of NSBF’s laagmglied to their outstanding unpaid
principal balances. If a loan measured at fair @adusubsequently impaired, then the fair valuthefloan is measured based on the present
value of expected future cash flows discounteti@idan’s effective interest rate, or the fair wadf the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. Because the loans bear interest atadlarate, NSBF does not factor in interest riste. r

Allowance for SBA Loan Losse

For loans funded before October 1, 2010, the allmedor loan losses for performing loans is essaleld by management through provisions
for loan losses charged against income. The anafithe allowance for loan losses is inherently
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subjective, as it requires making material estimatkich may vary from actual results. Managememngoing estimates of the allowance for
loan losses are particularly affected by the chagngbmposition of the loan portfolio over the It years as well as other portfolio
characteristics, such as industry concentratiodd@an collateral. The adequacy of the allowancédan losses is reviewed by managemer
a monthly basis at a minimum, and as adjustmersrbe necessary, are reflected in operations dtinmgeriods in which they become
known. Considerations in this evaluation includst@and anticipated loss experience, risks inheretiie current portfolio and evaluation of
real estate collateral as well as current econaarditions. In the opinion of management, the adloee, when taken as a whole, is adequate tc
absorb estimated loan losses inherent in the Coy'gantire loan portfolio. The allowance consistspecific and general components. The
specific component relates to loans that are dladsas either loss, doubtful, substandard or spp@eention. For such loans that are also
classified as impaired, an allowance is establistieeh the discounted cash flows (or collateral #auobservable market price) of the
impaired loan is lower than the carrying valuetddttioan. The general component covers non-clagdifians and is based on historical loss
experience adjusted for qualitative factors.

For loans funded on or after October 1, 2010, ¢laa lis at its fair value. Changes in the valuénefloan, whether performing or impaired, are
reported as a net change in the fair value of S&%$ held for investment in the consolidated staterof operations.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on cuiméormation and events, it is probable that tleenpany will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or interest whem altcording to the contractual terms of the loaee@gent. Other factors considered by
management in determining impairment include paytretaius and collateral value. Loans that expedansignificant payment delays and
payment shortfalls generally are not classifiethgsaired. Management determines the significangeagment delays and payment shortfalls
on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideratlaf the circumstances surrounding the loan &eddorrower, including the length of the
delay, the reasons for the delay, the borroweitsr prayment record, and the amount of the shoiitfalélation to the principal and interest
owed.

Impairment of a loan is measured based on the preatue of expected future cash flows discountatieloan’s effective interest rate, or the
fair value of the collateral if the loan is colleitedependent. Impaired loans for which the cagymount is based on fair value of the
underlying collateral are included in assets apdnted at estimated fair value on a mecurring basis, both at initial recognition of iaiment
and on an on-going basis until recovery or chaifjefdhe loan amount. The determination of impamhinvolves management’s judgment in
the use of market data and third party estimatgarding collateral values. For loans funded bectober 1, 2010, the impairment of a loan
resulted in management establishing an allowanckeém losses through provisions for loan losses@dd against income; for subsequent
loans at fair value, impairment results in a netnge in the fair value of SBA loans held for investt. Amounts deemed to be uncollectible
are charged against the allowance for loan lossesdoices the fair value and subsequent recovéfri@sy, are credited to the allowance or
increases the fair value.

The Company’s charge-off policy is based on a lbg#lean review for which the estimated uncollecipbrtion of nonperforming loans is
charged off against the corresponding loan recévaid the allowance for possible loan losses aimagthe reduction in fair value.

SBA Loans Held For Sale

Prior to October 1, 2010, loans originated andridésl for sale in the secondary market, that igjtteranteed portions of SBA 7(a) loans, were
carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair gahs determined by aggregate outstanding commignfiemm investors. For guaranteed port|
funded on or after October 1, 2010, managementesldo fair value SBA loans held for sale withie flair value hierarchy that prioritizes
observable and unobservable inputs utilizing L&vassets. These inputs include debt securitiesauitited prices that are traded less
frequently than exchange-traded instruments or kaltees determined using a pricing model with isghat are observable in the market. The
secondary market for the guaranteed portions ieely robust with broker dealers acting as pringaglers. NSBF sells regularly into the
market and can quickly price its loans for sald®e Tompany values the guaranteed portion basechdretrprices equal to the guaranteed |
amount plus a premium that includes both an upftash payment (utilizing quoted prices) and the&alf a stream of payments representing
servicing income received in excess of NSBF’'s simgi cost (valued using a pricing model with inptitat are observable in the market).

Loans receivable held for sale are sold with theisig rights retained by the Company. For loamsdied prior to October 1, 2010, gains on
sales of loans are recognized based on the differkatween the selling price and the carrying vaefuee related loans sold. Unamortized net
deferred loan origination costs are recognized @sm@ponent of gain on sale of loans. For loansddmh or after October 1, 2010, premiun
loan sales is equal to the cash premium plus ihedfue of the servicing income while extinguishitihe fair value gain previously recorded.
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Fixed Assets

Fixed assets, which are comprised of furniture fatidres and computer office equipment, land, hinigdand improvements, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and amortizationréxégtion of fixed assets is provided on a stralgi# basis using estimated useful lives of
the related assets. Amortization of leasehold img@nents is provided on a straight-line basis uttiegesser of the useful life of the asset or
lease term. Useful lives of assets are: compufévare, website development, and servers and gdtagee years), computer and office
equipment and furniture and fixtures (generallgénto five years).

Software and Website Development Cc

The Company capitalizes its website developmertscosline application system, referral system atheér proprietary systems and computer
software. Costs incurred during the preliminaryjecostage are expensed as incurred, while apjglicatage projects are capitalized. The I
costs are typically employee and/or consultingisessdirectly associated with the development efitiernal use computer software. Software
and website costs are included in fixed assetsdratcompanying consolidated balance sheets. Aratidin commences once the software is
ready for its intended use and is amortized udiegstraight-line method over the estimated usékiltypically three years.

Deferred Financing Cost:

Deferred financing costs are being amortized utttesstraight-line method over the terms of theteglandebtedness, which approximates the
effective interest method and is included in indéexpense in the accompanying consolidated statsméoperations.

Impairment of Lonc-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including fixed assets and igitale assets, are reviewed for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recabier. In reviewing for impairment, the carrying walof such assets is compared to the
estimated undiscounted future cash flows expectad the use of the assets and their eventual digpudf such cash flows are not sufficient
to support the asset’s recorded value, an impairetearge is recognized to reduce the carrying vafube long-lived asset to its estimated fair
value. The determination of future cash flows ali agthe estimated fair value of long-lived asset®Ilves significant estimates on the part of
management. In order to estimate the fair value lohg-lived asset, the Company may engage aplairy to assist with the valuation. If there
is a material change in economic conditions or ptireumstances influencing the estimate of futash flows or fair value, the Company
could be required to recognize impairment chargehe future.

Securitization Activities

NSBF engaged in a securitization of the unguaranpeetions of its SBA 7(a) loans. Because the fearaf these assets did not meet
criteria of a sale, it was treated as a securembiimg. NSBF continues to recognize the asseth@becured borrowing in Loans held for
investment and the associated financing in Notgalga on the consolidated balance sheets.

SBA loans transferred, subject to premium recoul

Effective January 1, 2010, a new accounting stahdadified into ASC Topic 860, “Transfers and Seimj,” requires for the guaranteed
portions transferred that the Company, due to thenpjum warranty formerly incorporated in SBA For@86 (see the discussion above),
establish a new asset “entitled SBA loans transtgrsubject to premium recourse” related to theantaed portion of SBA 7(a) loans
contractually sold but subject to premium recowse a matching liability until the end of the wanyaperiod. Prior to October 1, 2010, loans
transferred in the secondary market, that is tleganteed portions of SBA 7(a) loans, are carriembst. For guaranteed portions funded on or
after October 1, 2010, management elected to &irevSBA loans transferred, subject to premiumuesmwithin the fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes observable and unobservable inputizirtd Level 2 assets. These inputs include dehiritézs with quoted prices that are traded
frequently than exchange-traded instruments or kaltees determined using a pricing model with isghat are observable in the market. The
secondary market for the guaranteed portions ieely robust with broker dealers acting as pringaglers. NSBF sells regularly into the
market and can quickly price its loans for sald®e Tompany values the guaranteed portion basechdretrprices equal to the guaranteed |
amount plus a premium that includes both an upftash payment (utilizing quoted prices) and the&alf a stream of payments representing
servicing income received in excess of NSBF’'s simgi cost (valued using a pricing model with inptitat are observable in the market).

Contemporaneous with the adoption of this new aating standard the Company elected the fair vapi®n for valuing this new liability,
which is captioned in the consolidated financiatements as “Liability on SBA loans transferredjeat

F-14



Table of Contents

to premium recourse.” At the time, management etbtd adopt the fair value option election becausmwre accurately reflected the
economics of the transaction. For liabilities ceglgprior to October 1, 2010 and prior to the adwptf fair value for the loans themselves,
within the fair value hierarchy that prioritizessgsvable and unobservable inputs used to meadurafae, the Company utilizes Level 3
unobservable inputs which reflect the Company’s assumptions about the assumptions that marketiparits would use in pricing the
liability (including assumptions about risk). Ther@pany values the liability based on the probabditpayment given the Company’s history
of returning premium: the transferee will receid®% of the guaranteed portion from either the heeroor the SBA and approximately 3% of
the premium amount from the Company. The aforeroeatl return of premiums is triggered by eitheribeower’s prepayment of the loan
within 90 days of the transfer settlement datéherliorrower’s default within 275 days of the setiéét date on loans where any of the
borrower’s first three payments were delinquent.

For liabilities created on or after October 1, 20th@ fair valuing of the loans themselves provittesseconomic gain to be recognized from the
transfer. Continuing to value the liability basedtbe likelihood of repaying the premium warrantyuld effectively double count the gain
from creating the loan. As such, the Company charige valuation of the liability for loans issuedrhatch the amount received from the
transfer.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets deemed to haviedefinite life are not amortized and are scidje impairment tests, at least annually.
Other intangible assets with finite lives are anzed over their useful lives ranging from 18 tor66énths.

The Company considers the following to be some gr@snof indicators that may trigger an impairmeview outside its annual impairment
review: (i) significant under-performance or logkey contracts acquired in an acquisition relatvexpected historical or projected future
operating results; (ii) significant changes in thanner or use of the acquired assets or in the @oypoverall strategy with respect to the
manner or use of the acquired assets or chandks Dompany’s overall business strategy; (iii) gigant negative industry or economic
trends; (iv) increased competitive pressures; @ipaificant decline in the Company’s stock prioe & sustained period of time; and

(vi) regulatory changes. In assessing the recovl@yabf the Company’s goodwill and intangiblesgt@ompany must make assumptions
regarding estimated future cash flows and othdofado determine the fair value of the respectisgets. The fair value of an asset could vary,
depending upon the estimating method employed edlsasw assumptions made.

Reserve for Losses on Merchant Accoul

Disputes between a cardholder and a merchant pegllydarise as a result of, among other thingsjltalder dissatisfaction with merchandise
quality or merchant services. Such disputes mayaatsolved in the merchant’s favor. In thesegabe transaction is “charged back” to the
merchant, which means the purchase price is retutalthe customer through the mercharitquiring bank and charged to the merchante
merchant has inadequate funds, the Company ory linded circumstances, the Company and the aogulvank, must bear the credit risk for
the full amount of the transaction. The Companyleaias its risk for such transactions and estimisgggtential loss for charge-backs based
primarily on historical experience and other retgvactors.

The Company records reserves for charge-backsartthgent liabilities when such amounts are deetodz probable and estimable. The
required reserves may change in the future duewodevelopments, including, but not limited to, mges in litigation or increased chargaek
exposure as the result of merchant insolvencyidation, or other reasons. The required reseneseaiewed periodically to determine if
adjustments are required.

Stock—Based Compensation

All share-based payments to employees are recadjimizihe financial statements based on their falu&s using an option-pricing model at the
date of grant. The Company recognizes compensatianstraight-line basis over the requisite serpgod for the entire award. The
Company has elected to adopt the alternative tiransnethod for calculating the tax effects of shbased compensation. The alternative
transition method includes a simplified method dtablish the beginning balance of the addition&l{racapital pool related to the tax effects
of employee share-based compensation, which isadi@aito absorb tax deficiencies.
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Fair Value

The Company adopted the methods of fair value hoevigs financial assets and liabilities. The Compaarries its credits in lieu of cash,
prepaid insurance and notes payable in crediigindf cash at fair value. The Company also caingmired loans and other real estate owned
at fair value. Fair value is based on the pricé wauld be received to sell an asset or paid tesfiex a liability in an orderly transaction betw
market participants at the measurement date. lerdodincrease consistency and comparability invfalue measurements, the Company
utilized a fair value hierarchy that prioritizessglovable and unobservable inputs used to measurafae into three broad levels, which are
described below:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities. Level 1 assets and liabilitieslide debt and equity securiti
and derivative contracts that are traded in avaekchange market, as well as certain U.S. Trgasthrer U.S. Government
and agency mortga-backed debt securities that are highly liquid amedatively traded in ov-the-counter markets

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssouated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggpted prices in markets that
are not active; or other inputs that are observablzan be corroborated by observable market datsubstantially the full
term of the assets or liabilities. Level 2 assats la@bilities include debt securities with quotarites that are traded less
frequently than exchange-traded instruments angatere contracts whose value is determined usipg@ng model with
inputs that are observable in the market or cadeoeed principally from or corroborated by obsdateamarket data. This
category generally includes certain U.S. Governnaadtagency mortgage-backed debt securities, cgpdebt securities,
derivative contracts and residential mortgage Ideaic-for-sale.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by littltammarket activity and that are significant to thie value of the assets or
liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities inclufileancial instruments whose value is determingdgipricing models,
discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar téghes, as well as instruments for which the deitgation of fair value
requires significant management judgment or estomaf his category generally includes certain pevequity investments,
retained residual interests in securitizationsdeygial mortgage servicing rights, and highly staned or long-term derivative
contracts

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are computegdbaipon the differences between the financiadstant and income tax basis of assets and
liabilities using the enacted tax rates in effectthe year in which those temporary differenceseapected to be realized or settled. If available
evidence suggests that it is more likely than hat some portion or all of the deferred tax assétsiot be realized, a valuation allowance is
required to reduce the deferred tax assets torttoeiat that is more likely than not to be realized.

The Company’s U.S. Federal and state income taxnefprior to fiscal year 2006 are closed, and gameent continually evaluates expiring
statutes of limitations, audits, proposed settldsyazhanges in tax law and new authoritative rding

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxe

The ultimate deductibility of positions taken opexted to be taken on tax returns is often ungertaiorder to recognize the benefits
associated with a tax position taken (i.e., getheeatieduction on a corporation’s tax return), ¢éiméity must conclude that the ultimate
allowability of the deduction is more likely thaotnlf the ultimate allowability of the tax positieexceeds 50% (i.e., it is more likely than not),
the benefit associated with the position is recogghiat the largest dollar amount that has more @06 likelihood of being realized upon
ultimate settlement. Differences between tax pas#titaken in a tax return and recognized will gaiheresult in (1) an increase in income
taxes currently payable or a reduction in an inctemeefund receivable or (2) an increase in ardefietax liability or a decrease in a deferred
tax asset, or both (1) and (2).

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As required by the Financial Instruments Topichef FASB ASC, the estimated fair values of finanmatruments must be disclosed.
Excluding fixed assets, intangible assets, goodea#itl prepaid expenses and other assets (excladingted below), substantially all of the
Company’s assets and liabilities are considereghfital instruments as defined under this standzai.value estimates are subjective in nature
and are dependent on a number of significant asomspassociated with each instrument or grouprofiar instruments, including estimates

of discount rates, risks associated with spedifiarfcial instruments, estimates of future cash §land relevant available market information.

The carrying values of the following balance shieshs approximate their fair values primarily doaheir liquidity and short-term or
adjustable-yield nature:

. Cash and cash equivalel
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. Restricted cas

. Broker receivablt

. Accounts receivabl

. Notes payabl

. Accrued interest receivable (included in prepaipemses and other asse

. Accrued interest payable (included in accounts pleyand accrued expens
. Accounts payable and accrued expet

The carrying value of investments in Qualified Biesises (included in prepaid expenses and othdspgseedits in lieu of cash and Notes
payable in credits in lieu of cash as well as SBank held for investment, SBA loans held for s8A loans transferred, subject to premium
recourse and Liability on SBA loans transferredyjsct to premium recourse (for loans funded afegpt&mber 30, 2010) approximate fair vi
based on management’s estimates.

New Accounting Standard

In June 2009, the FASB issued an accounting stenahich requires entities to provide more inforroatregarding sales of securitized
financial assets and similar transactions, pawitylif the entity has continuing exposure to tisks related to transferred financial assets and
removes the concept of a qualifying special-purpgogéy and limits the circumstances in which afinial asset, or portion of a financial asset,
should be derecognized when the transferor hasanmtferred the entire financial asset to an ety is not consolidated with the transferc
the financial statements being presented and/onwletransferor has continuing involvement with ttansferred financial asset. The new
standard became effective for the Company on Jariy&010 and its effect on asset, liability anderie recognition is described in this note,
under Revenue Recognition, Sales and Servicind3éf [Soans. This accounting standard was subsequeatified into the ASC Topic 860,
“Transfers and Servicing.”

In June 2009, the FASB issued an accounting stdngiaich modifies how a company determines whenraityethat is insufficiently

capitalized or is not controlled through voting éimilar rights) should be consolidated. It claithat the determination of whether a company
is required to consolidate an entity is based orgray other things, an entity’s purpose and desighaacompany ability to direct the activitie

of the entity that most significantly impact thetigris economic performance. It requires an ongaiegssessment of whether a company is the
primary beneficiary of a variable interest entitylE”) and additional disclosures about a comparigglvement in VIEs and any significant
changes in risk exposure due to that involvemelmé. few standard became effective for the Comparjaonary 1, 2010 and did not have a
material impact on its financial position or reswf operations. This accounting standard was suiesely codified into ASC Topic 805,
“Business Combinations.”

On July 21, 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010“Rclosures about the Credit Quality of FinancReceivables and the Allowance for
Credit Losses”, which requires significant new tisares about the allowance for credit losses hadtedit quality of financing receivables.
The requirements are intended to enhance transparegarding credit losses and the credit qualitpan and lease receivables. Under this
statement, allowance for credit losses and fauealre to be disclosed by portfolio segment, wdrigglit quality information, impaired
financing receivables and nonaccrual status abe foresented by class of financing receivable.|Bssee of the nature and extent, the finar
impact and segment information of troubled debtruesurings will also be required. The disclosuaies to be presented at the level of
disaggregation that management uses when assesglngonitoring the portfolio’s risk and performantais standard is effective for interim
and annual reporting periods after December 150 20he adoption did not have a material impactren@ompany because the Company
already includes the necessary disclosures i €ial statements.

In February 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010*Athendments for Certain Investment Funds” and ic@&eber 2009, the FASB issued
ASU No. 2009-17, “Improvements to Financial Repagtby Enterprises Involved with Variable Interestifies”. These ASUs amend the VIE
guidance of ASC Topic 810. The Company adoptechéve VIE guidance of ASC Topic 810. This guidancesads FIN 46(R), as codified in
ASC Topic 810, to require the Company to perfornanalysis
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of existing investments to determine whether vagiafiterest or interests give the Company a calirigpfinancial interest in a VIE. This
analysis identifies the primary beneficiary of &8\ds the enterprise that has both the power tatdine activities of significant impact on a \
and the obligation to absorb losses or receiveftisrieom the VIE that could potentially be sigmifint to the VIE. It also amends ASC Topic
810 to require ongoing reassessments of whethentmprise is the primary beneficiary of a VIE. @sesult of adoption, the Company is no
longer considered the primary beneficiary of OnLANC (“OnLAN"), a VIE for which the Company was csidered the primary beneficiary
and which required the financial performance of @NLto be consolidated in the Company’s financiatsments. Because the Company is no
longer considered the primary beneficiary, the Canypis no longer required to consolidate OnLANt&financial statements effective July 1,
2010. As a result of the adoption of the new VIkdguace in ASC 810, the Company recorded a cum@affect adjustment to increase
retained earnings by $99,000. This adjustment ssmts the difference between the cumulative nsepreviously recorded through the
consolidation of OnLAN and its actual investmertteTCompany’s equity value of the OnLAN investmemttarded on the Comparsybooks a
of December 31, 2010 is $105,000 and is includgatépaid expenses and other assets on the cortsdliblalance sheet.

NOTE 3—FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:
FAIR VALUE OPTION ELECTIONS

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adoptedvidire accounting concurrent with the electionhef tair value option. The accounting
standard relating to the fair value measuremeatifiels the definition of fair value and descrilmasthods available to appropriately measure
fair value in accordance with GAAP. The accounsitendard applies whenever other accounting stasdadiiire or permit fair value
measurements. The accounting standard relatifgetéatr value option for financial assets and fitiahliabilities allows entities to irrevocably
elect fair value as the initial and subsequent mnessent attribute for certain financial assets famahcial liabilities that are not otherwise
required to be measured at fair value, with chamyéasir value recognized in earnings as they ocltwalso establishes presentation and
disclosure requirements designed to improve conlyildyabetween entities that elect different measnent attributes for similar assets and
liabilities.

On January 1, 2008, the Company elected the faiewaption for valuing its Capcos’ credits in lieficash, notes payable in credits in lieu of
cash and prepaid insurance.

On January 1, 2010, the Company elected the faievaption for valuing its liability on SBA loansansferred, subject to premium recourse.

On October 1, 2010, the Company elected the féiravaption for valuing its SBA 7(a) loans fundedamafter that date which are included in
SBA loans held for investment, SBA loans held falesand SBA loans transferred, subject to premiecourse.

The Company elected the fair value option in otdeeflect in its financial statements the assuongtithat market participants use in evaluz
these financial instruments.

FAIR VALUE OPTION ELECTION —CREDITS IN LIEU OF CASH, PREPAID INSURANCE AND NOTE S PAYABLE IN
CREDITS IN LIEU OF CASH

Under the cost basis of accounting, the discoussrased to calculate the present value of thetsriedieu of cash and notes payable in cre
in lieu of cash did not reflect the credit enhaneats that the Company’s Capcos obtained from Ghanit. (“Chartis”) (formerly American
International Group, Inc.), namely its AA+ ratingsaich time, for their debt issued to certifiedastors. Instead the cost paid for the credit
enhancements was recorded as prepaid insuranaartized on a straight-line basis over the terthefcredit enhancements.

With the adoption of the fair value measuremerfir@ncial assets and financial liabilities and éhection of the fair value option, credits in |

of cash and notes payable in credits in lieu oh@ae valued based on the yields at which finariegtuments would change hands between a
willing buyer and a willing seller when the formiemot under any compulsion to buy and the latterat under any compulsion to sell, both
parties having reasonable knowledge of relevansfabe accounting standards require the fair valub®fissets or liabilities to be determil
based on the assumptions that market participaeténupricing the financial instrument. In develupthose assumptions, the Company
identified characteristics that distinguish mangetticipants generally, and considered factorsiipeo (a) the asset type, (b) the principal (or
most advantageous) market for the asset group(cdmdarket participants with whom the reportingitgnivould transact in that market.
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Based on the aforementioned characteristics amigw of the Chartis credit enhancements, the Compafieves that market participants
purchasing or selling its Capcos’ debt, and theeefis credits in lieu of cash and notes payablgédlits in lieu of cash, view nonperformance
risk to be equal to the risk of Chartis nonperfonggrisk and as such both the fair value of crediteu of cash and notes payable in credits in
lieu of cash should be priced to yield a rate e¢ualn applicable Chartis U.S. Dollar denominatedtdnstrument. Because the value of notes
payable in credits in lieu of cash directly refketite credit enhancement obtained from Chartisytizenortized cost relating to the credit
enhancement will cease to be separately carriedh asset on Company’s consolidated balance shegis acorporated in notes payable in
credits in lieu of cash.

The following table summarizes the impact of tharge in accounting for credits in lieu of cashpaiid insurance and notes payable in credits
in lieu of cash, and the impact of adopting the ¥aiue option for certain financial instrumentsJamuary 1, 2008. Amounts shown represent
the carrying value of the affected instruments teefnd after the changes in accounting resultiogn fthe adoption fair value accounting.

Transition impact:

Opening Balance
Ending Balance

Sheet Adoption Sheet
(In thousands: December 31, 20C Net Gain/(Loss January 1, 2008
Impact of electing the fair value opti
Credits in lieu of cas $ 92,78: $ (4,019 $ 88,76¢
Prepaid insuranc 14,73¢ (112,006 3,73
Notes payable in credits in lieu of ce (79,085 (8,859 (87,944
Cumulative-effect adjustment (pre-tax) (23,879
Tax impact 9,551
Cumulative-effect adjustment (net of tax)
decrease to retained earnings $ (14,32)

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on &ecurring Basis as of December 31, 2010 are as &wlls (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Usir

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level &
Assets:
Credits in lieu of cas $35,49:¢ $— $35,49: $—
Liabilities:
Notes payable in credits in lieu of ce $35,49¢ $— $35,49¢ $—
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Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on &ecurring Basis as of December 31, 2009 are as &wlls (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Usir

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level ¢
Assets:
Credits in lieu of cas $51,94° $— $51,947 $—
Liabilities:
Notes payable in credits in lieu of cz $51,947 $— $51,941 $—

Credits in lieu of cash and Notes payable in creditin lieu of cash

The Company elected to account for both crediteinof cash and notes payable in credits in litcash at fair value in order to reflect in its
consolidated financial statements the assumptimatsnarket participant’s use in evaluating thesarfcial instruments.

Fair value measurements:

The Company’s Capcos’ debt, enhanced by Chartisanse, effectively bears the nonperformance rigRhartis. Therefore the Company
calculates the fair value of both the Credits @ulof cash and Notes payable in credits in liecash using the yields of various Chartis notes
with similar maturities to each of the Company’spective Capcos’ debt. The Company elected to disuge utilizing Chartis 7.70% Series A-
5 Junior Subordinated Debentures (the “Chartis Delves”) because those long maturity debenturearbegtrade with characteristics of a
preferred stock after Chartis received financirgrfthe United States Government. The Company cerssitie Chartis Note Basket a Level 2
input under fair value accounting, since it is atgd yield for a similar liability that is traded an active exchange market. The Company
selected these Chartis Note Baskets as the masisegative of the nonperformance risk associatddthe CAPCO notes because they are
Chartis issued notes, are actively traded and lsecanaturities match Credits in lieu of cash andelgiayable in credits in lieu of cash.

After calculating the fair value of both the Credit lieu of cash and Notes payable in creditéein 6f cash, the Company compares their
values. This calculation is done on a quarterlysh&3alculation differences primarily due to taedit receipt versus delivery timing may cause
the value of the Credits in lieu of cash to diffierm that of the Notes payable in credits in lidicash. Because the Credits in lieu of cash asset
has the single purpose of paying the Notes payaldeedits in lieu of cash and has no other vatuihé Company, Newtek determined that the
Credits in lieu of cash should equal the Notes pkeym credits in lieu of cash.

On December 31, 2009, the yield on the Chartis Batgket was 6.92%. As of December 31, 2010, the tthat Company revalued the asset
liability, the yields on the Chartis notes average2B% reflecting changes in interest rates imtlaeketplace. This decrease in yield increased
both the fair value of the credits in lieu of castd the fair value of the notes payable in craditeu of cash. The Company increased the v

of the credits in lieu of cash to equal the valtithe notes payable in credits in lieu of cash beeahe credits in lieu of cash can only be used
to satisfy the liability and must equal the valdi¢he notes payable in credits in lieu of cashlldiraes. The net change in fair value reported in
the Company’s consolidated statements of operafmrthe year ended December 31, 2010 was a ga&8&000.

On December 31, 2008, the yield on the Chartis Batsket was 11.76%. As of December 31, 2009, thketle Company revalued the asset
and liability, the yields on the Chartis notes aged 6.92% reflecting changes in interest ratéisdrmarketplace. This increase in yield
decreased both the fair value of the credits im déitcash and the fair value of the notes payabtzedits in lieu of cash. The Company reduced
the value of the credits in lieu of cash to egbaltalue of the notes payable in credits in lieaash because the credits in lieu of cash can only
be used to satisfy the liability and must equalvthkeie of the notes payable in credits in lieuadicat all times. The net change in fair value
reported in the Company’s consolidated statementperations for the year ended December 31, 20@9angain of $900,000.

Changes in the future yield of the Chartis issuelot delected for valuation purposes will resulthianges to the fair values of the credits in lieu
of cash and notes payable in credits in lieu ohaalsen calculated for future periods; these chamgkéde reported through the Company’s
consolidated statements of operations.

FAIR VALUE OPTION ELECTION —LIABILITY ON SBA LOANS TRANSFERRED, SUBJECT TO PREM IUM RECOURSE

Effective January 1, 2010, a new accounting stahdadified into ASC Topic 860, “Transfers and Seiwy,” requires for the guaranteed
portions transferred that the Company, due to thenpjum warranty formerly incorporated in SBA For@86 (see the discussion above),
establish a new asset related to the guaranteédmpof SBA 7(a) loans contractually sold but
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subject to premium recourse and a matching lighilittil the end of the warranty period. Contemperars with the adoption of this new
accounting standard the Company elected the faievaption for valuing this new liability, which @aptioned in the consolidated financial
statements as “Liability on SBA loans transfermahject to premium recourse.” At the time, manageratected to adopt the fair value option
election because it more accurately reflected tom@mics of the transaction. For liabilities cregpeior to October 1, 2010 and prior to the
adoption of fair value for the loans themselveghimithe fair value hierarchy that prioritizes oh&hle and unobservable inputs used to
measure fair value, the Company utilizes Level 8aservable inputs which reflect the Company’s ossuanptions about the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the ligpi(including assumptions about risk). The Compaalues the liability based on the
probability of payment given the Company’s histofyreturning premium: the transferee will receid®% of the guaranteed portion from
either the borrower or the SBA and approximately @he premium amount from the Company. The afemrgioned return of premiums is
triggered by either the borrower’s prepayment efltian within 90 days of the transfer settlemem¢ @da the borrowes default within 275 da)
of the settlement date on loans where any of theoter’s first three payments were delinquent.

For liabilities created on or after October 1, 20th@ fair valuing of the loans themselves provittesseconomic gain to be recognized from the
transfer. Continuing to value the liability basedtbe likelihood of repaying the premium warrantyuld effectively double count the gain
from creating the loan. As such, the Company chanige valuation of the liability for loans issuedrhatch the amount received from the
transfer.

After February 7, 2011, the new Form 1086 will allithe Company to recognize premium income conctiwéh the date of transfer, as was
done prior to January 1, 2010. As a result of tifie,balances at December 31, 2010 in “LiabilitySBA loans transferred, subject to premium
recourse” will decrease throughout 2011 with theestation that they will reach zero by September28Q.1.

Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis as of December 31, 2010 are as follows (in tisands):

Fair Value Measurements Usir
Total Level 1 Level Z Level 3

Liabilities:

Liability on SBA loans transferred, subject to piem recourse $30,78: $— $— $30,78:

Below is a summary of the activity in the liabilityy SBA loans transferred, subject to premium resefor the year ended December 31, 2010
(In thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2C $ —

Liability on SBA loans transferred, subject to prem recourse 56,76¢
SBA loans sold, no longer subject to premium rese (25,989
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 30,78

FAIR VALUE OPTION ELECTION —SBA 7(a) LOANS

On October 1, 2010, the Company elected to utitizefair value option for SBA 7(a) loans fundedasrafter that date. Management believed
that doing so would promote its effort to both slifiypand make more transparent its financial staeta by better portraying the true economic
value of this asset on its balance sheet and inctatement. NSBF originates, funds, and servicgsmment guaranteed loans under section 7
(a) of the Small Business Act. The SBA does ndyfglarantee the SBA 7(a) Loans: An SBA 7(a) Laahifurcated into a guaranteed portion
and an unguaranteed portion, each accruing intereste principal balance of such portion at agretum rate in effect from time to time.
NSBF originates variable interest loans, usualtyesa fixed index to the Prime rate that resetatguly. Primarily, NSBF has made SBA 7
loans carrying guarantees of 75% and 85%; from 20@8.gh early 2011 under a special program, miofteoloans NSBF originated carried a
guarantee of 90%. NSBF, both historically and asa#ter of its business plan, transfers the guaeanpertions via SBA Form 1086 into the
secondary market when the guaranteed portion becaxaglable for
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sale upon the closing and fully funding of the SB@&) loan and retains the unguaranteed portionsaament recognized that the economic
value in the guaranteed portion did not inure tN&t the time of their sale but rather when thargnoty attached at origination; amortization
accounting by its nature does not recognize thigegse in value at the true time when it occurdadier the fair value option, the value of the
guarantee is recorded when it economically occutiseapoint of the creation of the loan, and is awlayed until when the sale occurs.
Contemporaneously, the value of the unguarantek@dbad be determined to produce the full, fairuebf the loan.

Although the fair value election is for the ent8BA 7(a) loan, the Company primarily sells the guéeed portions at the completion of
funding. The need to record the fair value fordaranteed portion of the loan will primarily oceurder two circumstances: for guaranteed
portions that were not transferred at period ei®B@& loans held for sale’@and for loans transferred in the secondary maHagtdid not achiev
sale status under ASC Topic 860 (“SBA loans tramaée subject to recourse”). The unguaranteedquorgétained is recorded under “SBA
loans held for investment”.

SBA Loans Held for Investmer

For loans that completed funding before Octob&010, Loans receivable held for investment arentegaat their outstanding unpaid principal
balances adjusted for charge-offs, net deferrenl ¢dwigination costs and the allowance for loandgs$or loans that completed funding on or
after October 1, 2010, management elected to &irevLoan receivables held for investment withia f&ir value hierarchy that prioritizes
observable and unobservable inputs utilizing L&sehobservable inputs which reflect the Companyia expectations about the assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing theed (including assumptions about risk). Becauseetburrently is no secondary market for
unguaranteed portions, the Company uses a comtninattitrading information from the guaranteed sadasswvas previously used to determine
the discount on the unguaranteed portions, anditherical performance of NSBF's loans appliedheit outstanding unpaid principal
balances. If a loan measured at fair value is syuEsgly impaired, then the fair value of the loamieasured based on the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at the loafféstive interest rate, or the fair value of todlateral if the loan is collateral dependent.
Because the loans bear interest at a variableN&BF does not have to factor in interest rate. risk

SBA Loans Held For Sale

Prior to October 1, 2010, loans originated andridésl for sale in the secondary market, that igjtteranteed portions of SBA 7(a) loans, were
carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair @ahs determined by aggregate outstanding commignfiemm investors. For guaranteed port|
funded on or after October 1, 2010, managementesldo fair value SBA loans held for sale withie flair value hierarchy that prioritizes
observable and unobservable inputs used to metsukalue utilizing Level 2 assets. These inpatdude debt securities with quoted prices
that are traded less frequently than exchangedradtruments or have values determined usingcngrimodel with inputs that are observable
in the market. The secondary market for the guasghportions is extremely robust with broker desageting as primary dealers. NSBF sells
regularly into the market and can quickly priceldans for sales. The Company values the guarameeidn based on market prices equal to
the guaranteed loan amount plus a premium thaidiesl both an upfront cash payment (utilizing quaiéckes) and the value of a stream of
payments representing servicing income receivexk@ess of NSBF’s servicing cost (valued using eipgi model with inputs that are
observable in the market).

SBA Loans Transferred, Subject to Premium Recou

Effective January 1, 2010, a new accounting stahdadified into ASC Topic 860, “Transfers and Seimj,” requires for the guaranteed
portions transferred that the Company, due to thenjum warranty formerly incorporated in SBA For@86 (the warranty ceased as part of
the form on February 7, 2011), establish a newtastaed to the guaranteed portion of SBA 7(ah$oeontractually sold but subject to
premium recourse. Prior to October 1, 2010, loeassferred in the secondary market, that is theageed portions of SBA 7(a) loans, are
carried at cost. For guaranteed portions fundedradter October 1, 2010, management elected tavédile SBA loans transferred, subject to
premium recourse within the fair value hierarchagttprioritizes observable and unobservable inpiiliging Level 2 assets. These inputs
include debt securities with quoted prices thatteaded less frequently than exchange-traded im&niis or have values determined using a
pricing model with inputs that are observable ia tharket. The secondary market for the guarantedbps is extremely robust with broker
dealers acting as primary dealers. NSBF sells aglyuihto the market and can quickly price its Isdor sales. The Company values the
guaranteed portion based on market prices equhétguaranteed loan amount plus a premium thaidies! both an upfront cash payment
(utilizing quoted prices) and the value of a strezrmpayments representing servicing income receinexkcess of NSBF’s servicing cost
(valued using a pricing model with inputs that abservable in the market).
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After February 7, 2011, the new Form 1086 will allthe Company to recognize premium income conctiéth the date of transfer, as was
done prior to January 1, 2010. As a result of tiis,balances at December 31, 2010 in “SBA loarssferred, subject to premium recourse”
will decrease throughout 2011 with the expectatit they will reach zero by September 30, 2011.

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2010 Using:

Total Gains anc

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 (Losses)
Assets
SBA loans held for investme $ 2,31 $— $ — $ 2,59t $ (285)
SBA loans held for sal 1,01« — 982 — 32
SBA loans transferred, subject to premium reco 21,64¢ — 21,21; — 437
Total asset $ 24,97 $— $ 22,19¢ $ 2,59t $ 184

Below is a summary of the activity in SBA loanschér investment, at fair value for the year enBetember 31, 2010 (In thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2C $ —

SBA loans held for investment, originat 2,59¢
Fair value los: (28%)
Balance at December 31, 2C $2,31(

OTHER FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Bsis are as follows (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2010 Usin

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Losse!

Assets
Impaired loan: $ 5,81 $— $ — $ 5,818 $ (1,84))
Impaired customer merchant accol — — — — (25)
Other rez-estate owne 327 — 327 — (8)
Total asset $ 6,14C $— $ 327 $ 5,818 $ (1,880

F-23



Table of Contents

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2009 Usin

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Losse!

Assets
Impaired loan: $ 5,30z $— $ — $ 5,30z $ (2,239
Impaired customer merchant accol — — — — (12€)
Other rez-estate owne 132 — 132 — (319
Total asset $ 5434 $— $ 132 $ 5,30z $ (2,679

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on &lon-recurring Basis are as follows (in thousands):
Impaired loans

Impairment of a loan is measured based on the prgatue of expected future cash flows discountatieloan’s effective interest rate, or the
fair value of the collateral if the loan is colletbdependent. Impaired loans for which the cagyamount is based on fair value of the
underlying collateral are included in assets apdnrted at estimated fair value on a meurring basis, both at initial recognition of iaigment
and on an on-going basis until recovery or chaifjefdhe loan amount. The determination of impamhinvolves management’s judgment in
the use of market data and third party estimatgarding collateral values. Valuations in the leseimpaired loans and corresponding
impairment affect the level of the reserve for |é@sses.

Impaired customer merchant accounts

Customer merchant accounts are reviewed for imgaitiwhenever events or changes in circumstancésatedhat the carrying value may not
be recoverable. In reviewing for impairment, the'giag value is compared to the estimated undisteifuture cash flows expected. If such
cash flows are not sufficient to support the assettorded value, an impairment charge is recodrizeeduce the carrying value of the
customer merchant account to its estimated faireral'he determination of future cash flows as asglthe estimated fair value of customer
merchant accounts involves significant estimatetherpart of management.

Other real-estate owned (included in Prepaid expers and other assets)

The estimated fair value of other real-estate ows@alculated using observable market informatioduding bids from prospective
purchasers and pricing from similar market trarisastwhere available. The value is generally disted between 20-25% based on market
valuations as well as expenses associated withiegaaur interests. Where bid information is noaiable for a specific property, the valuat
is principally based upon recent transaction prfoesimilar properties that have been sold. Thaseparable properties share comparable
demographic characteristics. Other real estate dusgenerally classified within Level 2 of the wafion hierarchy.

NOTE 4—CREDITS IN LIEU OF CASH:

As discussed in Note 3, the Company adopted fairevaption for financial assets and financial ligigis concurrent with its adoption of fair
value accounting for certain of its assets andliies. As a result, credits in lieu of cash aedued at fair value as of December 31, 2010 and
2009. Following is a summary of the credits in laficash balance as of December 31, 2010 and 20@Bqusands):

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of ye. $51,94° $ 70,55¢
Add: Income from tax credit accretion (at fair va) 2,38( 7,83
Less: Deliveries mac (21,187 (28,907
Fair value adjustmel 2,34t 2,45%
Balance, end of ye: $ 35,49 $ 51,947
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NOTE 5—SBA LOANS:

SBA loans are primarily concentrated in the hotel eotel, and restaurant industries, as well agggiically in Florida. On October 1, 2010,
the Company elected to utilize the fair value apfior SBA loans funded on or after that date crepi new loan pool, SBA loans held for
investment, at fair value. The components of SBankheld for investment, at fair value as of Decan®i, 2010 and SBA loans held for
investment, net, as of December 31, 2010 and 2@98sfollows (In thousands):

2010 Fair Value 2010 Cost Basi 2009 Cost Basi
Gross loans receivab $ 2,59t $ 28,80 $ 28,83
Less: Allowance for loan loss: — (3,560 (3,985
Less: Deferred origination fees, t — (1,5072) (1,590
Less: Fair value adjustme (289 — —
Total $ 2,31C $ 23,74 $ 23,257

The contractual maturities of SBA loans held farestment are as follows (In thousands):

2010 Fair Value 2010 Cost Basi 2009 Cost Basi
Due in one year or le: — $ 11 $ 6
Due between one and five yei — 3,89t 2,672
Due after five year $ 2,59¢ 24,89¢ 26,15¢
Total loans receivable, gro $ 2,59¢ $ 28,80 $ 28,83

All loans are priced at the Prime interest ratesgpproximately 2.75% to 3.75%. The only loans aifixed interest rate are defaulted loans of
which the guaranteed portion sold is repurchasaa the secondary market by the SBA, while the urantaed portion of the loans still
remains with the Company. As of December 31, 201D2009, net SBA loans receivable held for investméth adjustable interest rates
totaled $23,306,000 and $22,549,000, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 200G ,afmpany funded $65,855,000 and $16,648,000 irslaad transferred approximately
$56,735,000 and $20,558,000 of the guaranteedopaofithe loans, respectively. Receivables frorm$o@ansferred but not settled of
$12,058,000 and $6,467,000 as of December 31, 20d@009, respectively, are presented as brokeivedae in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

As of December 31, 2010, $7,064,000 of the guaeahpertion of SBA loans collateralized the curremtstanding balance on the Company’s
line of credit with Capital One and $19,092,00@hef unguaranteed portions of SBA loans transferi@dur securitization transaction
collateralized the notes issued by the Trust.

The outstanding balances of loans past due 90atay®re and still accruing interest as of Decen#igr2010 and 2009 totaled $535,000 and
$300,000, respectively.

Loans by industry and geographic concentrationdakbabunted for more than 5% of the outstandingglmeans receivable held for investment
balance as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 werdlawsq(In thousands):

2010 2009
Industry

Restaurant $3,10¢ $3,667
Hotels and motel 2,90¢ 2,91
State

Florida $6,68¢ $8,02¢
Georgia 5,39¢ 23¢&*
New York 3,93( 3,48(
Illinois 2,772 82¢&*
New Jerse 2,51( 1,34¢*
Texas 2,16¢€ 2,24¢

(*) Amounts shown for comparative purposes and reptesess than 5%

F-25



Table of Contents

Below is a summary of the activity in the allowarfioeloan losses for the years ended December@0 and 2009 (In thousands):

2010 2009

Balance, beginning of ye. $ 3,98t $ 3,42(
Provision for loan losse 1,90¢ 1,83
Loans charge-off (2,42]) (1,409
Recoveries 86 141
Balance, end of ye: $ 3,55¢ $ 3,98t

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, total impaired nmerteal loans amounted to $8,329,000 and $8,324r@8pectively. For the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, average balance ofredp@on-accrual loans was $8,404,000 and $7,7031@8pectively. Approximately
$2,516,000 and $3,022,000 of the allowance for loases were allocated against such impaired norualkloans, respectively. None of these
loans were on a fair value basis.

Had interest on these impaired non-accrual loaes bhecrued, such interest would have totaled $850%@d $491,000 for 2010 and 200,
respectively. Interest income, which is recogniaadh cash basis, related to the impaired non-aklorasas for the years ended December 31,
2010 and 2009, was not material.

In 2009, the Company sold $517,000 of loans preshodlassified as held for investment for aggregaiteeeds of $524,000. Gross realized
gains of $7,000 have been recorded as premium iadoithe accompanying consolidated statements efadipns. Also included in premium
income in 2009 is $27,000 representing the allacptation of the remaining deferred loan originatasts. No loans previously classified as
held for investment were sold in 2010.

NOTE 6—ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:
Accounts receivable consists of the following atBmaber 31, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009
Purchased receivabl $ 7,757 $3,07¢
Electronic payment processing settlement recei: 1,68¢ 1,68(
Customer receivable 70¢ 444
Other receivable 28 24
10,18 5,22:

Allowance for doubtful accoun (193) (217)
Total $ 9,99( $5,012

NOTE 7—INVESTMENTS IN QUALIFIED BUSINESSES:

The following table is a summary of investmentduded in Prepaid expenses and other assets omtiseldated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2010, shown separately between thbtrathd equity components, and a summary of thetgdor the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009 (In thousands):

HELD TO MATURITY DEBT INVESTMENTS

Balance a
Original December
31,

Name of Investment Amount 2010 Interest Rate Maturity Date
Bidco Loans (SBA participation: N/A $ 16 Various Various
Autotask 50C 92 Prime December 201
AQ2 Technologies, LL( 25C 81 10% October 201(
Forc’s Fine Foods, Inc 24¢ 71 12% May 2011
Total $ 26C
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2010 2009
Principal Outstanding, beginning of ye $ 49¢ $ 1,621
Debt investments mac — 42¢
Return of principal, net of recoveri (22¢) (1,399
Debt investment written o 5 (15¢)
Principal Outstanding, end of ye $ 26C $ 49
COST INVESTMENTS
Balance a
Original December
31,
Name of Investment Amount 2010 Ownership %
Smart Pill $ 50C $ — <1%
Total $ 50C $ —
2010 2009
Total cost investments, beginning of y: $ 50C $502
Cost investments written ¢ (500) (2
Total cost investments, end of y¢ $— $50C
EQUITY INVESTMENTS
Balance a
Original December
31,
Name of Investment Amount 2010 Ownership %
OnLAN, LLC $ 80C $ 10E 49%
Total $ 80C $ 10E

In 2010, the Company reassessed its 49% investm@nLAN pursuant to ASC Topic 8100 and determined that the Company does not
the power to direct the activities that most sigaifitly impact OnLANS economic performance. As such, in 2010, the Camgaconsolidate
OnLAN and recognized a cumulative effect adjustnterstccumulated deficit of $99,000 to reclass thetipn of OnLAN’s accumulated deficit
related to its majority owner. The Company is namgaunting for OnLAN under the equity method for @0vhereas OnLan was consolidated
in 2009.

The Company has not guaranteed any obligationesfetlinvestees, and the Company is not otherwisendtted to provide further financial
support for the investees. However, from time-ioetj the Company may decide to provide such additifimancial support which, as of
December 31, 2010 was zero. Should the Companyndieie that impairment exists upon its periodic eswiand it is deemed to be other than
temporary, the Company will write down the recordatle of the asset to its estimated fair valueracdrd a corresponding charge in the
consolidated statements of operations. During 20@@ompany recorded a write down of $505,000 asdeft investment and a cost
investment were deemed impaired upon periodic vegied is included in other general and administeatiosts in the consolidated statements
of operations. During 2009, the Company recordedlize down of $159,000 as two debt investmentsandst investment were deemed
impaired upon periodic review and is included ihestgeneral and administrative costs in the codat#d statements of operations.

NOTE 8—SERVICING ASSETS:

The Company reviews capitalized servicing rightsifitgpairment. This review is performed based ok sisata, which are determined on a
disaggregated basis given the predominant riskacieristics of the underlying loans. The predomimisk characteristics are loan terms and
year of loan originatior
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The following summarizes the activity pertainingstrvicing assets for the years ended Decemb&030 and 2009 (In thousands):

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of ye. $2,43¢ $2,28:
Servicing assets capitaliz: 43¢ 937
Servicing assets amortiz: (650) (78%)
Balance, end of ye: $2,22¢ $2,43¢

For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 ar@] 286ricing fees received on the Company’s SBA @fginated portfolio totaled
$1,785,000, $1,498,000 and $1,613,000, respectiVély Company also performs servicing functionsoams originated by other SBA lendk
The Company does not retain any risk on such garsfand earns servicing fees based upon a mutnafiptiated fee per loan. The total
servicing fee income recognized for loans serviceathers in 2010, 2009, and 2008 was $784,0006 D0 and $165,000, respectively. The
estimated fair value of capitalized servicing righias $2,225,000 and $2,436,000 at December 30, &84 2009, respectively. The estimated
fair value of servicing assets at December 31, 2049 determined using a discount rate of 17%, we@jhverage prepayment speeds ranging
from 1% to 11%, depending upon certain charactesisif the loan portfolio, weighted average life3065 years, and an average default rate of
7%. The estimated fair value of servicing asseBeatember 31, 2009 was determined using a discatmbf 17%, weighted average
prepayment speeds ranging from 1% to 13%, dependgiog certain characteristics of the loan portfoleighted average life of 3.4 years, :

an average default rate of 6%. The Company usé@slapendent valuation specialist to estimate threvédue of the servicing asset.

The unpaid principal balances of loans servicedthers are not included in the accompanying coselconsolidated balance sheets. The
unpaid principal balances of loans serviced foerttwithin the NSBF originated portfolio were $18®4,000 and $142,513,000 as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The drgr&icipal balances of loans serviced for othenictvwere not originated by NSBF and
are outside of the Newtek portfolio were $73,062,86d $794,000 as of December 31, 2010 and 208%ectvely.

NOTE 9—FIXED ASSETS:
The Company’s fixed assets are comprised of tHeviimig at December 31, 2010 and 2009 (In thousands)

2010 2009
Computer and office equipme $ 4,20( $ 3,93¢
Furniture and fixture 64C 634
Leasehold improvemen 422 40€
Computer software and webs 2,53 1,88¢
Computer servers and store 10,13¢ 9,04:

17,92¢ 15,90"
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (14,719 12,27¢
Net fixed asset $ 3,21C $ 3,631

Depreciation and amortization expense for fixeatstor the years ended December 31, 2010, 2002@0®iwas $2,451,000, $2,893,000 and
$3,040,000, respectively.

NOTE 10—GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES:
The net carrying value of goodwill as of Decemb®r 2010 and 2009 by segment is as follows (In thnds):

2010 2009
Electronic Payment Processi $ 3,00 $ 3,00/
Web hosting 7,20:% 7,20:
Corporate activitie 17¢ 17¢
Small business finance (NBt¢ 1,70¢ 1,70¢
Total goodwill $12,09: $12,09:
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Other intangible assets as of December 31, 2012@08 are comprised of the following (In thousands)

2010 2009
Customer merchant accoul $ 14,067 $ 13,94¢
Trade name (indefinite livec 55C 55C
Non-compete agreemer 10 18

14,627 14,517
Accumulated amortizatio (11,879 (10,299
Net intangible asse $ 2,757 $ 4,21¢

Customer merchant accounts are being amortizedao®brto 66 month period. Other intangibles (exiclgdhe tradename which has an
indefinite life and is subject to impairment revjeave being amortized over a period ranging frontal86 months. Total amortization expense
included in the accompanying consolidated statesnaginbperations for the years ended December 30, 2D09 and 2008 was $1,582,000,
$2,171,000 and $3,561,000, respectively.

Total expected amortization expense for the nent fiiscal years is as follows (In thousands):

Customer
December 31 Accounts
2011 $ 1,365
2012 61C
2013 191
2014 28
2015 9

$ 2,20:

Based upon the Compamyperformance of the impairment tests using thevidue approach of the discounted cash flow metti@mlCompan
determined that goodwill was impaired in the amamfr$8980,000 for the year ended December 31, 2808hich $774,000 relates to the Sn
business finance segment and $206,000 relates Bdampanys Capco segment and has recorded this charge attloenpanying consolidat
statements of operations. The Small business fanaagment goodwill write-down was required in 260Bough management has
implemented significant cost saving measures akagdirought in new management to increase busatedBC because such initiatives had
not yet materialized to a significant level to sagghe goodwill recorded at the time of acquisiti&or the years ended December 31, 201(
2009, the Company determined that goodwill wasimegired.

For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 arg] #3Company also determined impairments relatétd customer merchant account:
$25,000, $126,000 and $488,000, respectively, sumttluded in depreciation and amortization inaheompanying consolidated statements of
operations.

NOTE 11—NOTES PAYABLE:
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had$2800 and $16,298,000, respectively, of long-tdemt outstanding.

NBC had a $10,000,000 line of credit with Wellsdtadue in February 2012. This facility was useguechase receivables and for ot
working capital purposes. As of December 31, 2012009, NBC had $5,108,000 and $1,416,000
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outstanding under the line of credit. The interatd was set at 7.50% or Prime plus 2.50%, whiaheras higher, with interest on the line paid
monthly in arrears and on a minimum outstanding balance of $2,000,000. Under the terms of thee bmce NBC exceeded $2,000,000
outstanding under the line of credit, Wells Farjoveed for two alternatives for interest rates, Bréme interest rate plus 2.50%, with a
minimum of 7.50% or Base LIBOR plus 3.50%. Totdenest expense for the years ended December 3@, 2009 and 2008 was
approximately $258,000, $186,000 and $186,000 ectsgely. The line was collateralized by the reedies purchased, as well as all other
assets of the Company. The average interest nathdgyear ended December 31, 2010 was 5.79%. ghrbecember 31, 2010, NBC has
capitalized $200,000 of deferred financing costishattable to the Wells Fargo line of which $1730tas been amortized. The net balance of
$27,000 is included in other assets in the accogipgrconsolidated balance sheet. Amortization eryears ended December 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008 was $24,000, $24,000 and $64,000, resphctand is included in interest expense in trepagpanying consolidated statements of
operations. The agreement includes such finanoigmants as minimum tangible net worth, minimumregrly net income and minimum
guarterly net cash flow.

In October 2007, NTS entered into a Loan and SgcAdreement with Capital One which provided faieaolving credit facility of up to
$10,000,000 available to both NTS and the Compfamyg term of two years. The interest rate was LIB@us 2.5% and the agreement
included a quarterly facility fee equal to 25 basints on the unused portion of the Revolving @realculated as of the end of each calendar
guarter. The agreement included such financial carnts as a minimum fixed charge coverage ratiosaméiximum funded debt to EBITDA.
NTS capitalized $65,000 of deferred financing castsbutable to the Capital One line. In connettidgth the loan, on October 19, 20

Newtek Business Services, Inc. entered into a Gyt Payment and Performance with Capital OnekBard entered into a Pled
Agreement with Capital One pledging all NTS stoslcallateral. In October 2009, the $2.5 milliontowved under the Capital One line of
credit converted to a three year term loan witbvel principal repayment under the terms of the thcredit.

In April 2010, the Company closed two five-yeamntdoans aggregating $14,583,000 with Capital Onehi€h $12,500,000 refinanced
Newtek Small Business Finar's debt to General Electric Commercial Capital (“6&nd $2,083,000 refinanced the pre-existing tkyam
between Capital One and NTS. The interest raté®2®10 NTS term loan is variable based on the inphtBOR rate plus 4.25% or Prime
plus 2.25%, but no lower than 5.75%. The agreenmehides such financial covenants as a minimundfistearge coverage ratio and minimum
EBITDA; the Company guarantees the term loan. Tdlarize of the NTS term loan and the predecessortBifitloan are included in notes
payable on the consolidated balance sheet as aridler 31, 2010 and 2009, $1,840,000 and $2,36Db0@ note was outstanding,
respectively. The weighted average effective irsierate at December 31, 2010 was 5.75%. Intergstidsin arrears along with each monthly
principal payment due. Total interest expensetlentear ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008ppasximately $101,000, $99,000 and
$51,000, respectively. Amortization associated whith deferred financing costs attributable to tlapi@l One line and term loans for the years
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $6,26MM00 and $32,000, respectively, and is includédterest expense in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

The refinancing to NSBF supported the lending ojp@na of NSBF by providing working capital. Theen¢st rate on the note was set at Prime
plus 2.25% or LIBOR plus 4.25%, not less than 5.7%%al interest expense for the year ended Decethe2010 was $435,000. In
connection with the refinancing, the Company inedr$329,000 of deferred financing costs which waertized into interest expense over a
five year period. In December 2010, in connectiatin whe securitization of the NSBF unguaranteedfplo, the remaining principal balance
under this term note of $9,903,000 was paid indolil the balance of the deferred financing cos$288,000 was fully amortized.

In December 2010, NSBF entered into a revolvinglitfacility with Capital One N.A. for $6,000,00@kateralized by the guaranteed portion
of SBA 7(a) loans originated. Upon meeting certaigquirements, NSBF has the right to increase thdérman amount under the facility by
$6,000,000. As of December 31, 2010, NSBF had $6000 outstanding under the line of credit. Therest rate is set at Prime plus 1.00%,
and the agreement includes a quarterly facilityefgeal to 25 basis points on the unused portighefevolving credit calculated as of the end
of each calendar quarter. Total interest expensthéyear ended December 31, 2010 was $6,000ughrbecember 31, 2010, NSBF has
capitalized $89,000 of deferred financing costshaitable to the credit line of which $0 has beeroeized. The balance of $89,000 is included
in other assets in the accompanying consolidatethba sheet. The agreement includes such finacmi@nants at the NBS level with its
consolidated subsidiaries of a minimum fixed chargeerage ratio, minimum EBITDA requirements andimum cash requirements held at
Capital One.

In December 2010, NSBF engaged in a securitizatidhe unguaranteed portions of its SBA 7(a) lodmshe securitization, it used a special
purpose entity (Newtek Small Business Loan Trudt020 or the “Trust”) which is a VIE. Applying the@rsolidation requirements for VIEs
under the accounting rules in ASC Topic 860, Trarssénd Servicing,
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and ASC Topic 810, Consolidation, which becameatiffe January 1, 2010, the Company determinedah#te primary beneficiary of the
securitization vehicle, based on its power to diestivities through its role as servicer for thei§t and its obligation to absorb losses and right
to receive benefits, it needed to consolidate #oaidtization into its financial statements. NSBErefore consolidated the entity using the
carrying amounts of the Trust’s assets and lidg#itNSBF continues to recognize the assets irslbafd for investment and recognize the
associated financing in Bank notes payable.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, NSBFfeeesl SBA loans held for investment of $19,615,60® agreed to transfer $3,000,000
of future SBA loans held for investment when ora#d, to the Trust which in turn issued notesliergar amount of $16,000,000 against the
assets. The notes were sold at a dollar pricerdtisatted in gross proceeds before reserve accandtiransaction expenses of $15,392,000.
Deferred financing costs totaled $883,000 andraskidled in prepaid expenses and other assets aotiselidated balance sheet. At
December 31, 2010, the assets (before reservedoribsses and discount) and liabilities of thesotidated Trust totaled $22,486,000 and
$15,104,000 respectively. See Note 5 — SBA lodnsve, for a description of the loans and loan bzdan

The Trust is only permitted to purchase the unguassd portion of SBA 7(a) loans, issue asset-baskedrities, and make payments on the
securities. The Trust only issued a single seriegcurities to pay for the unguaranteed portivasduired from NSBF and will be dissolved
when those securities have been paid in full. THragry source for repayment of the debt is the ¢lsis generated from the unguaranteed
portion of SBA 7(a) loans owned by the Trust; pipat on the debt will be paid by cash flow in exxe$ that needed to pay various fees rel
to the operation of the Trust and interest on tiat.dThe debt has an expected maturity of aboatyf@ars based on the expected performar
the underlying collateral and structure of the deiil a legal maturity of 30 years from the datssfiance. The assets of the Trust are legally
isolated and are not available to pay NSBF’s caeglitHowever, NSBF continues to retain rights tshcaeserves and residual interests in the
Trust and will receive servicing income. For bantoy analysis purposes, NSBF sold the unguaranqtegbns to the Trust in a true sale and
the Trust is a separate legal entity. The invesiatsthe Trusts have no recourse to any of NSBHier assets for failure of debtors to pay v
due; however, NSBF’s parent, Newtek, has providiahiged guaranty to the investors in the Trusaimamount not to exceed 10% of the
original issuance amount (or $1,600,000), to bel aster all of the assets of the Trust have beéraested. The notes were issued with a AA
rating from Standard & Poor’s based on the undegyiollateral.

Total expected principal repayments for the nesd fiscal years and thereafter are as followshgusands):

Notes

December 31 Payable
2011 $ 417
2012 6,417
2013 417
2014 5,52¢
2015 174
Thereaftel 15,10(

$28,05!

NOTE 12—NOTES PAYABLE IN CREDITS IN LIEU OF CASH:
Each Capco has separate contractual arrangemehttheiCertified Investors obligating the Capcartake payments on the Notes.

At the time the Capcos obtained the proceeds framssuance of the Notes, Capco warrants or Compamynon shares to the Certified
Investors, the proceeds were deposited into esaomwunts which required that the insurance corgtfaetconcurrently and simultaneously
purchased from the insurer before the remainingg®ds could be released to and utilized by the €dpte Capco Note agreements requir

a condition precedent to the funding of the Nokesg insurance be purchased to cover the risks iassdavith the operation of the Capco. This
insurance is purchased from Chartis Specialty brstg Company and National Union Fire Insurance Gompf Pittsburgh, both subsidiaries
of Chartis, Inc. (Chartis), an international ingu@hartis and these subsidiaries are “A+” cregliéd by Standard & Poor’s. In order to comply
with this condition precedent to the funding, theté$ closing is structured as follows: (1) the fiedt Investors wire the proceeds from the
Notes issuance directly into an escrow accountth@)escrow agent, pursuant to the requirementsrihd Note and escrow agreemi
automatically and simultaneously funds the purcluddke insurance contract from the proceeds reckiVhe Notes offering cannot close
without the purchase of the insurance, and the @apre not entitled to the use and benefit of #tgproceeds received until the escrow agent
has completed the payment for the insurance. Uth@eterms of this insurance, the insurer incurgtiirary obligation to repay the Certified
Investors a substantial portion of the debt as a®lio make compensatory payments in the evenloskeof the availability of the related tax
credits. The Coverage A portion of these contramges the insurer primarily obligated for a portadrihe liability.

The Capcos, however, are secondarily, or contigdigble for such payments. The Capco, as a sggngrobligor, must assess whether it t
contingency to record on the date of issuance arday reporting date thereafter until the insumakes all their required payments.

At December 31, 2009, management has concludedhindikelihood of the Capcos becoming primaripblie for the payments required to be
made by the insurer under Coverage A on the Netemniote (i.e., the insurer failing to make paymdecause the insurer, a subsidiary of a
major multi-national insurance company, has a daiaying ability having the rating “A+the highest available. The contingent obligatidre
portion incurred by the insurer due to the purctdgbe insurance) must be recorded at fair valtléch the Company has assessed at zero at
December 31, 2009.
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As of December 31, 2010, the insurer has madd #tleoscheduled cash payments under Coverage feftie the contingent liability of the
Company has been extinguished.

The Coverage B portion of these contracts providethe payment of cash in lieu of tax creditshie tvent the Capco becomes decertified.
Capcos remain primarily liable for the requirementleliver tax credits (or make cash paymentsain 6f tax credits not delivered).

Although Coverage B protects the Certified Investas described above, the Company remains pringtfile for the portion of this

obligation. This liability has been recorded asesqgiayable in credits in lieu of cash, represerttiegpresent value of the Capcos’ total liability
it must pay to the Certified Investors. Such amawititbe increased by an accretion of interest eggeduring the term of the Notes and will
decrease as the Capcos pay interest by delivdrentak credits, or paying cash.

As discussed in Note 3, the Company adopted féirevaption for financial assets and liabilities corrent with its adoption fair value
accounting effective January 1, 2008 for valuingeédmayable in lieu of cash with the exception dfsWire Advisers, LLC. Following is a
summary of activity of Notes payable in creditdiéu of cash balance for the years ended Decenthe2® 0 and 2009 (In thousands):

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of ye $ 51,947 $ 70,55¢
Add: Accretion of interest expen 2,41¢ 7,29
Less: Deliveries of tax credi (21,18)) (28,902
Fair value adjustmel 2,31( 2,99¢
Balance, end of ye: $ 35,49 $ 51,947

Under the Note agreements, no interest is paith@yCapcos in cash provided that the Certified ltoreseceive the uninterrupted use of the
credits. The Certified Investors acknowledge, im lfote agreements, that the insurer is primargpoasible for making the scheduled cash
payments as provided in the Notes.

NOTE 13—NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS:

The non-controlling interests held by the investeake form of warrants entitle the holders toghase, for a $0.01 exercise price, an interest
in a Capco or Capco fund. The values ascribedegavéirrants issued to the Certified Investors aedrburer have been recorded as non-
controlling interests. In addition, certain non-gofling interests have already been acquired hyomily shareholders. A portion of the initial
proceeds received from the Certified Investordlaated to the warrants using a discounted cash fhethod. The following is the aggregate
percentage interest of the non-controlling shamddrslin each respective Capco or Capco fund agoémber 31, 2010 and 2009 (In
thousands):

Capco or Capco Fund % Interest 2010 2009
WP, Florida 0.8(% $ 32¢ $ 39¢
WLA, Louisiana 3.7¢% 9 38
WNY II, New York 18.0(% — 122
WLPII, Louisiana (a Capco funi 4.5(% — 6
WNY I, New York 6.9(% — 32t
WAP, Alabame 0.6(% 13 3
Total Capcc 35C 892
WNYIV, New York — 762 62¢
Other — 19¢€ 95
Total $1,30¢ $1,61°F
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During 2010, unexercised warrants that had enthigders to interests in five Capcos expired. Assailt, the non-controlling interest balance
as of the expiration date, approximately $452,008s reclassified to additional paid-in capital.

As the result of a statutory merger and acquisitioring the 2010, the Company acquired 26% of trecontrolling interest in NBC for
approximately $26,000. As a result, the excesh®i/alue of the purchase price over the nontrolling interest balance at the date of purel
approximately $216,000, was recorded as a reduttiadditional paid-in capital.

In October 2009, WI was dissolved. As a result VdBsets, including its ownership in NMS-WI, werstdbuted to the Company and the non-
controlling interest owners according to their pertege ownership. The excess in book value of dnecontrolling interest in WI, prior to the
distribution of its assets, over the resulting momtrolling interest in NMS-WI, post the distribomi of the WI assets, was recorded as an equity
transaction reducing additional paid-in capitalid®1,000.

In December 2009, the Company purchased the notnetiing interests in two consolidated variablecirgst entities of the Company and
recorded the purchases as equity transactions.résult, the excess of the value of the purchaise pwer the non-controlling interest balance
at the date of purchase, or $522,000, was recasediditional paid-in capital.

The non-controlling interest under WNYIV relatesNBC, a subsidiary of WNY1V, which had converted @10,000 of debt payable to
Exponential of New York, LLC, a related party, teferred stock in 2007.

NOTE 14—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Operating and Employment Commitments

The Company leases office space and other offio@etent in several states under operating leaseagnts which expire at various dates
through 2017. Those office space leases whichcammbre than one year generally contain sched@etincreases or escalation clauses.

The following summarizes the Company’s obligatiang commitments, as of December 31, 2010, for éutinimum cash payments required
under operating lease and employment agreementisofiisands):

Operating Employment

Year Leases * Agreements Total

2011 $ 3,841 $ 21€ $ 4,06
2012 3,37¢ — 3,37¢
2013 2,59¢ — 2,59¢
2014 1,78( — 1,78(
2015 88¢ — 88¢
Thereaftel 151 — 151
Total $12,64¢ $  21€ $12,86(

* Minimum payments have not been reduced by minimuilegise rentals of $1,700,000 due in the futureundncancelable subleas
Rent expense for 2010, 2009 and 2008 was approafynd?,971,000, $3,023,000 and $2,995,000, resfdyti

Under the terms of a service agreement betweenedsal/Processing Services of WI (d/b/a Newtek Mancisolutions of WI, “NMS-WI"), its
merchant processor and a sponsoring bank, NMS-Veékjgired to pay minimum fees during each 12-mgettiod, as defined in the service
agreement, to the merchant processor and spondmirlg The minimum fees for the 12-month periodirgpdovember 30, 2011, are to be
equal to at least $1.5 million and in future yezgsal to at least 95% of the fees paid during tieegaling 12-month period or $1.5 million,
which ever amount is greater. The Company estinthtdsts fee payments for the 12-month period dfdevember 30, 2011, will meet or
exceed the minimum required amount under the aggrEm

Legal Matters

In the ordinary course of business, the Company firwaiy time to time be party to lawsuits and claifile Company evaluates such matters on
a case by case basis and its policy is to conigstausly any claims it believes are without confipglmerit. The Company is currently

involved in various litigation matters. Managembas reviewed all legal claims against the Compaitly @ounsel and has taken into
consideration the views of such counsel, as tmtheome of the claims. In management’s opiniorglftisposition of all such claims will not
have a material adverse effect on the consolidatsdts of operations, cash flows or financial posiof the Company.

F-33



Table of Contents

NOTE 15—WARRANTS:

In March 2008, a warrant was granted to purchage0B0shares of the Company’s common stock to agenfiorming investor relations for the
Company. The warrant vested in September 2008anmitbxercise price of $2.00 and expires in MarctB82@t the vesting date, the warrant
was valued at $12,000. The compensation cost #sabéen charged to operations for this warrarth®year ended December 31, 2008 was
$12,000 and is included in other operating costhénaccompanying consolidated statements of dpagatThe fair value of each warrant
award is estimated on the date of grant using ekB&choles option valuation model that uses theiohg assumptions: 10 year expected life,
risk-free interest rate of 3.45% and expected iuitjabf the Company’s stock of 63.76%. Expectedatitities are based on the historical
volatility of the Company’s stock and other factorie risk-free rate for periods during the expedife of the warrant is based on the U.S.
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grarrite expected term was determined based on theactual term of the warrant. In accorda
with ASC Topic 440 “Liabilities” and ASC Topic 50&quity”, the Company adjusted the value of thenaat to fair value at each
measurement date through the date of vesting, whashSeptember 15, 2008.

NOTE 16—TREASURY STOCK:

Shares of common stock repurchased by us are estatccost as treasury stock and result in a remuof equity in our consolidated balance
sheet. From time-to-time, treasury shares may issued as part of our stock-based compensationgray When shares are reissued, we use
the weighted average cost method for determinirsg. dde difference between the cost of the shardgtee issuance price is added or dedt
from additional contributed capital.

In March 2006, the Newtek Board of Directors addm@estock buy-back program authorizing managenweanter the market to qgirchase u
to 1,000,000 of the Company’s common shares. A3aakember 31, 2010, the Company has purchased @at®45,616 treasury shares under
that authorization and in 2008 reissued 80,315eshiarconnection with the company’s 401k match moyg In addition, 472,814 shares that
were held by an affiliate were issued to the Commnsettlement of an outstanding liability andlzgig held as treasury shares.

NOTE 17—INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE:

Basic income (loss) per share is computed bas¢deoweighted average number of common shares adietaduring the period. The dilutive
effect of common share equivalents is includedéendalculation of diluted income (loss) per sharly avhen the effect of their inclusion wot
be dilutive (In thousands, except for per shara)dat

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

The calculations of Net Income (Loss) Per Share wer 2010 2009 2008
Numerator:
Numerator for basic and diluted E—income (loss) available to comm

stockholders $ 1,43¢ $ (429 $(10,467)
Denominator
Denominator for basic E—weighted average shar 35,65¢ 35,64+ 35,73¢
Denominator for diluted EF—weighted average shar 35,801 35,64 35,73¢
Net income (loss) per share: Basic and dilt $ 0.04 $ (0.01) $ (0.29

The amount of anti-dilutive shares/units excludeaf above is as follows (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2010 2009 2008

Stock options 88¢ 1,48¢ 1,761
Warrants 5C 50 50
Contingently issuable shar 83 83 394

NOTE 18—INCOME FROM TAX CREDITS:

Each Capco has a contractual arrangement withtigydar state or jurisdiction that legally entitlsee Capco to earn and deliver tax credits
(ranging from 4% to 11% per year) from the statgigsdiction upon satisfying certain criteria.fiacal 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company
recognized income from tax credits resulting frdva &ccretion of the discount attributable to taedis earned in prior years. As the tax credits
are delivered to the Certified Investors, the abatince is
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offset against notes payable in credits in liegaxth. As discussed in Note 3, the Company adopteddlue accounting concurrently with the
adoption of fair value option for financial assetsl financial liabilities on January 1, 2008 touelts credits in lieu of cash balance. As a
result, the income from tax credit accretion far tkears ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008&kavevalued at fair value. The total
income from tax credits recognized in revenuesiéndonsolidated statement of operations was $2)880$7,837,000 and $7,988,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 ctesde.

NOTE 19—INCOME TAXES:
(Benefit) provision for income taxes for the yeamsled December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 is as ®i{bwthousands):

2010 2009 2008
Current:
Federal $— $ (492 $ 334
State and loce 13C (23€) 59¢
13C (72¢) 93¢
Deferred:
Federal (46€) (1,58%) (2,53¢)
State and loce (82 (280) (4479)
(54¢%) (1,86%) (2,989
Total benefit for income taxe $(41€) $(2,597) $(2,050)

A reconciliation of income taxes computed at th& Uederal statutory income tax rate (34%) to thediit for income taxes for the years en
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 is as followgh@nsands):

2010 2009 2008
Benefit Benefit Benefit

Provision (benefit) for income taxes at U.S. fetlstatutory rate of 349 $ 29¢ $(1,367) $(4,447)
State and local taxes, net of federal ber 19t (409) (52
Permanent difference (84) 18¢ 11€
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance (decreasegase (67C) (990 2,28
Other (157 (27) 45

Total benefit for income taxce $(41¥) $(2,599) $(2,050

The deferred tax asset valuation allowance incrga2808 excluded the impact of the rate differantin a subsidiary that was not included in
the consolidated tax group. In 2008, that impac wéenefit of $518,000. During the last quarte2@d9, the direct ownership by Newtek of
that subsidiary increased to an amount greaterelgny percent and therefore is included in thesotidated tax group for 2009 and 2010. In
2009, the Company determined certain losses tleaiqursly had been valued at zero will be utilizgdiast current and future tax profits of the
Company and therefore released a valuation alloveglated to those previously reserved asset910,2NSBF was profitable and utilized its
NOLs for the amount of taxable income it will reoime. Those NOLs were previously valued at z

Deferred tax assets and liabilities consisted effttlowing at December 31, 2010 and 2009 (In thods):

2010 2009
Deferred tax asset

Net operating losses, passive and capital Ic $ 10,92: $ 17,43:
Prepaid insuranc 1,39¢ 2,21¢
Loan loss reserve 46€ 322
Flow through of deferred items from investmentguralified businesse 651 71€
Deferred compensatic 28t 257
Book / tax gains on investmer 22¢ 27
Interest payable in credits in lieu of ce 1,99¢ 2,64¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,87¢ 1,71z
Other 90t 1,01¢
Total deferred tax assets before valuation allow: 18,73: 26,35¢
Less: Valuation allowanc (6,379 (7,110
Total deferred tax asse 12,35¢ 19,24«
Deferred tax liabilities

Credits in lieu of cas (15,359 (22,879
Net deferred tax liabilit $ (3,007 $ (3,639
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As of December 31, 2010, the Company had net apgriaisses of approximately $23,521,000 which tdgin to expire in 2020 and
$2,937,000 of capital losses which will begin exmgrin 2010. In addition, the Company has availdternative Minimum Tax credit
carryforwards for tax purposes of approximately $88 which may be used indefinitely to reduce ragtederal income taxes.

Realization of the deferred tax assets is deperategenerating sufficient taxable income in futyears. The Company has a valuation
allowance of approximately $6,375,000 and $7,110&tMecember 31, 2010 and 2009, respectivelyh©&tmount, $4,115,000 and
$4,799,000, respectively, is related to deferrechtsets at NSBF and can only be used to offsetgfuaxable income at NSBF since the assets
were realized before NSBF became a member of tihep@oy’s consolidated tax group in 2009. NSBF waditable in 2010 and, as a result,
was able to utilize a portion of its NOLs and tliere reduced the valuation allowance for the 2@0enefit of approximately $670,000. The
Company cannot currently conclude that it is mideely than not that the remaining NOLs will be ugedffset future taxable income and
therefore did not release any additional portiothefvaluation allowance attributable to NSBF NONBC has a valuation allowance on
approximately $1,065,000 and $966,000, respectiwktiie 2010 and 2009 deferred tax assets whictonhnbe used to offset future taxable
income at NBC. The increase is due to the 2010 igérierated at NBC in 2010. The Company ultimateliebes it will utilize the NBC

NOLs, but there has not been subjective evidendat® to allow the Company to do

The remaining valuation allowance of approximatkly195,000 and $1,345,000 for the years ended Dis=e8i, 2010 and 2009, respectiv
represents other assets, NOLs and capital losaeththCompany believes it will ultimately recogniaut currently does not have sufficient
positive evidence to do so. The change in the tialnallowance on these assets is primarily dubecexpiration of capital losses which the
company wrote off against the capital loss asset.

The Company analyzed its tax positions taken oin Fesleral and State tax returns for the open &ty 2007, 2008 and 2009. The Company
used three levels of analysis in determining whredimg uncertainties existed with respect to thexstipns. The first level consisted of an
analysis of the technical merits of the positioastpadministrative practices and precedents, ingusrms and historical audit outcome. The
second level of analysis was used to determirteeittireshold (more than 50%) was met for the tangfiposition. The third level of analysis
consisted of determining the probable outcome dneas determined that the threshold was met fertdix filing position. Based on our
analysis, the Company determined that there wetengertain tax positions and that the Company shprdvail upon examination by the
taxing authorities.

The Company’s operations have been extended to jottiedictions. This extension involves dealingwiincertainties and judgments in the
application of tax regulations in these jurisdinBoThe final resolution of any tax liabilities atependent upon factors including negotiations
with taxing authorities in these jurisdictions ardolution of disputes arising from federal, statd local tax audits. The Company recognizes
potential liabilities associated with anticipatea awudit issues that may arise during an examinaliterest and penalties that are anticipated to
be due upon examination are recognized as aconter@ st and other liabilities with an offset toeirgst and other expense. The Company
determined that there were no uncertainties wispeet to the application of tax regulations in éhsisdictions.

NOTE 20—BENEFIT PLANS:
Defined Contribution Plan

The Company’s employees participate in a definedridmution 401(k) plan (the “Plan”) adopted in 2004ich covers substantially all
employees based on eligibility. The Plan is degigimeencourage savings on the part of eligible eyg#s and qualifies under Section 401(l
the Internal Revenue Code. Under the Plan, eligihiployees may elect to have a portion of their, paluding overtime and bonuses, redL
each pay period, as pre-tax contributions up tarthgimum allowed by law. The Company may elect akena matching contribution equal to
a specified percentage of the participant’s contiiim, on their behalf as a pre-tax contributioar the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009, the Company matched 50% of the first 2% gflegee contributions.
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NOTE 21—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

During the years ended December 31, 2010, 20092@08, the Company provided merchant processing tmmpany controlled by the
father-in-law of a major stockholder and formerdfdent of the Company, in the approximate amous4@ 000, $38,000 and $81,000,
respectively. In addition, the Company recordedceivable for the years ended December 31, 201@@®@i in the amount of $3,000 and
$2,000, respectively.

A major stockholder of the Company earns grosslvegipayments on merchant processing revenue heajen for the Company, a portion of
which is then paid to his support staff for thdfiods. During the years ended December 31, 200092nd 2008, the Company paid him gross
residuals of approximately $1,180,000, $532,000%8®1000, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Coynpamtiracted with PMTWorks, LLC for payroll relatedrvices. Certain owners of
PMTWorks, LLC also own non-controlling interestNiewtek Payroll Services, LLC, a consolidated VIEITRNVorks, LLC provided services
including operational, administrative, customerpup, technical, risk management, sales and madgetind other services in order to assist
Newtek Payroll Services, LLC in conducting paygmibcessing, tax filing, human resource informasenvices, benefits administration, til
and labor management and related ancillary buss@sgces. The Company paid a total of $67,50@Hese services for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

During the years ended December 31, 2009, and 2088 ompany provided merchant processing for gpemy who had a board member t
was also a former board member of the Company. Tetanue for the years 2009 and 2008 were appraeiyn $6,000 and $16,000,
respectively.

The Company may also, from time to time, providsibess services to family members or executivéeefCompany. These transactions are
conducted at arm’s length and do not representtariabportion of the Company’s revenues.

NOTE 22—STOCK OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED STOCK GRANTED TO EMPLOYEES:

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had threeedt@sed compensation plans, which are describesdvb&he compensation cost that has
been charged against operations for those plan$8&600, $132,000 and $264,000 for the years ebaedmber 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, and is included in salaries and henigf the accompanying consolidated statementgpefations.

The Newtek Business Services, Inc. 2000 Stock lineeand Deferred Compensation Plan, as amendesl; 2000 Plan”) currently provides
for the issuance of awards of restricted shareggdo a maximum of 4,250,000 common shares to @mepk and noemployees. The issuar
of options under this Plan expired on Decembe2809. All restricted shares or previously grantptioms are issued at the fair value on the
date of grant. Options issued generally have amaixi term that ranges from 2 to 10 years and vesgtiogisions that range from 0 to 3
years. As of December 31, 2010, there are 2,03%bBafks available for future grant under this [

The Newtek Business Services, Inc. 2003 Stock lieeRlan, as amended, (the “2003 Plan”) currepitivides for the issuance of awards of
restricted shares or options for up to a maximurh,0800,000 common shares to employees and non-gagdoAll restricted shares or options
are issued at the fair value on the date of gf@ptions issued generally have a maximum term trages from 2 to 10 years and vesting
provisions that range from 0O to 3 years. As of Delger 31, 2010, there are 590,000 shares availabfetire grant under this plan.

The Newtek Business Services, Inc. 2010 Stock lineeiPlan, (the “2010 Plan”) currently provides fbe issuance of awards of restricted
shares or options for up to a maximum of 1,650 &f@mon shares to employees and non-employeesegtticted shares or options are issued
at the fair value on the date of grant. Optionsésisgenerally have a maximum term that ranges #dm10 years and vesting provisions that
range from O to 4 years. As of December 31, 20igretare 1,650,000 shares available for futuretgnager this plan.

A summary of stock option activity under the 20P003 and 2010 Plans as of December 31, 2010 amdjebaluring the year then ended are
presented below:

Weighted Average Aggregate
Weighted Average Intrinsic Value
Shares Remaining Term

Stock Options (In thousands! Exercise Price (In years) (In thousands)
Outstandin—December 31, 200 1,43¢ $ 2.4C
Exercisec (28) 0.91 $ 11
Cancellec (411 4.8C
Outstandin—December 31, 201 99t $ 1.4¢€ 6.7C $ 2628
Exercisabl—December 31, 201 99t $ 1.4¢€ 6.7C $ 268
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There were 1,028,000 options granted during 20@8aere were no options granted during the yeads@December 31, 2010 and 2009.

As of December 31, 2010, there was $37,000 of totetcognized compensation costs related to noredehare-based compensation
arrangements granted under the 2000, 2003 andP1@h8. That cost is expected to be recognizedlyatiatough July 2014.

In March 2008, Newtek granted its six independématiors an aggregate of 197,434 options valu&8at000. Option awards are granted with
an exercise price equal to the market price ofdbmpany’s stock at the date of grant. The opticest immediately and expire 10 years from
the date of grant. The fair value of each optiomm@s estimated on the date of grant using a B&aholes option valuation model that use:
following assumptions: 5 year expected life, risgefinterest rate of 2.51% and expected volatiitthe Companys stock of 53.48%. Expect
volatilities are based on the historical volatilifthe Company’s stock and other factors. The-fiisk rate for periods during the expected life
of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yielde in effect at the time of grant. Expected tevas determined using the simplified method.

In May 2008, Newtek granted certain of its empleyar aggregate of 710,000 options valued at $369@ption awards were granted with an
exercise price of $1.50 which exceeded the marnlet pf the Company’s stock at the date of grahe dptions vest on the second anniversary
of date of grant and expire 10 years from the dagrant. The fair value of each option award wstieated on the date of grant using a Black-
Scholes option valuation model that used the falhgwassumptions: 6 year expected life, risk-fréerist rate of 3.10% and expected volatility
of the Company’s stock of 53.98%. Expected vot#si are based on the historical volatility of @@mpany’s stock and other factors. The risk-
free rate for periods during the expected lifehaf bption is based on the U.S. Treasury yield cimedfect at the time of grant. Expected term
was determined using the simplified method. Comatimis cost charged to operations in connection waiith grant was $119,000 and $97,000
for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 ctegely. The fair value of options vested in cection with this grant during 2010
aggregated $289,000.

In July 2008, Newtek granted certain employeesgamegate of 120,000 options valued at $42,000.ddm@ivards were granted with an
exercise price of $1.50 which exceeded the marniket pf the Company’s stock at the date of grahe dptions vest on the second anniversary
of date of grant and expire 10 years from the daggant. The fair value of each option award wstseated on the date of grant using a Black-
Scholes option valuation model that used the fdalhgwassumptions: 6 year expected life, risk-freeriest rate of 3.20% and expected volatility
of the Company’s stock of 54.66%. Expected vot&si are based on the historical volatility of @@mpany’s stock and other factors. The risk-
free rate for periods during the expected lifehaf option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield cimedfect at the time of grant. Expected term
was determined using the simplified method. Comatimis cost charged to operations in connection suith grant was $9,000 and $8,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respecT he fair value of options vested in connectwith this grant during 2010

aggregated $26,000.

In connection with restricted stock grants in 20, Company issued 6,668 shares to two employeebd year ended December 31, 2009
and 38,109 shares to three employees for the yel@deDecember 31, 2008. The allocated portionefélated compensation costs associated
with these grants was $4,000 and $30,000 for thesyended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, Newtektgdafour employees an aggregate of 41,900 sharestoicted stock valued at $41,000.
The grants vest on July 1, 2014. The fair valuehe$e grants were determined using the fair vaflitlbe common shares at the grant date. The
restricted shares are forfeitable upon early valgnor involuntary termination of the employee. dpeesting, the grantee will receive one
common share for each restricted share vestedCohgany charged $4,000 to operations in 2010 imection with the vesting period
associated with these grants.

A summary of the status of Newtek’s non-vestediast shares as of December 31, 2010 and changieg dhe year then ended is presented
below:

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Shares
Non-vested Restricted Shares (in thousands Fair Value
Non-veste—December 31, 200 — $ —
Granted 42 $ 1.2t
Vested and issue — $ —
Forfeited — $ —
Non-veste—December 31, 201 42 $ 1.2t
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NOTE 23—SEGMENT REPORTING:

Operating segments are organized internally prigmbsi the type of services provided. The Company &ggregated similar operating segm
into six reportable segments: Electronic paymeatgssing, Web hosting, Small business financegthker, Corporate and Capcos.

The Electronic payment processing segment is eegeae of credit card transactions, as well as &eter of credit card and check approval
services to the small- and mediwgized business market. Expenses include direcs ¢osfuded in a separate line captioned electrpaianen
processing costs), professional fees, salariebandfits, and other general and administrativescaditof which are included in the respective
caption on the consolidated statements of opemtion

The Web hosting segment consists of NTS, acquiredliy 2004. NTS'’s revenues are derived primarityrf web hosting services and consist
of web hosting and set up fees. NTS generates sgpesuch as professional fees, payroll and bepafitsdepreciation and amortization, wt
are included in the respective caption on the apamying consolidated statements of operations,edlsas licenses and fees, rent, and general
office expenses, all of which are included in otheneral and administrative costs in the respectiydion on the consolidated statements of
operations.

The Small business finance segment consists ofI8usiness Lending, Inc., a lender that primariigmates, sells and services government
guaranteed SBA 7(a) loans to qualifying small besges through NSBF, its licensed SBA lender; thea3 &Vhitestone Group which manages
the Company’s Texas Capco; and NBC which provigesants receivable financing, billing and accourteivable maintenance services to
businesses. NSBF generates revenues from saleard, Iservicing income for those loans retainezbatracted to service by NSBF and
interest income earned on the loans themselveslehlder generates expenses for interest, profeddiess, salaries and benefits, depreciation
and amortization, and provision for loan losselspfalvhich are included in the respective captiortie consolidated statements of operations.
NSBF also has expenses such as loan recovery eegpdoan processing costs, and other expensearthatl included in the other general :
administrative costs caption on the consolidatatestents of operations.

The All other segment includes revenues and exgagmsmarily from qualified businesses that receiiregstments made through the
Company’s Capcos which cannot be aggregated wihiter @tperating segments. The two largest entitiésersegment are Newtek Insurance
Agency, LLC, an insurance sales operation, andriggsi Connect, LLC, a provider of sales and procgss®rvices.

Corporate activities represent revenue and expeares|ocated to our segments. Revenue includesaist income and management fees
earned from Capcos (and included in expenses iC#dpeo segment). Expenses primarily include cotparperations related to broad-based
sales and marketing, legal, finance, informatiaht®logy, corporate development and additionalscassociated with administering the
Capcos.

The Capco segment, which consists of the twelvee@gmenerates non-cash income from tax creditrgist income and gains from
investments in qualified businesses which are tedlin other income. Expenses primarily include-nash interest and insurance expense,
management fees paid to Newtek (and included ifCtrporate activities revenues), legal, and auglitees and losses from investments in
qualified businesses.

Management has considered the following charatiesihen making its determination of its operatamgl reportable segments:
. the nature of the product and servic

. the type or class of customer for their products services

. the methods used to distribute their products ovide their services; ar

. the nature of the regulatory environment (for exEmipanking, insurance, or public utilitie
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The accounting policies of the segments are theesenthose described in the summary of signifiaaabunting policies.

The following table presents the Company’s segritdatmation for the years ended December 31, 20009 and 2008 and total assets as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009 (In thousands):

(In thousands)

For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2010 2009 2008
Third Party Revenue
Electronic payment processi $ 80,93¢ $ 69,68¢ $ 63,35¢
Web hostinc 19,16¢ 18,85¢ 18,08¢
Small business financ 9,371 7,30¢ 7,358
All Other 1,347 2,41¢ 2,07t
Corporate activitie 2,251 3,21( 5,831
Capcos 2,44: 7,98¢ 8,54:
Total reportable segments 115,52: 109,46( 105,24¢
Eliminations (2,802) (3,749 (6,367
Consolidated Total $ 112,71¢ $ 105,71: $ 98,88¢
Inter Segment Revenue
Electronic payment processi $ 814 $ 204 $ 87
Web hosting 524 36€ 182
Small business financ 65 89 863
All Other 3,94: 563 804
Corporate activitie 1,83t 1,85¢ 2,031
Capca 1,33 1,874 1,87
Total reportable segments 8,517 4,952 5,84¢
Eliminations (8,517) (4,957) (5,849
Consolidated Tote $ — $ — $ —
Income (loss) before income taxe
Electronic payment processi $ 571¢ $ 4,35 $ 4,33
Web hosting 4,73( 3,92t 3,33t
Small business financ 2,04¢ (2,29%) (6,14
All Other (1,602 (368) (2,995
Corporate activitie (6,816 (5,940 (5,31¢)
Capco (3,199 (3,677) (7,28))
Total reportable segments 877 (4,0072) (13,069
Eliminations — — —
Totals $ 877 $ (4,009 $ (13,069
Depreciation and Amortization
Electronic payment processi $ 1,63 $ 1,75¢ $  2,72¢
Web hostinc 1,82¢ 2,57 3,23(
Small business financ 79C 931 1,12:
All Other 13t 13C 95
Corporate activitie 31z 437 371
Capco 12 20 44
Totals $  4,70¢ $ 5,847 $ 7,59
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For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2010 2009 2008
Interest (income) expense, ne
Electronic payment processi $ (12) $ (32 $ (78)
Web hosting 10z 111 59
Small business financ 16¢ (18) (537)
All Other (62) (50 (159)
Corporate activitie (29 (32 5
Capca 2,401 8,631 8,24:
Consolidated total $ 2,57¢ $ 8,61¢ $ 7,53
Identifiable assets
Electronic payment processi $ 10,00¢ $ 12,29t
Web hosting 11,40: 12,38:
Small business financ 95,171 43,10¢
All Other 4,44 5,12t
Corporate activitie 2,62¢ 3,49:
Capca 41,35¢ 59,67¢
Consolidated total $ 165,01! $ 136,08:

NOTE 24—QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED):

The following table sets forth certain unauditedslidated quarterly statement of operations data the eight quarters ended December 31,
2010. This information is unaudited, but in theroph of management, it has been prepared
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substantially on the same basis as the auditecbbdated financial statements appearing elsewhetieis report, and all necessary adjustme
consisting only of normal recurring adjustmentsjehbeen included in the amounts stated below. diitiad, the amounts below have been
restated to reflect the results of discontinuedaipens. The consolidated quarterly data shoultelhd in conjunction with the current audited
consolidated statements and notes thereto. Thieofdtee quarterly EPS data may not equal to thieykar results.

Three Months Ended
(In Thousands, except Per Share Data)

201¢ 3/31 6/30 9/30 12/31

Total Revenut $25,85: $28,00¢ $29,20: $29,65¢
(Loss) income before income ta» $ (8749 $ 514 $ 24¢ $ 98¢
Net (loss) income available to common stockholi $ 467 $ 0931 $ (31§ $ 1,29:
(Loss) income per she—Basic and dilute: $ (0.0) $ 0.02 $ (0.0)) $ 0.04

Three Months Ended
(In Thousands, except Per Share Data)

200¢ 3/31 6/30 9/30 12/31

Total Revenut $24,12: $27,07" $26,81: $27,70:
Loss before income tax: $(2,07¢9 $ (775 $(1,099 $ (50
Net (loss) income available to common stockholi $ (97¢) $ (637) $ 782 $ 40z
(Loss) income per she—Basic and dilutes $ (005 $ (0.0 $ 0.0z $ 0.01

NOTE 25—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

In February 2011, NBC entered into a three year dificredit with Sterling National Bank in an ambup to $10,000,000 that refinanced their
facility with Wells Fargo Bank. This facility wilbe used to purchase receivables and for other ngapital purposes. The interest rate wi
set at 5.00% or Prime plus 2.00%, whichever is drighith interest on the line to be paid monthhaimears. The line will be collateralized by
the receivables purchased, as well as all othetas$the Company. Newtek guarantees the lindraaddition deposited $750,000 with
Sterling to collateralize the guarantee. The agegnmcludes such financial covenants as minimumgitde net worth and maximum leverage
ratio as well as the Parent having to meet a maxineverage ratio test and a future net loss test.
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Exhibit 10.1.2
NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.

Employment Agreement with
Barry Sloane

PREAMBLE . This Agreement entered into this 15th day of Ma011, by and between Newtek Business Services(ttme
“Company”) and BARRY SLOANE (the “Executive”), effeave immediately.

WHEREAS, the Executive is to be employed by the Companynasxacutive officer; and
WHEREAS, the parties desire by this writing to set forth #meployment relationship of the Company and thecHtiee.
NOW, THEREFORE, it is AGREED as follows:
1. Defined Terms
When used anywhere in the Agreement, the followanms shall have the meaning set forth herein.
(a)“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.

(b) “Change in Control” shall mean any one of the following events: (i) &ieguisition of ownership, holding or power to v6G%
or more of the Company’s voting stock, (ii) the aisition of the ability to control the election afmajority of the Compang’directors, (iii) the
acquisition of a controlling influence over the rmgement or policies of the Company by any persdryqrersons acting as a “group” (within
the meaning of Section 13(d) of the Securities Exge Act of 1934), or (iv) during any period of taonsecutive years, individuals (the
“Continuing Directors”) who at the beginning of ugeriod constitute the Board of Directors of trmr@any (the “Existing Board”) cease for
any reason to constitute at least one half theprofjided that any individual whose election or muation for election as a member of the
Existing Board was approved by a vote of at leastthirds of the Continuing Directors then in offishall be considered a Continuing
Director. For purposes of this paragraph only,tdre “person” refers to an individual or a corparaf partnership, trust, association, joint
venture, pool, syndicate, sole proprietorship, coiporated organization or any other form of emity specifically listed herein.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Coraiotefined in this Section 1(b) shall not be tr¢ate a Change in Control for purpose:
this Agreement unless it constitutes a “changeintrol event” within the meaning of Section 1.4098X5) of the Treasury Regulations
promulgated under section 409A of the Internal RereeCode of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) (thedJuey Regulations”)

(c) “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, anhded from time to time, and as interpreted thraampblicable
rulings and regulations in effect from time to tir



(d) “Code §280G Maximum’hall mean the product of 2.0 and the Executiveast amount” as defined in Code §280G(b)(3).
(e) “ Company' shall mean Newtek Business Services, Inc., andsacessor to its interest.

(f) “ Common Stockshall mean common shares of the Company.

(9) “Effective Date” shall mean the date of execution referenced ifPtkamble of this Agreement.

(h) “Executive” shall mean Barry Sloane.

() “Good Reason”shall mean any of the following events, which haslbreen consented to in advance by the Executiwgitmg:
() the requirement that the Executive move hispeal residence, or perform his principal execufivestions, more than fifty (50) miles from
his primary office as of the Effective Date; (iip@terial reduction in the Executive’s base comptos as the same may be increased from
time to time; (iii) the failure by the Company tortinue to provide the Executive with compensatiod benefits provided for on the Effective
Date, as the same may be increased from time & tmwith benefits substantially similar to thggevided to him under any of the Executive
benefit plans in which the Executive now or hereralftecomes a participant, or the taking of anyoadby the Company which would directly
indirectly reduce any of such benefits or deprhve Executive of any material fringe benefit enjoygchim; (iv) the assignment to the
Executive of duties and responsibilities that cibate a material diminution from those associatéith wis position on the Effective Date; (v) a
failure to elect or reelect the Executive to theaRbof Directors of the Company; (vi) a materiahifiution or reduction in the Executive’s
responsibilities or authority (including reportingsponsibilities) in connection with his employmaiith the Company.

(j) “Just Cause”shall mean the ExecutiveWwillful misconduct, breach of fiduciary duty invong personal profit, intentional failu
to perform stated duties, conviction for a feloaymaterial breach of any provision of this Agream&lo act, or failure to act, on the
Executive’s part shall be considered “willful” uskehe has acted, or failed to act, with an absehgeod faith and without a reasonable belief
that his action or failure to act was in the bagtiiests of the Company.

(k) “Protected Period”shall mean the period that begins on the date sixtihs before a Change in Control and ends on thiera
of six months following the Change in Control oe xpiration date of this Agreement.

() “Trigger Event” shall mean (i) the ExecutiveVvoluntary termination of employment within nin€®0) days of an event that b
occurs during the Protected Period and constif@tasd Reason, or (ii) the termination by the Companigs successor(s) in interest, of the
Executive’s employment for any reason other thast Qause during the Protected Period.

2. Employment The Executive is employed as Chief Executive é@ffiand President of the Company. The Executivé traler such
administrative and management services for the @ompnd its subsidiaries as are currently rendanedas are customarily
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performed by persons situated in a similar exeeutapacity and consistent with the duties of theefExecutive Officer and President as set
forth in the bylaws of the Company. The Executikialkalso promote, by entertainment or otherwiseared to the extent permitted by law, the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries. Weelive's other duties shall be such as the Bozag from time to time reasonably direct,
including normal duties as an officer of the Compan

3. Base CompensatioThe Company agrees to pay the Executive duriadgetm of this Agreement a salary at the rate 8&000 per
annum, payable in cash not less frequently thantiiyprAdditionally, the Board shall review, not fesften than annually, the rate of the
Executive’s salary and may decide to further inseelais salary.

4. Cash Bonuses; Incentive Compensation

(a) The Board shall determine the Executive’s righteceive incentive compensation in the formasflcbonuses and other awards.
No other compensation provided for in this Agreetrsdrall be deemed a substitute for such incentivepensation. Cash bonuses shal
awarded pursuant to the terms of the Company’s Ah@ash Bonus Plan, if one has been adopted bgdhed and if not, then by action of the
Board.

(b) Incentive bonus: in addition to all other comgation payable hereunder, the Executive shalhbilesl to participate in
consideration for a cash bonus out of a pool tedtablished for this purpose by the Board. The arnofithe Executive’s bonus participation
shall be fixed by the Compensation Committee ofBbard if it finds the Executive’s performance vk been a major contributing factor to
the success of the Company.

5. Other Benefits

(a) Participation in Retirement, Medical and Other P$arThe Executive shall participate in any plan that Company maintains
for the benefit of its employees if the plan redatte (i) pension, profit-sharing, or other retirethbenefits, (i) medical insurance or the
reimbursement of medical or dependent care expeasés) other group benefits, including disabjliand life insurance plans.

(b) Executive Benefits; ExpenseBhe Executive shall participate in any fringe d&f#s which are or may become available to the
Company’s senior management Executives, including@kample incentive compensation plans, club mesfijes, and any other benefits
which are commensurate with the responsibilitied famctions to be performed by the Executive unitlsr Agreement. The Executive shall be
reimbursed for all reasonable out-of-pocket busireegenses which he shall incur in connection thighservices under this Agreement upon
substantiation of such expenses in accordancetiétpolicies of the Company.

6. Term. The Company hereby employs the Executive, an@Exeeutive hereby accepts such employment undeiiinieement,
for the period commencing on the Effective Date anding on March 31, 2012 or such earlier dats a@giermined in accordance with
Section 11 (the “Term”).”



7. Loyalty; Noncompetition

(a) During the period of his employment hereundtet except for ilinesses, reasonable vacation pgrimad reasonable leaves of
absence, the Executive shall devote substantithlhisafull business time, attention, skill, andagfs to the faithful performance of his duties
hereunder; provided, however, from time to timee&xive may serve on the boards of directors af,farld any other offices or positions in,
companies or organizations, at the request of trapany or which will not present, in the opiniontioé Board, any conflict of interest with 1
Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliatest nnfavorably affect the performance of Executvelties pursuant to this Agreement, nor
violate any applicable statute or regulation. “Hulkiness time” is hereby defined as that amoutitref usually devoted to like companies by
similarly situated executive officers. During therin of his employment under this Agreement, theckttee shall not engage in any business
or activity contrary to the business affairs oenests of the Company.

(b) Nothing contained in this Paragraph 7 shalibemed to prevent or limit the Executive’s rightrteest in the capital stock or
other securities of any business dissimilar froat tf the Company or, solely as a passive or minarvestor, in any business.

8. Standards The Executive shall perform his duties under Agseement in accordance with such reasonable atdads the Board m
establish from time to time. The Company will preieiExecutive with the working facilities and staffstomary for similar executives and
necessary for him to perform his duties.

9. Vacation and Sick LeaveAt such reasonable times as the Board shalsidigicretion permit, the Executive shall be erdithgithout
loss of pay, to absent himself voluntarily from grexformance of his employment under this Agreerreghsuch voluntary absences to coun
vacation time; provided that:

(a) The Executive shall be entitled to an annuahtian in accordance with the policies that ther@geeriodically establishes for
senior management Executives of the Company.

(b) The Executive shall not receive any additiam@hpensation from the Company on account of hiarfaio take a vacation, and
the Executive shall not accumulate unused vacé#tam one fiscal year to the next, except in eittese to the extent authorized by the Board.

(c) In addition to the aforesaid paid vacations, Bxecutive shall be entitled without loss of payabsent himself voluntarily from
the performance of his employment with the Companyuch additional periods of time and for suchdvand legitimate reasons as the Board
may in its discretion determine. Further, the Baaal grant to the Executive a leave or leaves séate, with or without pay, at such time or
times and upon such terms and conditions as sualdBo its discretion may determine.

(d) In addition, the Executive shall be entitlecatbannual sick leave benefit as established bptzed.
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10. Indemnification The Company shall indemnify and hold harmlesschttee from any and all loss, expense, or liabilitgt he may
incur due to his services for the Company as aoefind or a director (including any liability hreay ever incur under Code § 4999, or a
successor, as the result of severance benefitslleets pursuant to Sections 11 or 13) during thieTferm of this Agreement and shall at all
times maintain adequate insurance for such purposes

11. Termination and Termination Pagubject to Section 13 hereof, the Executive’sleyment hereunder may be terminated under the
following circumstances:

(a) Just Cause The Board may, based on a good faith determinatia only after giving the Executive written netend a
reasonable opportunity to cure, immediately ternginbhe Executive’s employment at any time, for &imstise. The Executive shall have no
right to receive compensation or other benefitsafoy period after termination for Just Cause.

(b) Without Just CauseThe Board may, by written notice to the Executimemediately terminate his employment for a reason
other than Just Cause. In such event, the Execsttigk be entitled to a total severance paymeset‘{@everance Payment”) equal to two
(2) times the sum of (i) Executive’s base salargfiiect at the time of termination, plus (ii) th@aunt of all compensation paid to Executive
under Section 4 hereof with respect to the immedligireceding fiscal year. The first $350,000 &f 8everance Payment shall be paid in a
lump sum to the Executive within thirty (30) dayteahis termination of employment. The remainimgoaint of the Severance Payment shall
be paid in equal installments over a six (6) m@#hod following the Executive’s termination of elmpment, payable in accordance with the
Company'’s regularly scheduled payroll (the “Ingtedht Payments”). Each Installment Payment shaltdsted as a separate payment for
purposes of Treasury Regulations Section 1.409A2)(ii). In the event that, pursuant to the abaaey of the Installment Payments will be
paid afterMarch 15 of the year following the year of terminatand the total amount of any such Installmeniniants which will be paid after
March 15 exceeds the lesser of: (i) twice the Efteels then current base salary; or (ii) twice @ede Section 401(a)(17) limit in effect for the
year of termination ($460,000 for 2008), the portgd any such Installment Payments that exceed®tegoing threshold shall be accumule
and paid in the seventh {7 ) month following théedz his termination of employment, but only te #xtent necessary to comply with the six
(6) month delay rule pertaining to “specified enygles” under Treasury Regulations Section 1.409%2(i

(c) Resignation by Executive with Good Reasdhe Executive may at any time immediately terrréremployment for Good
Reason, in which case the Executive shall be edttth receive the Severance Payment payable isathe manner and on the same basis as
provided for under Section 11(b) of the Agreemeydrua termination without Just Cause. In additibe,Executive will be entitled to health,
life, disability and other benefits which the Extéee would have been eligible to participate inotigh the expiration of the Term based on the
benefit levels substantially equal to those that@lompany provided for the Executive at the datewhination of employment, subject to any
restrictions as may be required under Code Sedti@w

(d) Resignation by Executive without Good Reasbine Executive may voluntarily terminate employmneith the Company durin
the term of this Agreement, upon at



least 60 days’ prior written notice to the Boarddafectors, in which case the Executive shall ree@inly his compensation, vested rights, and
Executive benefits up to the date of his termimatibemployment.

(e) Retirement, Death, or Disabilitylf the Executives employment terminates during the Term of thise&gnent due to his deatt
disability that results in his collection of anynpterm disability benefits, or retirement at adieafige 62, the Executive (or the beneficiaries of
his estate) shall be entitled to receive the corsaigon and benefits that the Executive would otlervkave become entitled to receive purs
to subsection (d) hereof upon a resignation witli@obd Reason.

(H Non-Renewal Paymentf the Term of this Agreement is not extendeddbleast one (1) additional year in circumstarices
which the Executive is willing and able to execsiieh extension and continue performing services) the Executive’s employment shall be
terminated by the Company effective as of the extjgin of the Term, in which event he shall be &dito a Severance Payment equal to one
and one-half (X /2) times the sum of (i) Execefswase salary in effect at the time of terminat@us (i) the amount of all compensation
paid to Executive under Section 4 hereof with respethe immediately preceding fiscal year. Thstf$350,000 of the Severance Payment
shall be paid in a lump sum to the Executive witthiinty (30) days after his termination of employmeThe remaining amount of the Sever:
Payment shall be paid in equal installments ov&r #6) month period following the Executive’s temation of employment in Installment
Payments. Each Installment Payment shall be trestedseparate payment for purposes of Treasunyi&Ems Section 1.409A-2(b)(2)(iii). In
the event that, pursuant to the above, any ofrteallment Payments will be paid aftdarch 15 of the year following the year of terminat
and the total amount of any such Installment Payswhich will be paid after March 15 exceeds thesée of: (i) twice the Executive’s then
current base salary; or (i) twice the Code Sec#ioh(a)(17) limit in effect for the year of termtitan ($460,000 for 2008), the portion of any
such Installment Payments that exceeds the forggbneshold shall be accumulated and paid in thiergh (7t ) month following the date of
his termination of employment, but only to the exteecessary to comply with the six (6) month deldg pertaining to “specified employees”
under Treasury Regulations Section 1.409A-3(i)(2).

12. No Mitigation. The Executive shall not be required to mitig&te amount of any payment provided for in this Agneat by seeking
other employment or otherwise, and no such paysigait be offset or reduced by the amount of anypsmeation or benefits provided to the
Executive in any subsequent employment.

13. Change in ControlNotwithstanding any provision herein to the canyr if a Trigger Event occurs during the Proted®ediod, the
Executive shall be paid an amount equal to twdi(2s the executive’s base salary plus (ii) the @amof all compensation paid to Executive
under Section 4 hereof with respect to the immedtligireceding fiscal year ( the “ Code § 280G Maxini ). If the Trigger Event occurs
during the portion of the Protected Period thatrisr to the date of the Change in Control, the €8®280G Maximum shall be payable in the
same manner and on the same basis as providedder 8ection 11(b) of the Agreement upon a terrdnatithout Just Cause. If the Trigger
Event occurs during the portion of the Protectedo@ehat is on or after the date of the Chang€antrol, the Code § 280G Maximum shall be
paid in a lump sum within ten (10) days of his teration of employment.
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14. Covenants
(a) Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement:

(i) Restrictive Period The term “Restrictive Period” shall mean the péibeginning on the Effective Date and ending two
(2) years after the termination of the Executivaigployment hereunder.

(i) Covered CustomerThe term “Covered Customer” shall mean (A) dutimg Term, any customer of the Company and
(B) after the Term, any person or entity who wasofthe end of the Term, a customer of the Company

(iii) Covered BusinessThe term “Covered Business” shall mean (A) dutlmgterm, any business in which the Company is
engaged and (B) after the Term, any business iolwthie Company was engaged as of the end of the.Ter

(iv) Covered State The term “Covered Stateshall mean (A) during the Term, any state in théééhStates and (B) after t
Term, any state (1) in which, as of the end offteem, the Company was engaged in business or (R)respect to which the Company, as of
the end of the Term, had expended material expemd@r efforts in connection with preparing to dsiness therein.

(b) Nonrinterference The Executive covenants and agrees that he atilhhany time during the Restrictive Period foramdver
reason, whether for his own account or for the aotof any other person, firm, corporation or othesiness organization: (i) interfere with
contractual relationships between the Company agdhits customers or employees; (ii) hire, oticgbfor hire, any person who is employed
by the Company or any parent or subsidiary of tben@any, without the express written consent of@Gbenpany; or (iii) other than on behalf
the Company, solicit any Covered Customer of them@any in connection with the engagement, by anggreor entity, in any Covered
Business in any Covered State.

(c) Confidentiality. The Executive will not, at any time whether dgrior after his termination of employment, (i) diss to
anyone, without proper authorization from the Compar (ii) use, for his or another’s benefit, amgnfidential or proprietary information of
the Company or any parent or subsidiary of the Gomgpwhich may include trade secrets, businesspmaoutlooks, financial data, marketing
or sales programs, customer lists, brand formuiatitraining and operations manuals, productsioe trategies, mergers, acquisitions, and/or
Company personnel issues.

(d) Blue Pencil; Equitable ReliefThe provisions contained in this Section 14 athéotime periods, scope of activities, persons or
entities affected and territories restricted shaldeemed divisible so that if any provision camdiin this Section is determined to be invali
unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed reddso as to be valid and enforceable to the fuére lawfully permitted. The Executive
acknowledges that the provisions of this SectiomrBireasonable and necessary for the protectitrea@ompany and
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that the Company will be irrevocably damaged iftsaovenants are not specifically enforced. Accarlyinthe Executive agrees that if he
breaches or threatens to breach any of the cov&nantained in this Section 14, the Company wilkhgtled (i) to damages sufficient to
compensate the Company for any harm to the Compaimyed thereby and (ii) to specific performanceigjuihctive relief for the purpose of
preventing the breach or threatened breach tharigodut bond or other security or a showing thanetary damages will not provide an
adequate remedy, in addition to any other reliafihich the Company may be entitled under this Agreet.”

15. Reimbursement for Litigation Expenses

In the event that any dispute arises between tleeliive and the Company as to the terms or inteafoe of this Agreement, whether
instituted by formal legal proceedings or otherwiseluding any action that the Executive takeenéorce the terms of this Agreement or to
defend against any action taken by the CompanyEteeutive shall be reimbursed for all costs angkeses, including reasonable attorneys’
fees, arising from such dispute, proceedings dotst provided that the Executive shall obtainnalfjudgement by a court of competent
jurisdiction in favor of the Executive. Such reinnbement shall be paid within ten (10) days of Exige’s furnishing to the Company written
evidence, which may be in the form, among otharghj of a cancelled check or receipt, of any cosexpenses incurred by the Executive.

16. Successors and Assigns

(a) This Agreement shall inure to the benefit af &e binding upon any corporate or other succesfsttie Company which shall
acquire, directly or indirectly, by merger, condaliion, purchase or otherwise, all or substantalllpf the assets or stock of the Company.

(b) Since the Company is contracting for the unigne personal skills of the Executive, the Exeeusitiall be precluded from
assigning or delegating his rights or duties hedeunvithout first obtaining the written consenttioé Company.

17. Corporate Authority Company represents and warrants that the execaitid delivery of this Agreement by it has beery duwid
properly authorized by the Board and that whenszeted and delivered this Agreement shall cortstitoe lawful and binding obligation of
the Company.

18. AmendmentsNo amendments or additions to this Agreement sleabinding unless made in writing and signed Ibpfathe parties,
except as herein otherwise specifically provided.

19. Applicable Law Except to the extent preempted by Federal lagv|atvs of the State of New York shall govern thggdement in all
respects, whether as to its validity, construct@apacity, performance or otherwise.

20. Severability The provisions of this Agreement shall be dees®dtrable and the invalidity or unenforceabilityaafy provision shall
not affect the validity or enforceability of thehetr provisions hereof.
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21. Entire AgreementThis Agreement, together with any understandingnodifications thereof as agreed to in writingtbg parties,
shall constitute the entire agreement betweendhigeg hereto with respect to the matters addressedhall supercede all previous agreerr
with respect to such matters.

22. Tax Matters All payments or benefits provided under this Agrent are subject to any applicable employmerdowithholdings o
deductions. In addition, the parties hereby adnagit is their intention that all payments or biéseprovided under this Agreement be exempt
from, or if not so exempt, comply with, Code Seeti)9A and this Agreement shall be interpreted mtingly. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, if any paymentbemefits made or provided under the Agreement@meidered deferred compensation sut
to Code Section 409A payable on account of Emplsyssparation from service (but that do not meetx@amption under Code Section 409A,
including without limitation the short term defdroa the separation pay plan exemption), such paysner benefits shall be paid no earlier t
the date that is six (6) months following Employseséparation from service (or, if earlier, the dedtdeath) to the extent required by Code
Section 409A.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executedAlgieement on the day and year first hereinabovéesmri

Witnessed by NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.

Is! Matthew G. Asl By: _ /sl Craig J. Brune
Its: Executive Vice Preside

Witnessed by

/sl Matthew G. Ash By: _ /s/ Barry Sloane
Barry Sloan




Exhibit 10.2.2
NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.

Employment Agreement with
Craig J. Brunet

PREAMBLE . This Agreement entered into this 15th day of Ma011, by and between Newtek Business Services(ttme
“Company”) and CRAIG J. BRUNET (the “Executive”¥fective immediately.

WHEREAS, the Executive is to be employed by the Companynasxacutive officer; and
WHEREAS, the parties desire by this writing to set forth #meployment relationship of the Company and thecHtiee.
NOW, THEREFORE, it is AGREED as follows:

1. Defined Terms

When used anywhere in the Agreement, the followanms shall have the meaning set forth herein.

(a)“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.

(b) “Change in Control” shall mean any one of the following events: (i) &ieguisition of ownership, holding or power to v6G%
or more of the Company'’s voting stock, or (ii) rguisition of the ability to control the electioha majority of the Company’s directors.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Coriotlefined in this Section 1(b) shall not be tr@ate a Change in Control for purpose:
this Agreement unless it constitutes a “changeintrol event” within the meaning of Section 1.4098X5) of the Treasury Regulations
promulgated under section 409A of the Internal RereeCode of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) (thedJuey Regulations”)

(c) “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, anded from time to time, and as interpreted thraamgpblicable
rulings and regulations in effect from time to time

(d) “Code §280G Maximum’'shall mean the product of 2.0 and the Executivie&st amount” as defined in Code §280G(b)(3).
(e) “ Company' shall mean Newtek Business Services, Inc., anydsacessor to its interest.

(H “ Common Sto¢” shall mean common shares of the Comp



(9) “Effective Date” shall mean the date of execution referenced ifPteamble of this Agreement.
(h) “Executive” shall mean Craig J. Brunet.

(i) “Good Reason”shall mean any of the following events, which hasbeen consented to in advance by the Executiweitmg:
(i) the requirement that the Executive move hispeal residence, or perform his principal executivetions, more than fifty (50) miles from
his primary office as of the Effective Date; (iijreaterial reduction in the Executive’s base comagas as the same may be increased from
time to time; (iii) the failure by the Company tortinue to provide the Executive with compensatiad benefits provided for on the Effective
Date, as the same may be increased from time & timwith benefits substantially similar to thgsevided to him under any of the Executive
benefit plans in which the Executive now or heralftecomes a participant, or the taking of anyoadby the Company which would directly
indirectly reduce any of such benefits or deprive Executive of any material fringe benefit enjopgchim; (iv) the assignment to the
Executive of duties and responsibilities that cibatst a material diminution from those associatdith Wwis position on the Effective Date; or
(v) a material diminution or reduction in the Extee’s responsibilities or authority (including m@ping responsibilities) in connection with his
employment with the Company.

() “Just Cause”shall mean the Executiv@Wwillful misconduct, breach of fiduciary duty inving personal profit, intentional failu
to perform stated duties, conviction for a feloaymaterial breach of any provision of this Agream&lo act, or failure to act, on the
Executive’s part shall be considered “willful” uskehe has acted, or failed to act, with an absehgeod faith and without a reasonable belief
that his action or failure to act was in the bagtriests of the Company.

(k) “Protected Period”shall mean the period that begins on the date sixtihs before a Change in Control and ends on thiera
of six months following the Change in Control oe texpiration date of this Agreement.

() “Trigger Event” shall mean (i) the ExecutiveVvoluntary termination of employment within nin€®0) days of an event that b
occurs during the Protected Period and consti@tasd Reason, or (i) the termination by the Compamiys successor(s) in interest, of the
Executive’s employment for any reason other thast @Qause during the Protected Period.

2. Employment The Executive is employed as executive vice geggiand Chief Information Officer of the Compaififie Executive
shall render such administrative and managemevicssrfor the Company and its subsidiaries as anmeotly rendered and as are customarily
performed by persons situated in a similar exeeutapacity and consistent with the duties of arcHtiee Vice President as set forth in the
bylaws of the Company. The Executive shall repmthe Chief Executive Officer. The Executive sladlo promote, by entertainment or
otherwise, as and to the extent permitted by law business of the Company and its subsidiaries EKecutive’s other duties shall be such as
the Board may from time to time reasonably dirertluding normal duties as an officer of the Comypan
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3. Base Compensatiomhe Company agrees to pay the Executive duriadetm of this Agreement a salary at the rate 27&000 per
annum, payable in cash not less frequently thantiiyporAdditionally, the Board shall review, not esften than annually, the rate of the
Executive’s salary and may decide to further inseelais salary.

4. Cash Bonuses; Incentive Compensation

(a) The Board shall determine the Executive’s righteceive incentive compensation in the formasdtcbonuses and other awards.
No other compensation provided for in this Agreetrsdrall be deemed a substitute for such incentivepensation. Cash bonuses shal
awarded pursuant to the terms of the Company’s Ah@ash Bonus Plan, if one has been adopted bgdhed and if not, then by action of the
Board.

(b) Incentive bonus: in addition to all other comgation payable hereunder, the Executive shalhbilesl to participate in
consideration for a cash bonus out of a pool tediablished for this purpose by the Board. The arofithe Executive’s bonus participation
shall be fixed by the Compensation Committee ofBbard if it finds the Executive’s performance vk been a major contributing factor to
the success of the Company.

5. Other Benefits

(a) Participation in Retirement, Medical and Other PsarThe Executive shall participate in any plan that Company maintains
for the benefit of its employees if the plan redatte (i) pension, profit-sharing, or other retiregrhbenefits, (ii) medical insurance or the
reimbursement of medical or dependent care expeasés) other group benefits, including disabjliand life insurance plans.

(b) Executive Benefits; ExpenseBhe Executive shall participate in any fringe &f#s which are or may become available to the
Company’s senior management Executives, including@kample incentive compensation plans, club mesfijes, and any other benefits
which are commensurate with the responsibilitied famctions to be performed by the Executive unlblesr Agreement. The Executive shall be
reimbursed for all reasonable out-of-pocket busireegenses which he shall incur in connection thighservices under this Agreement upon
substantiation of such expenses in accordancetiétpolicies of the Company.

6. Term. The Company hereby employs the Executive, an@Exeeutive hereby accepts such employment undeAinieement,
for the period commencing on the Effective Date anding on March 31, 2012 or such earlier dats a@giermined in accordance with
Section 11 (the “Term”).”

7. Loyalty; Noncompetition

(a) During the period of his employment hereundhet except for illnesses, reasonable vacation pgrimad reasonable leaves of
absence, the Executive shall devote substantitilhisafull business time, attention, skill, andagfs to the faithful performance of his duties
hereunder; provided, however, from time to timee&ixive may serve on the boards of directors af,terid any other offices or positions in,
companies or organizations, at the



request of the Company or which will not presemthie opinion of the Board, any conflict of interesth the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or affiliates, nor unfavorably affdet performance of Executive’s duties pursuanhi®Agreement, nor violate any applicable
statute or regulation. “Full business time” is llreefined as that amount of time usually devotelike companies by similarly situated
executive officers. During the Term of his employmender this Agreement, the Executive shall ngiagie in any business or activity contr
to the business affairs or interests of the Company

(b) Nothing contained in this Paragraph 7 shalliéemed to prevent or limit the Executive’s rightrteest in the capital stock or
other securities of any business dissimilar froat tf the Company or, solely as a passive or minarvestor, in any business.

8. Standards The Executive shall perform his duties under &gseement in accordance with such reasonable atdacs the Board m
establish from time to time. The Company will prieiExecutive with the working facilities and staffstomary for similar executives and
necessary for him to perform his duties.

9. Vacation and Sick LeaveAt such reasonable times as the Board shalsidigicretion permit, the Executive shall be erdithgithout
loss of pay, to absent himself voluntarily from grexformance of his employment under this Agreerredhsuch voluntary absences to coun
vacation time; provided that:

(a) The Executive shall be entitled to an annuahtian in accordance with the policies that ther@geeriodically establishes for
senior management Executives of the Company.

(b) The Executive shall not receive any additiam@hpensation from the Company on account of hisrfaio take a vacation, and
the Executive shall not accumulate unused vacditton one fiscal year to the next, except in eittese to the extent authorized by the Board.

(c) In addition to the aforesaid paid vacations, Bxecutive shall be entitled without loss of payabsent himself voluntarily from
the performance of his employment with the Companyguch additional periods of time and for suchdvand legitimate reasons as the Board
may in its discretion determine. Further, the Baaal grant to the Executive a leave or leaves séate, with or without pay, at such time or
times and upon such terms and conditions as sualdBo its discretion may determine.

(d) In addition, the Executive shall be entitlecatbannual sick leave benefit as established bptzed.

10. Indemnification The Company shall indemnify and hold harmlesschtiee from any and all loss, expense, or liabilitgt he may
incur due to his services for the Company as aoefind or a director (including any liability hreay ever incur under Code § 4999, or a
successor, as the result of severance benefitslleets pursuant to Sections 11 or 13) during thieTferm of this Agreement and shall at all
times maintain adequate insurance for such purposes



11. Termination and Termination Pa8ubject to Section 13 hereof, the Executive’slegment hereunder may be terminated under the
following circumstances:

(a)Just Cause The Board may, based on a good faith determinatia only after giving the Executive written netiend a
reasonable opportunity to cure, immediately ternginhe Executive’s employment at any time, for &imstise. The Executive shall have no
right to receive compensation or other benefitsafoy period after termination for Just Cause.

(b) Without Just CauseThe Board may, by written notice to the Executimemediately terminate his employment for a reason
other than Just Cause. In such event, the Execstigk be entitled to a total severance paymeset‘{#everance Payment”) equal to one
(2) times the sum of (i) Executive’s base salargffiect at the time of termination, plus (ii) th@aunt of all compensation paid to Executive
under Section 4 hereof with respect to the immedigireceding fiscal year. The Severance Paymesiitisé paid in equal installments over a
twelve (12) month period following the Executivéésmination of employment, payable in accordandé tie Company’s regularly scheduled
payroll (the “Installment Payments”). Each Instaimh Payment shall be treated as a separate pajongnirposes of Treasury Regulations
Section 1.409A-2(b)(2)(iii).

(c) Resignation by Executive with Good Reasdhe Executive may at any time immediately terrréremployment for Good
Reason, in which case the Executive shall be edttth receive the Severance Payment payable isathe manner and on the same basis as
provided for under Section 11(b) of the Agreemedrua termination without Just Cause. In addittbe,Executive will be entitled to health,
life, disability and other benefits which the Extieet would have been eligible to participate inotigh the expiration of the Term based on the
benefit levels substantially equal to those that@lompany provided for the Executive at the datewhination of employment, subject to any
restrictions as may be required under Code Sedti@w

(d) Resignation by Executive without Good Reasbine Executive may voluntarily terminate employmneith the Company durin
the term of this Agreement, upon at least 60 dpsist written notice to the Board of Directors,vithich case the Executive shall receive only
his compensation, vested rights, and Executivefiisng to the date of his termination of employimen

(e) Retirement, Death, or Disabilitylf the Executives employment terminates during the Term of thise®gnent due to his deatt
disability that results in his collection of anyntpterm disability benefits, or retirement at deafage 62, the Executive (or the beneficiaries of
his estate) shall be entitled to receive the corsgtéon and benefits that the Executive would otlissvave become entitled to receive purs
to subsection (d) hereof upon a resignation witl@obd Reason.

(f) Termination or Non-Renewal Paymelfithe Term of this Agreement is not extended foleast one (1) additional year in
circumstances in which the Executive is willing afle to execute such extension and continue peirfigrservices, then the Executive’s
employment shall be terminated by the Company &ffe@as of the expiration of the Term, in which et/be shall be entitled to a Severance
Payment equal to one (1) times the



sum of (i) Executive’s base salary in effect attilree of termination, plus (ii) the amount of atirapensation paid to Executive under Section 4
hereof with respect to the immediately precedisgdi year. The Severance Payment shall be paiglial nstallments over a twelve

(22) month period following the Executive’s termiioa of employment, payable in accordance with@oenpany’s regularly scheduled

payroll.

12. No Mitigation. The Executive shall not be required to mitigate amount of any payment provided for in this Agneat by seeking
other employment or otherwise, and no such paysigait be offset or reduced by the amount of anypsmeation or benefits provided to the
Executive in any subsequent employment.

13. Change in ControlNotwithstanding any provision herein to the canyr if a Trigger Event occurs during the Proted®ediod, the
Executive shall be paid an amount equal to thedeC® 280G Maximum. If the Trigger Event occurs dgrihe portion of the Protected Period
that is prior to the date of the Change in Contia¢, Code § 280G Maximum shall be payable in tineesananner and on the same basis as
provided for under Section 11(b) of the Agreemedrua termination without Just Cause. If the Triggeent occurs during the portion of the
Protected Period that is on or after the date @Ghange in Control, the Code § 280G Maximum di&fpaid in a lump sum within ten
(10) days of his termination of employment.

14. Covenants
(a) Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement:

(i) Restrictive Period The term “Restrictive Period” shall mean the pérbeginning on the Effective Date and ending two
(2) years after the termination of the Executiverigployment hereunder.

(i) Covered CustomerThe term “Covered Customer” shall mean (A) dutimg Term, any customer of the Company and
(B) after the Term, any person or entity who waspfthe end of the Term, a customer of the Company

(iii) Covered BusinessThe term “Covered Business” shall mean (A) dutlmgterm, any business in which the Company is
engaged and (B) after the Term, any business iolwthie Company was engaged as of the end of the.Ter

(iv) Covered State The term “Covered Stateshall mean (A) during the Term, any state in théééhStates and (B) after t
Term, any state (1) in which, as of the end offteem, the Company was engaged in business or (B)respect to which the Company, as of
the end of the Term, had expended material expamd@r efforts in connection with preparing to dsiness therein.

(b) Norrinterference The Executive covenants and agrees that he etilhbany time during the Restrictive Period foratdver
reason, whether for his own account or for the aotof any other person, firm, corporation or othesiness organization: (i) interfere with
contractual relationships between the Company agdhits customers or employees; (i) hire, oticgbfor hire, any person who is employed
by the Company or any parent or subsidiary



of the Company, without the express written consétithe Company; or (iii) other than on behalf lné tCompany, solicit any Covered
Customer of the Company in connection with the gegzent, by any person or entity, in any Coveredri®ass in any Covered State.

(c) Confidentiality. The Executive will not, at any time whether dgrior after his termination of employment, (i) diss to
anyone, without proper authorization from the Compar (ii) use, for his or another’s benefit, amgnfidential or proprietary information of
the Company or any parent or subsidiary of the Gomgpwhich may include trade secrets, businessmaoutlooks, financial data, marketing
or sales programs, customer lists, brand formuiatitraining and operations manuals, productsioe gtrategies, mergers, acquisitions, and/or
Company personnel issues.

(d) Blue Pencil; Equitable ReliefThe provisions contained in this Section 14 athéotime periods, scope of activities, persons or
entities affected and territories restricted shaldeemed divisible so that if any provision camdiin this Section is determined to be invali
unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed readdsfo as to be valid and enforceable to the fuére lawfully permitted. The Executive
acknowledges that the provisions of this SectiomrBdreasonable and necessary for the protectidredompany and that the Company will
be irrevocably damaged if such covenants are retifipally enforced. Accordingly, the Executive ags that if he breaches or threatens to
breach any of the covenants contained in this @ed#, the Company will be entitled (i) to damageSicient to compensate the Company for
any harm to the Company caused thereby and (@pseific performance and injunctive relief for fherpose of preventing the breach or
threatened breach thereof without bond or otheuriigcor a showing that monetary damages will mavile an adequate remedy, in additio
any other relief to which the Company may be esditinder this Agreement.”

15. Reimbursement for Litigation Expenses

In the event that any dispute arises between tleelive and the Company as to the terms or inteafoe of this Agreement, whether
instituted by formal legal proceedings or otherwiseluding any action that the Executive takesréorce the terms of this Agreement or to
defend against any action taken by the CompanyEteeutive shall be reimbursed for all costs angkeses, including reasonable attorneys’
fees, arising from such dispute, proceedings dotst provided that the Executive shall obtainnalfjudgement by a court of competent
jurisdiction in favor of the Executive. Such reinmbement shall be paid within ten (10) days of Exige’s furnishing to the Company written
evidence, which may be in the form, among otharg$j of a cancelled check or receipt, of any cosexpenses incurred by the Executive.

16. Successors and Assigns

(a) This Agreement shall inure to the benefit af &e binding upon any corporate or other succesfsttie Company which shall
acquire, directly or indirectly, by merger, condaliion, purchase or otherwise, all or substantillpf the assets or stock of the Company.
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(b) Since the Company is contracting for the unigné personal skills of the Executive, the Exeausitiall be precluded from
assigning or delegating his rights or duties hedeunvithout first obtaining the written consenttioé Company.

17. Corporate Authority Company represents and warrants that the exacaitid delivery of this Agreement by it has beery duwid
properly authorized by the Board and that whenszeted and delivered this Agreement shall cortstitoe lawful and binding obligation of
the Company.

18. AmendmentsNo amendments or additions to this Agreement &leabinding unless made in writing and signed Ibpfathe parties,
except as herein otherwise specifically provided.

19. Applicable Law Except to the extent preempted by Federal lagv|atvs of the State of New York shall govern thggdement in all
respects, whether as to its validity, construct@apacity, performance or otherwise.

20. Severability The provisions of this Agreement shall be dees®dtrable and the invalidity or unenforceabilityaafy provision shall
not affect the validity or enforceability of thehetr provisions hereof.

21. Entire AgreementThis Agreement, together with any understandingnodifications thereof as agreed to in writingtbg parties,
shall constitute the entire agreement betweendhigeg hereto with respect to the matters addressedhall supercede all previous agreerr
with respect to such matters.

22. Tax Matters All payments or benefits provided under this Agrent are subject to any applicable employmeraowithholdings o
deductions. In addition, the parties hereby agnagit is their intention that all payments or biéseprovided under this Agreement be exempt
from, or if not so exempt, comply with, Code Seeti)9A and this Agreement shall be interpreted mtingly. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, if any paymentbemefits made or provided under the Agreement@meidered deferred compensation sut
to Code Section 409A payable on account of Emplsyssparation from service (but that do not meetx@amption under Code Section 409A,
including without limitation the short term defdroa the separation pay plan exemption), such paysner benefits shall be paid no earlier t
the date that is six (6) months following Employseséparation from service (or, if earlier, the ddtdeath) to the extent required by Code
Section 409A.

[signatures on following page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF,

Witnessed by

/s/ Matthew G. Ash

the parties have executedAlgiseement on the day and year first hereinaboveemri
NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.

By: /s/ Barry Sloane

Witnessed by

/s/ Matthew G. Asl

Its Chief Executive Office

By: /s/ Craig J. Brunt

Craig J. Brune



Exhibit 10.3.2
NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.

Employment Agreement with
Seth A. Cohen

PREAMBLE . This Agreement entered into this 15th day of Ma011, by and between Newtek Business Services(ttme
“Company”) and SETH A. COHEN (the “Executive”), eftive immediately.

WHEREAS, the Executive is to be employed by the Companynasxacutive officer; and
WHEREAS, the parties desire by this writing to set forth #meployment relationship of the Company and thecHtiee.
NOW, THEREFORE, it is AGREED as follows:

1. Defined Terms

When used anywhere in the Agreement, the followanms shall have the meaning set forth herein.

(a)“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.

(b) “Change in Control” shall mean any one of the following events: (i) &ieguisition of ownership, holding or power to v6G%
or more of the Company'’s voting stock, or (ii) rguisition of the ability to control the electioha majority of the Company’s directors.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Coriotlefined in this Section 1(b) shall not be tr@ate a Change in Control for purpose:
this Agreement unless it constitutes a “changeintrol event” within the meaning of Section 1.4098X5) of the Treasury Regulations
promulgated under section 409A of the Internal RereeCode of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) (thedJuey Regulations”)

(c) “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, anded from time to time, and as interpreted thraamgpblicable
rulings and regulations in effect from time to time

(d) “Code §280G Maximum’'shall mean the product of 2.0 and the Executivie&st amount” as defined in Code §280G(b)(3).
(e) “ Company' shall mean Newtek Business Services, Inc., anydsacessor to its interest.

(H “ Common Sto¢” shall mean common shares of the Comp



(9) “Effective Date” shall mean the date of execution referenced ifPteamble of this Agreement.
(h) “Executive” shall mean Seth A. Cohen.

(i) “Good Reason”shall mean any of the following events, which hasbeen consented to in advance by the Executiweitmg:
(i) the requirement that the Executive move hispeal residence, or perform his principal executivetions, more than fifty (50) miles from
his primary office as of the Effective Date; (iijreaterial reduction in the Executive’s base comagas as the same may be increased from
time to time; (iii) the failure by the Company tortinue to provide the Executive with compensatiad benefits provided for on the Effective
Date, as the same may be increased from time & timwith benefits substantially similar to thgsevided to him under any of the Executive
benefit plans in which the Executive now or heralftecomes a participant, or the taking of anyoadby the Company which would directly
indirectly reduce any of such benefits or deprive Executive of any material fringe benefit enjopgchim; (iv) the assignment to the
Executive of duties and responsibilities that cibatst a material diminution from those associatdith Wwis position on the Effective Date; or
(v) a material diminution or reduction in the Extee’s responsibilities or authority (including m@ping responsibilities) in connection with his
employment with the Company.

() “Just Cause”shall mean the Executiv@Wwillful misconduct, breach of fiduciary duty inving personal profit, intentional failu
to perform stated duties, conviction for a feloaymaterial breach of any provision of this Agream&lo act, or failure to act, on the
Executive’s part shall be considered “willful” uskehe has acted, or failed to act, with an absehgeod faith and without a reasonable belief
that his action or failure to act was in the bagtriests of the Company.

(k) “Protected Period”shall mean the period that begins on the date sixtihs before a Change in Control and ends on thiera
of six months following the Change in Control oe texpiration date of this Agreement.

() “Trigger Event” shall mean (i) the ExecutiveVvoluntary termination of employment within nin€®0) days of an event that b
occurs during the Protected Period and consti@tasd Reason, or (i) the termination by the Compamiys successor(s) in interest, of the
Executive’s employment for any reason other thast @Qause during the Protected Period.

2. Employment The Executive is employed as Chief Financial €ffiof the Company. The Executive shall render sudrhinistrative
and management services for the Company and itsdiabies as are currently rendered and as areroasily performed by persons situated in
a similar executive capacity and consistent withdhties of the Chief Financial Officer as setHart the bylaws of the Company. The
Executive shall report to the Chief Executive QdficThe Executive shall also promote, by entertaiminor otherwise, as and to the extent
permitted by law, the business of the Company nslibsidiaries. The Executive’s other duties galuch as the Board may from time to
time reasonably direct, including normal dutiesaa%fficer of the Company.
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3. Base Compensatiomhe Company agrees to pay the Executive duriadetm of this Agreement a salary at the rate 24& 000 per
annum, payable in cash not less frequently thantiiyporAdditionally, the Board shall review, not esften than annually, the rate of the
Executive’s salary and may decide to further inseelais salary.

4. Cash Bonuses; Incentive Compensation

(a) The Board shall determine the Executive’s righteceive incentive compensation in the formasdtcbonuses and other awards.
No other compensation provided for in this Agreetrsdrall be deemed a substitute for such incentivepensation. Cash bonuses shal
awarded pursuant to the terms of the Company’s Ah@ash Bonus Plan, if one has been adopted bgdhed and if not, then by action of the
Board.

(b) Incentive bonus: in addition to all other comgation payable hereunder, the Executive shalhbilesl to participate in
consideration for a cash bonus out of a pool tediablished for this purpose by the Board. The arofithe Executive’s bonus participation
shall be fixed by the Compensation Committee ofBbard if it finds the Executive’s performance vk been a major contributing factor to
the success of the Company.

5. Other Benefits

(a) Participation in Retirement, Medical and Other PsarThe Executive shall participate in any plan that Company maintains
for the benefit of its employees if the plan redatte (i) pension, profit-sharing, or other retiregrhbenefits, (ii) medical insurance or the
reimbursement of medical or dependent care expeasés) other group benefits, including disabjliand life insurance plans.

(b) Executive Benefits; ExpenseBhe Executive shall participate in any fringe &f#s which are or may become available to the
Company’s senior management Executives, including@kample incentive compensation plans, club mesfijes, and any other benefits
which are commensurate with the responsibilitied famctions to be performed by the Executive unlblesr Agreement. The Executive shall be
reimbursed for all reasonable out-of-pocket busireegenses which he shall incur in connection thighservices under this Agreement upon
substantiation of such expenses in accordancetiétpolicies of the Company.

6. Term. The Company hereby employs the Executive, an@Exeeutive hereby accepts such employment undeAinieement,
for the period commencing on the Effective Date anding on March 31, 2012 or such earlier dats a@giermined in accordance with
Section 11 (the “Term”).”

7. Loyalty; Noncompetition

(a) During the period of his employment hereundhet except for illnesses, reasonable vacation pgrimad reasonable leaves of
absence, the Executive shall devote substantitilhisafull business time, attention, skill, andagfs to the faithful performance of his duties
hereunder; provided, however, from time to timee&ixive may serve on the boards of directors af,terid any other offices or positions in,
companies or organizations, at the



request of the Company or which will not presemthie opinion of the Board, any conflict of interesth the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or affiliates, nor unfavorably affdet performance of Executive’s duties pursuanhi®Agreement, nor violate any applicable
statute or regulation. “Full business time” is llreefined as that amount of time usually devotelike companies by similarly situated
executive officers. During the Term of his employmender this Agreement, the Executive shall ngiagie in any business or activity contr
to the business affairs or interests of the Company

(b) Nothing contained in this Paragraph 7 shalliéemed to prevent or limit the Executive’s rightrteest in the capital stock or
other securities of any business dissimilar froat tf the Company or, solely as a passive or minarvestor, in any business.

8. Standards The Executive shall perform his duties under &gseement in accordance with such reasonable atdacs the Board m
establish from time to time. The Company will prieiExecutive with the working facilities and staffstomary for similar executives and
necessary for him to perform his duties.

9. Vacation and Sick LeaveAt such reasonable times as the Board shalsidigicretion permit, the Executive shall be erdithgithout
loss of pay, to absent himself voluntarily from grexformance of his employment under this Agreerredhsuch voluntary absences to coun
vacation time; provided that:

(a) The Executive shall be entitled to an annuahtian in accordance with the policies that ther@geeriodically establishes for
senior management Executives of the Company.

(b) The Executive shall not receive any additiam@hpensation from the Company on account of hisrfaio take a vacation, and
the Executive shall not accumulate unused vacditton one fiscal year to the next, except in eittese to the extent authorized by the Board.

(c) In addition to the aforesaid paid vacations, Bxecutive shall be entitled without loss of payabsent himself voluntarily from
the performance of his employment with the Companyguch additional periods of time and for suchdvand legitimate reasons as the Board
may in its discretion determine. Further, the Baaal grant to the Executive a leave or leaves séate, with or without pay, at such time or
times and upon such terms and conditions as sualdBo its discretion may determine.

(d) In addition, the Executive shall be entitlecatbannual sick leave benefit as established bptzed.

10. Indemnification The Company shall indemnify and hold harmlesschtiee from any and all loss, expense, or liabilitgt he may
incur due to his services for the Company as aoefind or a director (including any liability hreay ever incur under Code § 4999, or a
successor, as the result of severance benefitslleets pursuant to Sections 11 or 13) during thieTferm of this Agreement and shall at all
times maintain adequate insurance for such purposes



11. Termination and Termination Pa8ubject to Section 13 hereof, the Executive’slegment hereunder may be terminated under the
following circumstances:

(a)Just Cause The Board may, based on a good faith determinatia only after giving the Executive written netiend a
reasonable opportunity to cure, immediately ternginhe Executive’s employment at any time, for &imstise. The Executive shall have no
right to receive compensation or other benefitsafoy period after termination for Just Cause.

(b) Without Just CauseThe Board may, by written notice to the Executimemediately terminate his employment for a reason
other than Just Cause. In such event, the Execstigk be entitled to a total severance paymeset‘{#everance Payment”) equal to one
(2) times the sum of (i) Executive’s base salargffiect at the time of termination, plus (ii) th@aunt of all compensation paid to Executive
under Section 4 hereof with respect to the immedigireceding fiscal year. The Severance Paymesiitisé paid in equal installments over a
twelve (12) month period following the Executivéésmination of employment, payable in accordandé tie Company’s regularly scheduled
payroll (the “Installment Payments”). Each Instaimh Payment shall be treated as a separate pajongnirposes of Treasury Regulations
Section 1.409A-2(b)(2)(iii).

(c) Resignation by Executive with Good Reasdhe Executive may at any time immediately terrréremployment for Good
Reason, in which case the Executive shall be edttth receive the Severance Payment payable isathe manner and on the same basis as
provided for under Section 11(b) of the Agreemedrua termination without Just Cause. In addittbe,Executive will be entitled to health,
life, disability and other benefits which the Extieet would have been eligible to participate inotigh the expiration of the Term based on the
benefit levels substantially equal to those that@lompany provided for the Executive at the datewhination of employment, subject to any
restrictions as may be required under Code Sedti@w

(d) Resignation by Executive without Good Reasbine Executive may voluntarily terminate employmneith the Company durin
the term of this Agreement, upon at least 60 dpsist written notice to the Board of Directors,vithich case the Executive shall receive only
his compensation, vested rights, and Executivefiisng to the date of his termination of employimen

(e) Retirement, Death, or Disabilitylf the Executives employment terminates during the Term of thise®gnent due to his deatt
disability that results in his collection of anyntpterm disability benefits, or retirement at deafage 62, the Executive (or the beneficiaries of
his estate) shall be entitled to receive the corsgtéon and benefits that the Executive would otlissvave become entitled to receive purs
to subsection (d) hereof upon a resignation witl@obd Reason.

(f) Termination or Non-Renewal Paymelfithe Term of this Agreement is not extended foleast one (1) additional year in
circumstances in which the Executive is willing afle to execute such extension and continue peirfigrservices, then the Executive’s
employment shall be terminated by the Company &ffe@as of the expiration of the Term, in which et/be shall be entitled to a Severance
Payment equal to one (1) times the



sum of (i) Executive’s base salary in effect attilree of termination, plus (ii) the amount of atirapensation paid to Executive under Section 4
hereof with respect to the immediately precedisgdi year. The Severance Payment shall be paiglial nstallments over a twelve

(22) month period following the Executive’s termiioa of employment, payable in accordance with@oenpany’s regularly scheduled

payroll.

12. No Mitigation. The Executive shall not be required to mitigate amount of any payment provided for in this Agneat by seeking
other employment or otherwise, and no such paysigait be offset or reduced by the amount of anypsmeation or benefits provided to the
Executive in any subsequent employment.

13. Change in ControlNotwithstanding any provision herein to the canyr if a Trigger Event occurs during the Proted®ediod, the
Executive shall be paid an amount equal to thedeC® 280G Maximum. If the Trigger Event occurs dgrihe portion of the Protected Period
that is prior to the date of the Change in Contia¢, Code § 280G Maximum shall be payable in tineesananner and on the same basis as
provided for under Section 11(b) of the Agreemedrua termination without Just Cause. If the Triggeent occurs during the portion of the
Protected Period that is on or after the date @Ghange in Control, the Code § 280G Maximum di&fpaid in a lump sum within ten
(10) days of his termination of employment.

14. Covenants
(a) Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement:

(i) Restrictive Period The term “Restrictive Period” shall mean the pérbeginning on the Effective Date and ending two
(2) years after the termination of the Executiverigployment hereunder.

(i) Covered CustomerThe term “Covered Customer” shall mean (A) dutimg Term, any customer of the Company and
(B) after the Term, any person or entity who waspfthe end of the Term, a customer of the Company

(iii) Covered BusinessThe term “Covered Business” shall mean (A) dutlmgterm, any business in which the Company is
engaged and (B) after the Term, any business iolwthie Company was engaged as of the end of the.Ter

(iv) Covered State The term “Covered Stateshall mean (A) during the Term, any state in théééhStates and (B) after t
Term, any state (1) in which, as of the end offteem, the Company was engaged in business or (B)respect to which the Company, as of
the end of the Term, had expended material expamd@r efforts in connection with preparing to dsiness therein.

(b) Norrinterference The Executive covenants and agrees that he etilhbany time during the Restrictive Period foratdver
reason, whether for his own account or for the aotof any other person, firm, corporation or othesiness organization: (i) interfere with
contractual relationships between the Company agdhits customers or employees; (i) hire, oticgbfor hire, any person who is employed
by the Company or any parent or subsidiary



of the Company, without the express written consétithe Company; or (iii) other than on behalf lné tCompany, solicit any Covered
Customer of the Company in connection with the gegzent, by any person or entity, in any Coveredri®ass in any Covered State.

(c) Confidentiality. The Executive will not, at any time whether dgrior after his termination of employment, (i) diss to
anyone, without proper authorization from the Compar (ii) use, for his or another’s benefit, amgnfidential or proprietary information of
the Company or any parent or subsidiary of the Gomgpwhich may include trade secrets, businessmaoutlooks, financial data, marketing
or sales programs, customer lists, brand formuiatitraining and operations manuals, productsioe gtrategies, mergers, acquisitions, and/or
Company personnel issues.

(d) Blue Pencil; Equitable ReliefThe provisions contained in this Section 14 athéotime periods, scope of activities, persons or
entities affected and territories restricted shaldeemed divisible so that if any provision camdiin this Section is determined to be invali
unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed readdsfo as to be valid and enforceable to the fuére lawfully permitted. The Executive
acknowledges that the provisions of this SectiomrBdreasonable and necessary for the protectidredompany and that the Company will
be irrevocably damaged if such covenants are retifipally enforced. Accordingly, the Executive ags that if he breaches or threatens to
breach any of the covenants contained in this @ed#, the Company will be entitled (i) to damageSicient to compensate the Company for
any harm to the Company caused thereby and (@pseific performance and injunctive relief for fherpose of preventing the breach or
threatened breach thereof without bond or otheuriigcor a showing that monetary damages will mavile an adequate remedy, in additio
any other relief to which the Company may be esditinder this Agreement.”

15. Reimbursement for Litigation Expenses

In the event that any dispute arises between tleelive and the Company as to the terms or inteafoe of this Agreement, whether
instituted by formal legal proceedings or otherwiseluding any action that the Executive takesréorce the terms of this Agreement or to
defend against any action taken by the CompanyEteeutive shall be reimbursed for all costs angkeses, including reasonable attorneys’
fees, arising from such dispute, proceedings dotst provided that the Executive shall obtainnalfjudgement by a court of competent
jurisdiction in favor of the Executive. Such reinmbement shall be paid within ten (10) days of Exige’s furnishing to the Company written
evidence, which may be in the form, among otharg$j of a cancelled check or receipt, of any cosexpenses incurred by the Executive.

16. Successors and Assigns

(a) This Agreement shall inure to the benefit af &e binding upon any corporate or other succesfsttie Company which shall
acquire, directly or indirectly, by merger, condaliion, purchase or otherwise, all or substantillpf the assets or stock of the Company.
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(b) Since the Company is contracting for the unigné personal skills of the Executive, the Exeausitiall be precluded from
assigning or delegating his rights or duties hedeunvithout first obtaining the written consenttioé Company.

17. Corporate Authority Company represents and warrants that the exacaitid delivery of this Agreement by it has beery duwid
properly authorized by the Board and that whenszeted and delivered this Agreement shall cortstitoe lawful and binding obligation of
the Company.

18. AmendmentsNo amendments or additions to this Agreement &leabinding unless made in writing and signed Ibpfathe parties,
except as herein otherwise specifically provided.

19. Applicable Law Except to the extent preempted by Federal lagv|atvs of the State of New York shall govern thggdement in all
respects, whether as to its validity, construct@apacity, performance or otherwise.

20. Severability The provisions of this Agreement shall be dees®dtrable and the invalidity or unenforceabilityaafy provision shall
not affect the validity or enforceability of thehetr provisions hereof.

21. Entire AgreementThis Agreement, together with any understandingnodifications thereof as agreed to in writingtbg parties,
shall constitute the entire agreement betweendhigeg hereto with respect to the matters addressedhall supercede all previous agreerr
with respect to such matters.

22. Tax Matters All payments or benefits provided under this Agrent are subject to any applicable employmeraowithholdings o
deductions. In addition, the parties hereby agnagit is their intention that all payments or biéseprovided under this Agreement be exempt
from, or if not so exempt, comply with, Code Seeti)9A and this Agreement shall be interpreted mtingly. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, if any paymentbemefits made or provided under the Agreement@meidered deferred compensation sut
to Code Section 409A payable on account of Emplsyssparation from service (but that do not meetx@amption under Code Section 409A,
including without limitation the short term defdroa the separation pay plan exemption), such paysner benefits shall be paid no earlier t
the date that is six (6) months following Employseséparation from service (or, if earlier, the ddtdeath) to the extent required by Code
Section 409A.

[signatures on following page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executedAlgieement on the day and year first hereinabovéenri
Witnessed by NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.

/sl Matthew G. Ash By: _ /s/ Barry Sloane

Its Chief Executive Office
Witnessed by

/s/ Matthew G. Asl By: _ /s/ Seth A. Cohe

Seth A. Cohe



NEWTEK BUSINESS SERVICES, INC
SUBSIDIARIES

Name of Company
Automated Merchant Services, It

BJB Holdings Corp

Business Connect, LL

CCC Real Estate Holdings Co., LI
CDS Business Services, Ir
CrystalTech Web Hosting, In

Exponential Business Development Co., |

First Bankcard Alliance of Alabama, LL
Fortress Data Management, LI
Newtek Insurance Agency, LL

Newtek Small Business Finance, |
PMT Works Payroll, LLC

Site Sage Web Development, LI

Small Business Lending, In

Solar Processing Solutions, LL

Summit Systems and Design, LI

The Texas Whitestone Group, Ll

Universal Processing Services of Wisconsin, L

The Whitestone Group, LL
Wilshire Alabama Partners, LL
Wilshire Colorado Partners, LL
Wilshire DC Partners, LL(
Wilshire Holdings I, Inc
Wilshire Holdings Il, Inc.
Wilshire Louisiana Bidco, LL(C

Wilshire Louisiana Capital Management Fund, L

Wilshire Louisiana Partners II, LL
Wilshire Louisiana Partners Ill, LL:
Wilshire Louisiana Partners IV, LL
Wilshire New York Advisers Il, LLC
Wilshire New York Partners Ill, LL(
Wilshire New York Partners IV, LL(
Wilshire New York Partners V, LLt¢
Wilshire Partners, LL(

Wilshire Texas Partners I, LL
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State of Incorporation/
Organization

Florida
New York
Texas
Delaware
Delaware
Arizona
New York
Alabama
Texas
District of Columbia
New York
New York
Louisiana
Delaware
Wisconsin
Texas
Texas
Wisconsin
New York
Alabama
Colorado
District of Columbia
New York
New York
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
Louisiana
New York
New York
New York
New York
Florida
Texas




Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We hereby consent to the incorporation by referemé®rm S-8 (No. 333-107504, 333-119191 and 33328} of Newtek Business Services,
Inc. and Subsidiaries of our report dated March202,1 related to the consolidated financial stateémehich appear in the Annual Report to
Shareholders, which is included herein in this AsdrReport on Form 10-K.

/s/ J.H. Cohn LLP

Jericho, New York
March 17, 2011
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Barry Sloane, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16filewtek Business Services, Inc. (the “registrant”

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report dogsaontain any untrue statement of a material dactimit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in thisnaal report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegettierally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadiisclosure controls and procedures and pres@ntas report our conclusions abr
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgualures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig’'s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weals®es in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/ s/ BARRY S LOANE
Barry Sloane
Principal Executive Officer

Date: March 17, 2011
F-45



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Seth A. Cohen, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16filewtek Business Services, Inc. (the “registrant”

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report dogsaontain any untrue statement of a material dactimit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in thisnaal report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegettierally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadiisclosure controls and procedures and pres@ntas report our conclusions abr
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgualures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig’'s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weals®es in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ SETHA. C OHEN
Seth A. Cohen
Principal Financial Officer

Date: March 17, 2011
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fNewtek Business Services, Inc. (the “Companydy,the period ended
December 31, 2010, as filed with the SecuritiesExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8parBarry Sloane, Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sexcti350, as added by Section 906 of the Sarb@méss Act of 2002, that, to the best of
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExageAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of the operations of the
Company.

/s/ BARRY SLOANE
Barry Sloane,
Principal Executive Officer

March 17, 2011
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fNewtek Business Services, Inc. (the “Companydy,the period ended
December 31, 2010, as filed with the SecuritiesExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8parSeth A. Cohen, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sexcti350, as added by Section 906 of the Sarb@méss Act of 2002, that, to the best of
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExageAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of the operations of the
Company.

/s/ SETHA. C OHEN
Cohen A. Cohen,
Principal Financial Officer

March 17, 2011
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